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This report on Form 10-K contains forwdnbking statements that are based on assumpti@ahmag describe future plans, strategies and exji@saof BCB Bancorp, Inc. a
subsidiaries. This document may include forwaraking statements within the meaning of SectioA &7 the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21Ehef Securities Exchan
Act of 1934. These forwarlboking statements, which are based on certainngssons and describe future plans, strategies,expectations of the Company, are gene
identified by use of the words “anticipate,” “bel&” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “projet,” “seek,” “strive,” “try,” or future or conditinal verbs such as “will,”
“would,” “should,” “could,” “may,” or similar expresions. Although we believe that our plans, intergiand expectations, as reflected in these forleaidng statements &
reasonable, we can give no assurance that thess, jtientions or expectations will be achievedealized. By identifying these statements for youhis manner, we &
alerting you to the possibility that our actualuies and financial condition may differ, possiblyatarially, from the anticipated results and finahciondition indicated in the
forward-looking statements. Important factors ttatld cause our actual results and financial candto differ from those indicated in the forwdambking statements incluc
among others, those discussed below and under ‘Ristors” in Part |, Item 1A of this Annual Report Form 10-K. You should not place undue reliancehese forward-

looking statements, which reflect our expectation/ as of the date of this report. We do not agsamy obligation to revise forwatdeking statements except as ma
required by law.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

BCB Bancorp, Inc.

BCB Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) is a New Jerseyporation, and is the holding company parent oBBCommunity Bank (the “Bank”)The Company has r
engaged in any significant business activity othan owning all of the outstanding common stocB6B Community Bank. Our executive office is locasdl04110 Avenu
C, Bayonne, New Jersey 07002. Our telephone nuisl§gd1) 8230700. At December 31, 2012 we had $1.17 billionansolidated assets, $940.8 million in deposits&gide
million in consolidated stockholders’ equity. Therpany is subject to extensive regulation by tharB@f Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

BCB Community Bank

BCB Community Bank opened for business on Noverib&000 as Bayonne Community Bank, a New Jerseterkd commercial bank. We changed our name
Bayonne Community Bank to BCB Community Bank in ihpf 2007. On October 14, 2011, the Bank complétedcquisition of Allegiance Community Bank. Ae€embe
31, 2012, we operated through eleven branches yorBe, Jersey City, Hoboken, Monroe Township, S@utange, and Woodbridge, New Jersey and througlexecutivi
office located at 104-110 Avenue C and our adnmaiiste office located at 59995 Avenue C, Bayonne, New Jersey 07002. Our deposounts are insured by the Fec
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and we areenber of the Federal Home Loan Bank System.

We are a community-oriented financial instituti@ur business is to offer FDIBsured deposit products and to invest funds heldeposit accounts at the Be
together with funds generated from operationspuestment securities and loans. We offer our custsm

. loans, including commercial and multi-family reatate loans, one- to fofamily mortgage loans, home equity loans, consimndbans, consumer loans ¢
commercial business loans. In recent years theapyigrowth in our loan portfolio has been in lomesured by commercial real estate and nfaftiily
properties

. FDIC-insured deposit products, including savings and @dacounts, nc-interest bearing accounts, money market accouetsificates of deposit al
individual retirement accounts; a

. retail and commercial banking services includingewiransfers, money orders, travedechecks, safe deposit boxes, a night depositagd lcoupo

redemption and automated teller servi

Recent Development

On October 29" and 30", 2012, Hurricane Sandy struck the Northeast seafdahe country. The Bank’'market area was significantly impacted by thenstavhict
resulted in widespread flooding, wind damage andguamutages. The storm temporarily disrupted oanbin network and our ability to service our custanbowever withi
one week all of our offices were fully function@ur assessment of the underlying collateral ofloan facilities we have in those areas affectedhigystorm that may ha
suffered damage and possible loss of value hastedsn a preliminary conclusion that while our ttaive and quantitative analysis is progressingijal indications are th.
asset balances of the Bank in the affected areappeximately $41.6 million, which encompassegghtyi one hundred six properties. Additionally, we & the process
determining whether or not the storm has impactedorrowers'ability to repay their obligations to the Bank. TBank is generally named as a loss payee on hararflooc
insurance policies covering collateral propertieg earries both mortgage impairment and busingssrirption insurance. These policies should midasses that the Bank n
sustain due to the effects of the hurricane. PtBse¢hat process remains @woing and it is premature to determine what, if angact this may have on our level of loan loss
non-performing loans. Predicated upon the completibthe aforementioned, the Company may experiémoeased levels of ngmerforming loans and losses which r
negatively impact future operating results.

At December 31, 2012, the Company closed a priplteement of its Series A noncumulative perpetuelepred stock, par value $0.01 per share (“pretestock].
The Company sold $8.65 million to certain investarsa purchase price of $10,000 per share. Th@noeeeds of the private placement are expectee tasbd primarily t
support the capital of BCB Community Bank.

Business Strateqy

Our business strategy is to operate as a wellagatl, profitable and independent commumitiented financial institution dedicated to prowigiquality custome
service. Management's and the Board of Directersénsive knowledge of the Hudson County markdeuhtiates us from our competitors. Our businésgeg)y incorporate
the following elements: maintaining a community decfocusing on profitability, continuing our grdwtconcentrating on real estate based lendingfatamg on marke
dynamics, providing attentive and personalizediserand attracting highly qualified and experienpedsonnel. As a result, our decision to sell digorf our nonperforming
loan portfolio allowed us to significantly reduceraon-performing loan balances compared to présiogs. Management's efforts to reduce these bataremain orgoing ant
we continue to research and implement initiatieefitther mitigate those risks associated with a&led levels of non-performing loans.

Maintaining a community focu®ur management and Board of Directors have strimsgtd the communities we serve. Many members efthnagement team
Bayonne natives and are active in the communitgudin nonprofit board membership, local business developroeganizations, and industry associations. In &ditoul
board members are well established professional$asiness people in the communities we serve. yEmant and the Board are interested in makingt&dasontribution ti
these communities and have succeeded in attraa¢ipgsits and loans through attentive and pers@ubsiervice.
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Strengthening our balance sheet while returningrafitability. For the year ended December 31, 2012, our losverage equity was 2.26% and our loss on av
assets was 0.17%. Our loss per diluted share wa8 $6r the year ended December 31, 2012 comparedrhings per diluted share of $0.64 for the yemled December ¢
2011. Earnings per share results have come undssyme recently, primarily as a result of the pgmeaeconomic downturn in both the national andl@conomy as well
several unusual events, including the sale of penfierming loans during 2012 to strengthen ourestents of financial condition, and the effects efrtitane Sandy. Durir
2012, we sold $25.9 million in non-performing loansan effort to reduce the overhang and cost ssatwith these noperforming assets. Management is committe
strengthening the Bard'statements of financial condition and returnimgrofitability by diversifying the products, prig and services we offer. As a result of our effoou
loans delinquent over 90 days have decreased f8h6$nillion at December 31, 2011 to $14.8 milladrDecember 31, 2012.

Concentrating on real estate-based lendiagprimary focus of our business strategy is toioage loans secured by commercial and nfaltiily properties. Such loa
provide higher returns than loans secured by amdeurfamily real estate. As a result of our underwritipgctices, including debt service requirementscfammercial re:
estate and multi-family loans, management beliévassuch loans offer us an opportunity to obtaghér returns, in the absence of a measurableasetklevel of risk.

Capitalizing on market dynamic¥he consolidation of the banking industry in Hud€wunty, New Jersey has provided a unique oppdytdoi a customer focus
banking institution, such as the Bank. We beliewelocal roots and community focus provides thelBaith an opportunity to capitalize on the consatidn in our market are
This consolidation has moved decision making aweagnflocal, communitysased banks to much larger banks headquartereddewoisNew Jersey. We believe our local ri
and community focus provides the Bank with an oppoty to capitalize on the consolidation in ourrkedt area.

Providing attentive and personalized serviglnagement believes that providing attentive andgrelized service is the key to gaining depositlaan relationships
Bayonne and its surrounding communities. Since @gah operations, our branches have been open E8wdays a week.

Attracting highly experienced and qualified perselnAn important part of our strategy is to hire barsketho have prior experience in the markets we sewvevell a
pre-existing business relationships. Our management tegs an average of over 27 years of banking eeqpeg| while our lenders and branch personnel higwnéisant priol
experience at community banks and regional barmesiginout New Jersey. Management believes thahitsvledge of these markets has been a critical eleinehe success
BCB Community Bank. Managemestextensive knowledge of the local communities dlisved us to develop and implement a highly foduaed disciplined approach
lending and has enabled the Bank to attract aegbentage of low cost deposits.

Our Market Area

We are located in the City of Bayonne, Jersey @ity Hoboken in Hudson County, Monroe Township armbiltridge in Middlesex County, and South Oran¢
Essex County, New Jersey. The Banldcations are easily accessible and provide coereservices to businesses and individuals througour market area. Following «
acquisition of Allegiance Community Bank in 2011 owarket area expanded to include branch offic&outh Orange and Woodbridge, New Jersey.

Our market area includes the City of Bayonne, Je@igy, portions of Hoboken, South Orange, Woodieidand Monroe Township, New Jersey. These areaall
considered “bedroom” or “commuter” communities t@mhattan. Our market area is wa#lrved by a network of arterial roadways includitgute 440 and the New Jer
Turnpike.

Our market area has a high level of commercialriass activity. Businesses are concentrated inehwice sector and retail trade areas. Major empoiyeour marke
area include certain medical centers and localdsoaf education. As a result of Hurricane Sandsigaificant number of businesses in our market arestained losses wh
resulted in reduced economic activity during ttst taro months of 2012 and into 2013.

Competition

The banking business in New Jersey is extremelypetitive. We compete for deposits and loans witisteag New Jersey and out-sfate financial institutions tk
have longer operating histories, larger capitabmess and more established customer bases. Ouretiiomp includes large financial service comparaesl other entities
addition to traditional banking institutions suchsavings and loan associations, savings banksneotial banks and credit unions. Our larger comprstihave a greater abil
to finance wideranging advertising campaigns through their greeaital resources. Our marketing efforts deperaiheupon referrals from officers, directors, dtholders
selective advertising in local media and directlrsalicitations. We compete for business principalh the basis of personal service to customestpmer access to our offic
and directors and competitive interest rates aes. fe

In the financial services industry in recent yedmdense market demands, technological and regylatbanges and economic pressures have erodedtry
classifications that were once clearly defined.l&dmave diversified their services, increased rp#éd on deposits and become more cost effectieerasult of competition wi
one another and with new types of financial seremmpanies, including nobanking competitors. Some of the results of theagket dynamics in the financial services indc
have been a number of new bank and non-bank canseincreased merger activity, and increasecdoust awareness of product and service differentemg competitors.
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Lending Activities

Analysis of Loan Portfolio Set forth below is selected data relating tocthv@position of our loan portfolio by type of loas @ percentage of the respective portfolio.

Type of loans
Real estate loan
One- to four-family
Constructior
Commercial and mu-family
Home equity®
Commercial businest)
Consumer

Total

Less:

Deferred loan fees, n

Allowance for loan losses
Total loans, ne

At December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
(Dollars in Thousands)
$ 202,92¢ 21.6¢% $ 218,08! 25580 $ 234,43! 29.9% $ 76,49( 18.7% $ 74,03¢ 17.9%
23,31( 2.4¢ 17,00( 1.9¢ 17,84¢ 2.2¢ 51,33( 12.5¢ 62,48: 15.1¢
588,26¢ 62.8¢ 472,42: 55.42 410,21: 52.4¢ 223,79. 54.71 223,17¢ 54.07%
60,39: 6.4t 69,07¢ 8.1( 63,60: 8.1z 34,29¢ 8.3¢ 38,06¢ 9.2
59,66¢ 6.37 74,57: 8.7t 54,16( 6.9: 22,48 5.5C 14,09¢ 3.4z
1,634 0.17 1,30¢ 0.1€ 1,81¢ 0.2: 641 0.1t 92( 0.21
936,19¢ 100.0(% 852,46! 100.0(% 782,07: 100.0(% 409,03 100.0% 412,78 100.0(%
1,53¢ 1,19:¢ 55€ 522 654
12,36: 10,50¢ 8,417 6,64 5,30¢
$ 922,30: $ 840,76. $ 773,10: $ 401,87. $ 406,82¢

(1) Includes business lines of credit.
(2) Includes home equity lines of credit.
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Loan Maturities.The following table sets forth the contractual miayuof our loan portfolio at December 31, 2012 eTamount shown represents outstanding prir
balances. Demand loans, loans having no statedislehef repayments and no stated maturity and o&ésdare reported as being due in one year or \&s$ablerate loans al
shown as due at the time of repricing. The tabksdwt include prepayments or scheduled princggdyments.

Due within 1 Due after 1 Due After 5

Year through 5 Years Years Total
(In Thousands)
One- to four-family $ 7% 4,132 $ 198,71¢ $ 202,92
Constructior 14,07( 6,04 3,19¢ 23,31(
Commercial businest) 24,68¢ 15,55¢ 19,42: 59,66¢
Commercial and mu-family 9,97( 41,30( 536,99¢ 588,26¢
Home equity® 282 8,72¢ 51,38: 60,39¢
Consume 327 40¢€ 901 1,63¢
Total amount du $ 49,41 $ 76,17( $ 810,61 $ 936,19

(1) Includes business lines of credit.
(2) Includes home equity lines of credit.

Loans with Predetermined or Floating or AdjustaRates of Interest The following table sets forth the dollar amoohtall loans at December 31, 2012 that are
after December 31, 2013, and have predeterminetksttrates and that have floating or adjustaléeent rates.

Floating or
Fixed Rates Adjustable Rates Total
(In Thousands)
One- to four-family $ 184,36' $ 18,48¢ $  202,85:
Constructior 1,691 7,54% 9,24(
Commercial businest) 13,41( 21,57( 34,98(
Commercial and mu-family 165,94t 412,35: 578,29¢
Home equity® 41,92¢ 18,18: 60,11:
Consumer 1,02¢ 281 1,30
Total amount due $ 40837 $ 478,41! $ 886,78

(1) Includes business lines of credit.
(2) Includes home equity lines of credit.
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Commercial and Multi-family Real Estate Loan®ur commercial and mulfamily real estate loans are secured by commeresll estate (for example, shopg
centers, medical buildings, retail offices) and tiria@mily residential units, consisting of five onore units. Permanent loans on commercial and 4fauitily properties ai
generally originated in amounts up to 75% of therajsed value of the property. Our commercial eséhte loans are secured by improved property asidffice buildings, rete
stores, warehouses, church buildings and otheresidential buildings. Commercial and mdlmily real estate loans are generally made as i@t adjust above the five y
U.S. Treasury interest rate, with terms of up to/ars, or are balloon loans with fixed interegtsavhich generally mature in three to five yeaith wrincipal amortization for
period of up to 30 years. Our largest commerciahlbad a principal balance of $12.9 million at Deber 31, 2012, was secured by commercial propedywas performing
accordance with its terms on that date. Our langesti-family loan had a principal balance of $8.0 milli@nDecember 31, 2012. This loan was performirgcitordance with i
terms on that date.

Loans secured by commercial and multi-family resbht are generally larger and involve a greatgredeof risk than one- to fodamily residential mortgage loal
The borrower’s creditworthiness and the feasibgind cash flow potential of the project is of prignaoncern in commercial and muféimily real estate lending. Loans sect
by income properties are generally larger and wevgireater risks than residential mortgage loanalse payments on loans secured by income prapargeoften dependent
the successful operation or management of the pgiepeAs a result, repayment of such loans maguigect to a greater extent than residential retdte loans to advel
conditions in the real estate market or the econdksya result of Hurricane Sandy, a number of ammercial borrowers have had diminished cash fiavieh may continu
over a period of time and which may impair the iabibf these borrowers to comply with the termstioéir commercial loans. We are monitoring thesendoto identif
weaknesses, including a higher level of delinquesidiVe intend to continue emphasizing the origimatif loans secured by commercial real estate ariti-family properties.

One- to Four-Family Lending Our one- to foufamily residential mortgage loans are secured lop@nty located primarily in the State of New Jerd&fe generall
originate one- to foufamily residential mortgage loans in amounts uB@®6 of the lesser of the appraised value or sefiince of the mortgaged property without requi
mortgage insurance. We will originate loans withrido value ratios up to 90% provided the borrovadin private mortgage insurance. We originatth fixed rate an
adjustable rate loans. One- to four-family loangy mave terms of up to 30 years. The majority of-dodourfamily loans we originate for retention in our dolio have term
no greater than 15 years. We offer adjustableloates with fixed rate periods of up to five yeangth principal and interest calculated using a maxin 30year amortizatio
period. We offer these loans with a fixed rate tfoe first five years with repricing every year aftee initial period. Adjustable rate loans mayuatjup to 200 basis poil
annually and 600 basis points over the term ofdhe. We also broker for a third party lender aweefourfamily residential loans, which are primarily fixeate loans with tern
of 30 years. Our loan brokerage activities permsitai offer customers longéerm fixed rate loans we would not otherwise omdgnwhile providing a source of fee inco
During 2012, we originated for sale $31.5 millionane- to four-family loans and recognized gain$&85,000 from the sale of such loans.

As a result of Hurricane Sandy, the homes colltizimg a number of our one-to fodamily loans have been severely damaged. We aessiag the impact of t
hurricane on our borrowers’ ability to service thiesians in accordance with their terms, and theainggl value of the underlying collateral. All ofroone- to fourfamily
mortgages include “due on salefauses, which are provisions giving us the rightiéclare a loan immediately payable if the bormosedls or otherwise transfers an intere
the property to a third party.

Property appraisals on real estate securing ogtesiamily residential loans are made by state cedified licensed independent appraisers approvedibBaard o
Directors. Appraisals are performed in accordanite applicable regulations and policies. As a resfiHurricane Sandy, we anticipate that apprafsaue values in our mart
area will be significantly lower than would otheseibe the case. At our discretion, we obtain eiitierinsurance policies or attorneyrtificates of title on all first mortga
real estate loans originated. We also requiredird casualty insurance on all properties securimgoae- to fourfamily loans. We also require the borrower to abtédoc
insurance where appropriate. In some instanceshasge a fee equal to a percentage of the loanrmommonly referred to as points.

Construction Loans We offer loans to finance the construction ofimas types of commercial and residential prope@gnstruction loans to builders generally
offered with terms of up to eighteen months andregt rates are tied to the prime rate plus a maftiese loans generally are offered as adjustatédoans. We will origina
residential construction loans for individual bamars and builders, provided all necessary planspemohits are in order. Construction loan fundsdisbursed as the proj
progresses. As of December 31, 2012, our largesstaetion loan was $4.3 million, of which $1.6 Inih was disbursed. This construction loan has beewde for th
construction of eleven condominium units. As of Bmber 31, 2012, this loan was performing in acawdavith its terms.

Construction financing is generally consideredneolve a higher degree of risk of loss than leegn financing on improved, occupied real estaisk Rf loss on
construction loan is dependent largely upon thei@oy of the initial estimate of the propegyalue at completion of construction and develagnaad the estimated ¢
(including interest) of construction. During thenstruction phase, a number of factors could résutielays and cost overruns. If the estimate obtrotion costs proves to
inaccurate, we may be required to advance funderizethe amount originally committed to permit coetjan of the project. Additionally, if the estimatévalue proves to |
inaccurate, we may be confronted, at or prior &rttaturity of the loan, with a project having awealvhich is insufficient to assure full repayment.

Home Equity Loans and Home Equity Lines of Creltlite offer home equity loans and lines of creditt thre secured by the borrowepgrimary residence. Our ho
equity loans can be structured as loans that abeidied in full at closing or as lines of credibrie equity loans and lines of credit are offeretthwerms up to 15 years. Virtug
all of our home equity loans are originated witkefi rates of interest and home equity lines ofiti@e originated with adjustable interest ratesl io the prime rate. Hor
equity loans and lines of credit are underwrittemer the same criteria that we use to underwrite- oo fourfamily loans. Home equity loans and lines of creday bt
underwritten with a loan-tealue ratio of 80% when combined with the principalance of the existing mortgage loan. At the timeeclose a home equity loan or line of cre
we file a mortgage to perfect our security inteiasthe underlying collateral. At December 31, 20t outstanding balances of home equity loansliard of credit totale
$60.4 million, or 6.45% of total loans.
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Commercial Business Loan®©ur commercial business loans are underwrittetherbasis of the borrowerability to service such debt from income. Ouremditing
standards for commercial business loans includeview of the applicant’s tax returns, financialtetaents, credit history and an assessment of thkcapt's ability to mee
existing obligations and payments on the proposed based on cash flow generated by the applicansimess. Commercial business loans are genemaliie to small and mid-
sized companies located within the State of NeweJerln most cases, we require collateral of re@te, equipment, accounts receivable, inventdrgttel or other assets bef
making a commercial business loan. Our largest cemial business loan at December 31, 2012 was secured line of credit loan to a local Board of &tion for $15.
million, of which $7.3 million was dispersed. Thimn was performing in accordance with its termefabat date.

Commercial business loans generally have highes atd shorter terms than one- to fiaumily residential loans, but they may also invohigher average balances
a higher risk of default since their repayment gelhe depends on the successful operation of threolaer’s business. As a result of Hurricane Sandy, ecanagtivity in ou
market area has been disrupted and many of our eocrah business borrowers have had their busingssgsired. Until our business borrowers recovenirie effects ¢
Hurricane Sandy we may experience higher than mastplevels of delinquencies and losses.

Consumer Loans We make various types of secured and unsecunesuioter loans and loans that are collateralizeddwy and used automobiles. Consumer |
generally have terms of three years to ten years.

Consumer loans are advantageous to us becauseiofrierest rate sensitivity, but they also inwimore credit risk than residential mortgage ldaesause of tt
higher potential for default, the nature of thdatelral and the difficulty in disposing of the ai#ral.

Loan Approval Authority and UnderwritingWe establish various lending limits for executimanagement and also maintain a loan committee IGérecommittee
comprised of the Chairman of the Board, the Prasjdee Senior Lending Officer and a minimum offiwonemployee members of the Board of Directors. TheiBleat or th
Senior Lending Officer, together with one othemlasficer, have authority to approve applicatioos real estate loans up to $500,000, other sedoeet up to $500,000 a
unsecured loans up to $25,000. The loan commitiesiders all applications in excess of the abondifey limits and the entire board of directorsfiesi all such loans.

Upon receipt of a completed loan application frorpraspective borrower, a credit report is ordetedome and certain other information is verifiefinécessar
additional financial information may be requestéd.appraisal is required for the underwriting dfaie- to fourfamily loans. We may rely on an estimate of valtiesal estat
performed by our Senior Lending Officer for homeiiggloans or lines of credit of up to $250,000.phpisals are processed by state certified indeperaggraisers approved
the Board of Directors.

An attorneys certificate of title is required on all newly ginated real estate mortgage loans. In connectitmrefinancing and home equity loans or lines refdit ir
amounts up to $250,000, we will obtain a record ewvensearch in lieu of an attornsyertificate of title. Borrowers also must obtfire and casualty insurance. Flood insure
is also required on loans secured by propertyishatated in a flood zone.

Loan CommitmentsWritten commitments are given to prospective tawars on all approved real estate loans. Generadyhonor commitments for up to 90 days f
the date of issuance. At December 31, 2012, owtanding loan origination commitments totaled $3®illion, standby letters of credit totaled $2.4llion, outstandin
construction loans in progress totaled $13.8 nmilbmd undisbursed lines of credit totaled $41.&anil

Loan Delinquencies We send a notice of nonpayment to borrowers wtheir loan becomes 15 days past due. If such paymemot received by month end,
additional notice of nonpayment is sent to the ®war. After 60 days, if payment is still delinqueatnotice of right to cure default is sent to twerower giving 30 addition
days to bring the loan current before foreclosaredmmenced. If the loan continues in a delingstatus for 90 days past due and no repayment plamdffect, foreclosu
proceedings will be initiated. In an effort to maiesely monitor the performance of our loan pdidf@nd asset quality, the Bank has created vammmeentration of crec
reports, specifically as it relates to our condtarcand commercial real estate portfolios. Thesgorts stress test declining property values ugnib including a 25% val
deprecation to the original appraised value tordgtee our potential exposure.

Loans are reviewed and are placed on aammmual status when the loan becomes more thara@® a@klinquent or when, in our opinion, the coltattof additione
interest is doubtful. Once placed on remerual status, the accrual of interest incomésisoditinued. Income is subsequently recognized tintiie extent that cash payments
received until delinquency status is reduced te than ninety days, in which case the loan is netito accrual status. At December 31, 2012, we$2adl million in non-
accruing loans. Our largest exposure of performing loans consisted of a relationship witle @orrowing entity which is collateralized by twommercial strip malls who
balance at December 31, 2012 was $1.6 million.dPtbs there is a pending contract for sale on ainthe properties, which upon consummation, witluee the outstandil
balance to approximately $600,000.00. This facilvjl remain in foreclosure until such time as ®@perty is sold. While there has been a certaial lef depreciation of tf
underlying collateral, the Bank believes that uponveyance and ultimate disposition of these tvopeities, the Bank will not incur a loss on thesslities.

A loan is considered impaired when it is probatble borrower will not repay the loan according te thriginal contractual terms of the loan agreem@fe. hav
determined that first mortgage loans on one- to-family properties and all consumer loans repretgge groups of smalldralance homogeneous loans that are collec
evaluated. Additionally, we have determined thatraignificant delay (less than 90 days) will natise a loan to be classified as impaired if we exoecollect all amounts d
including interest accrued at the contractual egerate for the period of delay. We independesxigiuate all loans identified as impaired. We estarcredit losses on impail
loans based on the present value of expected tash or the fair value of the underlying collateifathe loan repayment will be derived from theesal operation of su
collateral. Impaired loans, or portions of suchnlgaare charged off when we determine that a eshliass has occurred. Until such time, an allowaocdoan losses
maintained for estimated losses. Cash receiptsnpaired loans are applied first to accrued intereseivable unless otherwise required by the leamg, except when
impaired loan is also a nonaccrual loan, in whiakecthe portion of the receipts related to intasetcognized as income. At December 31, 2012hadeone hundred fortfive
loans with an unpaid principal balance totaling $4million which are classified as impaired andwinich loan loss allowances totaling $2.1 milliorvéeeen establishe
During 2012, interest income of $2.1 million wasagnized on impaired loans during the time of impait.
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The following table sets forth delinquencies in man portfolio as of the dates indicated:

At December 31, 201.

At December 31, 201:

6C-90 Days Greater than 90 Days 60-90 Days Greater than 90 Days
Number Principal Number Principal Number Principal Number Principal
of Balance of Balance of Balance of Balance
Loans of Loans Loans of Loans Loans of Loans Loans of Loans
(Dollars in Thousands)
Real estate mortgag
One- to four-
family residentia 10 $ 1,941 10 $ 2,34¢ 8 2,49¢ 38 $ 11,847
Constructior 1 1,17¢ 1 13C 1 13C 8 3,66(
Home equity 7 717 12 1,51¢€ 13 1,01¢ 1¢ 1,181
Commercial and mu-family 11 5,24¢ 22 9,27¢ 14 6,34( 5€ 21,08(
Total 29 9,077 45 13,26¢ 3€ 9,98t 121 37,76¢
Commercial busines 2 152 9 1,51¢ — — 11 1,78¢
Consume — — — — 1 1C — —
Total delinquent loans 31 $ 9,22¢ 54 $ 14,78 37 9,99: 132 $ 39,55!
Delinquent loans to total loal 0.9% 1.5¢% 1.17% 4.6/%
At December 31, 201( At December 31, 200!
6C-90 Days Greater than 90 Days 60-90 Days Greater than 90 Days
Number Principal Number Principal Number Principal Number Principal
of Balance of Balance of Balance of Balance
Loans of Loans Loans of Loans Loans of Loans Loans of Loans
(Dollars in Thousands)
Real estate mortgag
One- to four-
family residentia 9 $ 3,70¢ 48 $ 15,11¢ 3 3,97¢ 5 $ 1,55¢
Constructior — — 7 2,77: — — 7 4,34%
Home equity 7 694 20 1,632 2 517 2 251
Commercial and multi-family 9 5,391 64 21,14° 5 2,72¢ 8 5,28(
Total 25 9,791 13¢ 40,66" 1C 7,21¢ 22 11,43
Commercial busines 4 45¢€ 5 861 1 36¢ 1 50C
Consumer 1 5 4 28% — — — —
Total delinquent loan 30 $ 10,25: 148 $ 41,81 11 7,58¢ 22 $ 11,93
Delinquent loans to total loans 1.31% 5.35% 1.86% 2.92%
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Real estate mortgag
One- to four-

family residentia
Constructior

Home equity

Commercial and mu-family
Total

Commercial busines

Consume
Total delinquent loan

Delinquent loans to total loal

At December 31, 200¢

6C-90 Days Greater Than 90 Days
Principal Principal
Number Balance Number Balance
of Loans of Loans of Loans of Loans

(Dollars in Thousands)

3 3 1,507 4 % 1,218
1 36( — —
2 26¢ 5 2,51¢
6 2,132 9 3,72¢
6 $ 2,132 9 8 3,72¢
0.51% 0.9(%




Table of Content

The table below sets forth the amounts and categjofinon-performing assets in the Bank’s loanfplist Loans are placed on naecrual status when delinquent m

than 90 days or when the collection of principal/aninterest become doubtful. Foreclosed asselsde assets acquired in settlement of loans.

Non-accruing loans

One-to four-family residentia
Constructior

Home equity

Commercial and mu-family
Commercial busines
Consume

Total

Accruing loans delinquent more than 90 d¢
One-to foul-family residentia

Constructior

Home equity

Commercial and mu-family

Commercial busines

Consume

Total

Total nor-performing loans
Foreclosed asse

Total non-performing assets

Total nor-performing assets as a percentage of total a

Total nor-performing loans as a percentage of total Ic

At December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in Thousands)
2,16 $ 1551 $ 15,11t  $ 155¢ % 1,213
13C 4,04( 2,77 4,34: —
1,564 1,72¢ 1,632 251 —
13,04: 22,28( 21,14; 5,28( 2,51t
3,15¢ 4,26¢ 861 50C —
— — 288 — —
20,05¢ 47,82¢ 41,812 11,93¢ 3,72¢
1,228 — — — —
227 — — — —
1,38¢ — — — —
2,83¢ — — — —
22,89t 47,82t 41,81 11,93: 3,72¢
3,27¢ 6,57( 3,60z 1,27C 1,43t
26,16¢ $ 54,39 $ 4541 % 13,200 $ 5,16:
2.2:% 4.47% 4.1(% 2.0c% 0.8¢%
2.45% 5.61% 5.35% 2.92% 0.9(%

For the year ended December 31, 2012, gross ihiemsne which would have been recorded had ourawenuing loans been current in accordance wittr tiréginal

terms amounted to $1.06 million. We received ardnaed $649,000 in interest income for such loanshfe year ended December 31, 2012.
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Classified AssetsOur policies provide for a classification systéam problem assets. When we classify problem assetsmay establish general allowances for
losses in an amount deemed prudent by managemener& allowances represent loss allowances wtaglke been established to recognize the inherentagskciated wit
lending activities, but which, unlike specific allances, have not been allocated to particular proldssets. A portion of general loss allowancesbbsihed to cover possil
losses related to assets classified as substandaalibtful may be included in determining our fegpry capital. Specific valuation allowances foah losses generally do
qualify as regulatory capital. At December 31, 2042 had $5.7 million in assets classified as dolbof which $5.7 million were classified as impad, $22.2 million in asse
classified as substandard, of which $18.6 millicgrevclassified as impaired and $25.1 million ineésslassified as special mention, of which $17illan were classified &
impaired. The loans classified as substandard septerimarily commercial loans secured eitherdsjdential real estate, commercial real estateeavihequipment. The log
that have been classified substandard were cledsifi such primarily because either updated finhirdormation has not been timely provided, or tiodlateral underlying tt
loan is in the process of being revalued. As alresiHurricane Sandy, our levels of classifiededssare expected to remain elevated through dttleadirst half of 2013.

The Companys internal credit risk grades are based on thenitiefis currently utilized by the banking regulat@gencies. The grades assigned and definitians:
follows, and loans graded excellent, above avemgaad and watch list (risk ratings 1-4) are treaedpass” for grading purposes:

5 — Special Mentiontoans currently performing but with potential weakses including adverse trends in borrosveperations, credit quality, financial strengthpossibl
collateral deficiency.

6 — Substandare Loans that are inadequately protected by cuseunnd worth, paying capacity, and collateral supparans on “nonaccruaBtatus. The loan needs special
corrective attention.

7 — Doubtful Weaknesses in credit quality and collateral supmake full collection improbable, but pendingseaable factors remain sufficient to defer the kiagus.
8 — Loss Continuance as a bankable asset is not warrartedever, this does not preclude future attempp=etal recovery.

Allowances for Loan LossesA provision for loan losses is charged to operatibased on managemeanévaluation of the losses that may be incurreduinloar
portfolio. In addition, our determination of the anmt of the allowance for loan losses is subjecet@ew by the New Jersey Department of Bankinglasdrance and the FDI
as part of their examination process. After a nevdé the information available, our regulators ntiggguire the establishment of an additional alloeea Any increase in the Ic
loss allowance required by regulators would hawegative impact on our earnings. Management revibevadequacy of the allowance on at least a qiiabtasis to ensure tf
the provision for loan losses has been chargedsigearnings in an amount necessary to maintaialtbwance at a level that is adequate based omgeanent assessment
probable estimated losses. The Compamyéthodology for assessing the adequacy of tbevafice for loan losses consists of several keyaiésn These elements incluc
general allocated allowance for impaired loanqexic allowance for impaired loans, and an ureted portion.

The Company consistently applies the following coehpnsive methodology. During the quarterly revigvihe allowance for loan losses, the Company idens ¢
variety of factors that include:

« General economic conditior

« Trends in charge-offs.

« Trends and levels of delinquent loa

« Trends and levels of non-performing loans, inclgdmans over 90 days delinquent.

« Trends in volume and terms of loa

« Levels of allowance for specific classified loans.

« Credit concentration

The methodology includes the segregation of the fmatfolio into two divisions. Loans that are merfiing and loans that are impaired. Loans whiclparéorming ar
evaluated homogeneously by loan class or loan fJpe.allowance of performing loans is evaluatedetlasn historical loan experience, including consitien of peer los
analysis, with an adjustment for qualitative fastdue to economic conditions in the market. Imphicans are loans which are more than 60 daysciedint or troubled de
restructured. These loans are individually evatlidite loan loss either by current appraisal, esitiaeconomic factor, or net present value. Managemayiews the overe
estimate for feasibility and bases the loan lossipion accordingly. As of December 31, 2012, raagrual loans differed from the amount of totahl®@ast due greater than
days due to troubled debt restructuring of loanEkware maintained on naxccrual status for a minimum of six months un# Borrower has demonstrated their ability to sg
the terms of the restructured loan. The Compary ralsintains an unallocated allowance. The unakatallowance is used to cover any factors or ¢mmdi which may cause
potential loan loss but are not specifically idéalile. It is prudent to maintain an unallocatextipn of the allowance because no matter how ldetain analysis of potent
loan losses is performed, these estimates lack stengent of precision. Management must make etsnssing assumptions and information that is dftésjective and subje
to change.
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The following table sets forth an analysis of tt@Bs allowance for loan losses.

Balance at beginning of perit

Charge-offs:

One- to four-family residentia
Constructior

Commercial businest)
Commercial and mu-family
Home equity®

Consume

Total charge-offs

Recoveries

Net charg-offs
Provisions charge to operations
Ending balanc

Ratio of non-performing assets to total assetseaehd of period
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of totatsoautstandin

Ratio of net charge-offs during the period to tétains outstanding at end of the peric
Ratio of net charge-offs during the period to nenfprming loans

(1) Includes business lines of credit.
(2) Includes home equity lines of credit.

11

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in Thousands)
10,50¢ $ 8411 $ 6,64¢ $ 5,304 4,06t
79¢ 122 — — —
29z 687 15 — 90
612 24 351 — 3
1,36( 1,17¢ 328 20% —
24 — — — —
— 27 — 7 8
3,081 2,03¢ 68¢ 212 101
35 25 12 2 40
3,04¢ 2,00¢ 677 21C 61
4,90( 4,10( 2,45( 1,55( 1,30¢
12,360 $ 10,50¢ $ 841i $ 6,644 5,30
2.2:% 4.41% 4.1(% 2.0% 0.8¢%
1.32% 1.22% 1.06% 1.62% 1.2¢%
0.32% 0.24% 0.0% 0.0% 0.01%
13.3(% 4.2(% 1.62% 1.7% 1.64%
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Allocation of the Allowance for Loan LosseEhe following table illustrates the allocationtbé allowance for loan losses for each categotgaf. The allocation of tl
allowance to each category is not necessarily atidie of future loss in any particular category alws not restrict our use of the allowance to db#usses in other loi
categories.

At December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of
Loans in Loans in Loans in Loans in Loans in
each each each each each
Category in Category in Category in Category in Category in

Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans
(Dollars in Thousands)

Type of loan:
One- to four-family $ 1,967 21.6(% $ 2,67¢ 25586 $ 171 29.9¢% $  43C 18.7% $ 68¢ 17.9%
Constructior 95¢ 2.4¢ 304 1.9¢ 42¢ 2.2¢ 1,437 12.5¢ 941 15.1¢
Home equity 47t 6.4¢ 677 8.1C 204 8.1 18¢ 8.3¢ 167 9.2Z
Commercial and mu-family 8,051 62.8¢ 5,79¢ 55.4% 6,17¢ 52.4% 4,18¢ 54.71 3,17¢ 54.0i
Commercial busines 82( 6.37 1,041 8.7t 1,28¢ 6.92 36t 5.5C 21€ 3.4z
Consume 59 0.17 10 0.1¢€ 18 0.2¢ 42 0.1t 117 0.21
Unallocated 32 — — — 13: — — — — —
Total $ 12,36: 100.0% $ 10,50¢ 100.0% $ 8,41i 100.0(% $ 6,64« 100.0% $ 5,30¢ 100.0(%
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Investment Activities

Investment SecuritiesWe are required under federal regulations to taaira minimum amount of liquid assets that mayrivested in specified shoterm securitie
and certain other investments. The level of ligas$ets varies depending upon several factors,dingju (i) the yields on investment alternatives) ¢ur judgment as to tl
attractiveness of the yields then available intiefieto other opportunities, (iii) expectation afdre yield levels, and (iv) our projections ashe shortterm demand for funds
be used in loan origination and other activitieselstment securities, including mortgage-backedr#tés, are classified at the time of purchasesebaupon managemesnt’
intentions and abilities, as securities held-tourit or securities available for sale. Debt seisiacquired with the intent and ability to hatdmaturity are classified as held-to-
maturity and are stated at cost and adjusted fortaration of premium and accretion of discountjehhare computed using the level yield method amdgnized as adjustme
of interest income. All other debt and equity sé®g are classified as available for sale to sericipally as a source of liquidity.

Current regulatory and accounting guidelines reggréhvestment securities require us to categosezeurities as held-toraturity, available for sale or trading. As
December 31, 2012, the amortized cost of secuiilessified as held-toraturity was $164.6 million. We had $1.2 million securities classified as available for sale, ap
securities classified as trading. Securities di@skas available for sale are reported for finahporting purposes at the fair value with netndres in the fair value from per
to period included as a separate component of lstdd&rs’ equity, net of income taxes. As of Decenie 2012, our securities classified as heldrtturity had a fair value
$171.6 million. Changes in the fair value of settesi classified as held-to-maturity or available $ale do not affect our income, unless we detegrttiere to be an other-than-
temporary impairment for those securities in areafized loss position. As of December 31, 2012, agament concluded that all unrealized losses vesn@drary in natui
since they are related to interest rate fluctuati@ther than any underlying credit quality of ibsuers. Additionally, the Company has no planseibthese securities and
concluded that it is unlikely it would have to sihiése securities prior to the anticipated recoeétye unrealized losses. While these securitieewlassified as held to matur
ASC 320 (formerly FAS 115) allows sales of secesitso designated, provided that a substantialopo(tit least 85%) of the principal balance has t@eartized prior to tt
sale. During the year ended December 31, 2012¢epdscfrom sales of securities held to maturitylédtapproximately $30.6 million and resulted ingggains of $405,000 &
gross losses of $56,000.

As of December 31, 2012, our investment policyvedid investments in instruments such as: (i) U.8a3ury obligations; (ii) U.S. federal agency oriedly sponsore
agency obligations; (iii) mortgadeacked securities; and (iv) certificates of depoHite Board of Directors may authorize additiomaleistments. As of December 31, 2012
no longer had a U.S. Government agency securitigfopo. The decrease during 2012 reflects the@se of call options of $6.3 million in U.S. gowenent agency securities.

As a source of liquidity and to supplement our Iegdactivities, we have invested in residential tpage-backed securities. Mortgdggeked securities generally yi
less than the loans that underlie such securigeause of the cost of payment guarantees or @eldéncements that reduce credit risk. Mortgageked securities can serve
collateral for borrowings and, through repaymeassa source of liquidity. Mortgage-backed secuitepresent a participation interest in a poolimjle-family or other type ¢
mortgages. Principal and interest payments areeddssm the mortgage originators, through interrges (generally governmesponsored enterprises) that pool and repau
the participation interests in the form of secestito investors, like us. The governmsponsored enterprises guarantee the payment afigairand interest to investors
include Freddie Mac, Ginnie Mae, and Fannie Mae.

Mortgagebacked securities typically are issued with stg@téacipal amounts. The securities are backed byspamfomortgage loans that have interest ratesatetvithir
a set range and have varying maturities. The uyidgrpool of mortgages can be composed of eithkedfrate or adjustable rate mortgage loans. Moetgpagked securities ¢
generally referred to as mortgage participationifazates or passhrough certificates. The interest rate risk chianastics of the underlying pool of mortgages (ifexed rate o
adjustable rate) and the prepayment risk, are gasseto the certificate holder. The life of a magg-backed pagkrough security is equal to the life of the unyied
mortgages. Expected maturities will differ from tractual maturities due to scheduled repaymentsanduse borrowers may have the right to call epay obligations with «
without prepayment penalties.
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Securities Portfolio The following table sets forth the carrying vabfeour securities portfolio and FHLB stock at thetes indicated.

At December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(In Thousands)

Securities available for sal

Equity securitie: $ 1,24C $ 1,048 $ 1,09¢
Securities held to maturit
U.S. Government and Agency securit — 6,31¢ 30,83¢
Mortgage-backed securitie 162,90¢ 198,87 126,95!
Corporate subordinated not — — 6,00(
Municipal obligations 1,36: 1,37C 1,37¢
Trust originated preferred secur 37€ 40z 402
Total securities held to maturity 164,64¢ 206,96! 165,57:
FHLB stock 7,69¢ 7,49¢ 6,72°
Total investment securities $ 173,58t $ 21550t $ 173,39
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The following table shows our securities held-toumity purchase sale and repayment activitiestergeriods indicated.
Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(In Thousands)

Securities acquired through mergel $ — 3 34,96¢ $ 86,77(

Purchases:

Fixec-rate $ 57,33: $ 95,537 $ 104,99
Total purchases $ 57,33. $ 95,537 $ 104,99°

Sales:

Fixec-rate $ 30,23t $ 2,420 $ —
Total sales $ 30,23t $ 2,420 $ —

Principal Repayments:

Repayment of principal $ (67,489 $ (85,089 $ (156,75)
(Decrease) in other items, r (1,929 (1,60%) (2,087)

Net (decrease) increas

©*

(42,31) $ 41,39! $ 32,92¢

15




Table of Content

Maturities of Securities PortfolioThe following table sets forth information regagithe scheduled maturities, carrying valuespestiéd market values, and weigt
average yields for the Barsktdebt securities portfolio at December 31, 2012dtractual maturity. The following table does take into consideration the effects of schec
repayments or the effects of possible prepayments.

December 31, 201,
More than One to More than five to ten

Within one year five years years More than ten years Total investment securities
Carrying  Average Carrying Average Carrying Average Carrying Average Fair Carrying  Average
Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Value Yield

(Dollars in Thousands)

Mortgage-backed securitie $ — —% $ 4 5.86% $ 9,48( 2.2¢% $153,42! 3.0% $169,77: $162,90¢ 3.01%

Municipal obligations — — — — 38¢ 4.9¢ 97t 5.64 1,45¢ 1,36: 5.4¢

Trust originated preferred secu — — — — — — 37€ 7.6¢ 37€ 37€ 7.6¢
Total investment securitit $ — —% $ 4 5.86% $ 9,86¢ 2.3%% $154,77¢ 3.0% $171,600 $164,64 3.0%%
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Sources of Funds

Our major external source of funds for lending atiter investment purposes are deposits. Funddsarelerived from the receipt of payments on lo@nepayment ¢
loans, maturities of investment securities and gagébacked securities and borrowings. Scheduled loaipal repayments are a relatively stable sourfcéuinds, while
deposit inflows and outflows and loan prepaymergssignificantly influenced by general interesesmfnd market conditions.

Deposits. Consumer and commercial deposits are attractedipally from within our primary market area thgiuthe offering of a selection of deposit instruits
including demand, NOW, savings and club accountmay market accounts, and term certificate accoeposit account terms vary according to the mimmbalanc
required, the time period the funds must remaideposit, and the interest rate.

The interest rates paid by us on deposits aret $keé airection of our senior management. Interatsts are determined based on our liquidity reqergs, interest rat
paid by our competitors, our growth goals, and iapple regulatory restrictions and requirementsofBecember 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 wé&&admillion and $9.
million in brokered deposits, respectively.

Deposit AccountsThe following table sets forth the dollar amoahtleposits in the various types of deposit prograre offered as of the dates indicated.

December 31

2012 2011 2010
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Rate @) Amount Rate @) Amount Rate @) Amount

(Dollars in Thousands)

Demanc —% $ 85,95( —% $ 78,58¢ —% $ 69,47:
NOW 0.2t 120,76! 0.5¢4 112,60! 0.8t 80,77¢
Savings and club accour 0.1¢ 256,76 0.4C 265,541 0.7¢ 245,95:
Money marke 0.3¢ 63,83¢ 0.6¢ 67,59: 0.8t 55,67¢
Certificates of deposit 1.3 413,46! 1.5C 453,29: 1.7 434,41!

Total 0.7¢% $ 940,78t 1.0(% $ 977,62: 13% $ 886,28t

(1) Represents the average rate paid during the yea
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The following table sets forth our deposit flowsidg the periods indicated.

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

(Dollars in Thousands)

Beginning of period $ 977620 $ 886,28t $ 463,73
Net deposit (43,709 83,01( 414,03
Interest credited on deposit accounts 6,86 8,32f 8,51¢
Total (decrease) increase in deposit accc (36,83) 91,33t 422,55(
Ending balanc $ 940,78t $ 977,620 $ 886,28
Percent (decrease) incre: B.70% 10.31% 91.12%

(1) Includes deposits totaling $111,365 receive@0ti1l in connection with the Allegiance Communitgn& acquisition and $435,810 in 2010 received imeation with th
Pamrapo Bancorp, Inc., acquisition.

Jumbo Certificates of DepositAs of December 31, 2012, the aggregate amouatitstanding certificates of deposit in amounts grethan or equal to $100,000 \
approximately $234.6 million. The following tabledicates the amount of our certificates of depais§i100,000 or more by time remaining until magurit

At December 31, 201

Maturity Period (In Thousands)

Within three month: $ 56,67(
Three through twelve montl 96,87
Over twelve month 81,03«
Total $ 234,57¢

The following table presents, by rate category,aautificate of deposit accounts as of the datdeated.

At December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

(Dollars in Thousands)
Certificate of deposit rate

0.00%- 0.99% $ 210,89 51.0% $ 165,93: 36.6(% $ — —%
1.00%- 1.99% 108,37¢ 26.21 172,98: 38.1¢ 312,59 71.9¢
2.00%- 2.99% 53,71¢ 12.9¢ 58,39( 12.8¢ 74,26 17.1
3.00%- 3.99% 39,757 9.62 52,38: 11.5¢ 41,00« 9.4
4.00%- 4.99% 36 0.01 2,88¢ 0.64 5,531 1.27
5.00% - 5.99% 68( 0.1¢€ 721 0.1¢€ 1,01¢ 0.2t
Total $ 413,46¢ 100.0% $ 453,29. 100.006 $ 434,41! 100.0(%

18




Table of Content
The following table presents, by rate category rémaining period to maturity of certificate of dsft accounts outstanding as of December 31, 2012.
Maturity Date

1 Year Over 1 Over 2 Over
or Less to 2 Years to 3 Years 3 Years Total

(In Thousands)
Interest rate

0.00%- 0.99% $ 19651 $  1427. $ 111 $ 3 $ 21089
1.00%- 1.99% 69,25 29,39 2,52¢ 7,19¢ 108,37
2.00%- 2.99% 10,19: 19,88 15,63¢ 8,00¢ 53,71¢
3.00%- 3.99% 9,52¢ 30,23 = = 39,75
4.00%- 4.99% — 36 — — 36
5.00%- 5.99% 68C — _ _ 68C

Total $ 286,16, $ 0382 $  1827¢ $ 1520t $ _ 413,46

Borrowings. Beginning September 7, 2010, the Federal Home Bank of New York (“FHLBNY”)replaced the existing Overnight Repricing AdvanoegPam an
its associated companion products, the Overnighe bf Credit (“OLOC”),OLOC Plus, OLOC Companion, and OLOC Companion Riitis the new Overnight Advance. T
new Overnight Advance permits the Bank to borrowraight up to its maximum borrowing capacity at Bi#LBNY. The Bank is no longer restricted to theypous borrowin
limits of 10% (OLOC) or up to 20% (OLOC Plus) ofabassets. At December 31, 2012, the Bandtal credit exposure cannot exceed 50% of itd &msets, or $585.7 millic
based on the borrowing limitations outlined in t#ederal Home Loan Bank of New Yoskmember products guide. The total credit expoBomé to 50% of total assets
recalculated each quarter. Additionally, at Decan8fe 2012 we had a floating rate junior subordidatiebenture of $4.1 million which has been cadlailthe Company’
option since June 17, 2009, and quarterly theneafte

The following table sets forth information concerpibalances and interest rates on our short-ternolwimgs at the dates and for the periods indicated

At or For the Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

(Dollars in Thousands)

Balance at end of peric $ 17,000 $ — 3 -
Average balance during peri $ 1,71C % — 8 —
Maximum outstanding at any month e $ 17,000 $ — 3 =
Weighted average interest rate at end of pe 0.31% —% —%
Average interest rate during peri 0.31% —% —%
Employees

At December 31, 2012, we had 206 full-time equintitnd 63 partime employees. None of our employees is repredédnte collective bargaining group. We beli
that our relationship with our employees is good.

Subsidiaries

We have three nobank subsidiaries. BCB Holding Company InvestmeatpCwas established in 2004 for the purpose oflihgland investing in securities. O
securities authorized to be purchased by BCB ConitsnBank are held by BCB Holding Company Investméntp. At December 31, 2012, this company held ¥188llion in
securities. With the merger with Pamrapo Bancarp., lwe acquired Pamrapo Service Corporation whahbeen inactive since May 2010. BCB New York Mg@maent, Inc
was established in October 2012 for the purpod®lafing and investing in various loan products anesting in securities. For the period ended Ddmm31, 2012, there w
no activity related to this subsidiary.
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Supervision and Requlation

Bank holding companies and banks are extensivgjulaged under both federal and state law. These kawd regulations are intended to protect depssitow
shareholders. The description below is limitededain material aspects of the statutes and regotaaddressed, and is not intended to be a coengiéesicription of such statu
and regulations and their effects on the ComparheBank.

As further described below under the heading “ThmldFrank Act”, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street ReformdaConsumer Protection Act (“Dodd-Frank Actiyill
significantly change the current bank regulatorycttire described in this section and will affée tending, investment, trading and operating & of financial institutior
and their holding companies. These and any othengds in applicable laws or regulations, whetheCbygress or regulatory agencies, may have a rakgdfect on th
business and prospects of the Company and the Bank.

The Dodd-Frank Act

The DoddFrank Act has changed the current bank regulatougtsire and is affecting the lending, investmerstding and operating activities of financial itustions
and their holding companies. The Dodink Act eliminated the Office of Thrift Supenasi and requires that federal savings associatiensegulated by the Office of t
Comptroller of the Currency (the primary federagukator for national banks). The Dod#dank Act also authorizes the Board of Governorshef Federal Reserve Bo
(“Federal Reserve”) to supervise and regulatesafings and loan holding companies.

The DoddFrank Act requires the Federal Reserve to set nimirnapital levels for bank holding companies thiatas stringent as those required for insured depy
institutions, and the components of Tier 1 capitauld be restricted to capital instruments thataneently considered to be Tier 1 capital for mresbidepository institutions.
addition, the proceeds of trust preferred secuaritie excluded from Tier 1 capital unless suchrgesiwere issued prior to May 19, 2010 by banlsavings and loan holdi
companies with less than $15 billion of assets. [Egeslation also establishes a floor for capifaingured depository institutions that cannot bedothan the standards in efl
today, and directs the federal banking regulatorisnplement new leverage and capital requiremeiittirwl8 months. These new leverage and capitalirepents must tal
into account off-balance sheet activities and otls#s, including risks relating to securitized gwots and derivatives.

The DoddFrank Act created a new Consumer Financial PratedBureau with broad powers to supervise and eefoansumer protection laws. The Const
Financial Protection Bureau has broad rulemakirigaity for a wide range of consumer protectiondaiat apply to all banks and savings institutiomsluding the authority 1
prohibit “unfair, deceptive or abusiveicts and practices. The Consumer Financial Prote&ureau has examination and enforcement authovigy all banks and savir
institutions with more than $10 billion in asseBanks and savings institutions with $10 billionless in assets will be examined by their applicdialek regulators. The n
legislation also weakens the federal preemptiorilaa for national banks and federal savings dasioos, and gives the state attorneys generaliity to enforce applicab
federal consumer protection laws.

The Dodd-Frank Act also broadens the base for Fid$Orance assessments. In accordance with the Badde Act, the FDIC has promulgated rules underch
assessments are based on the average consoliotategstets less tangible equity capital of a fir@nnstitution. The Dodd-rank Act also permanently increases the maxi
amount of deposit insurance for banks, savingstutisins and credit unions to $250,000 per depaositetroactive to January 1, 2008, and Imterest bearing transacti
accounts had unlimited deposit insurance througteBer 31, 2012. Lastly, the Do&idank Act increases stockholder influence over é@aff directors by requiring compar
to give stockholders a non-binding vote on exeeutiempensation and so-called “golden parachpég’ments, and by authorizing the Securities anch&xge Commission
promulgate rules that would allow stockholders émimate and solicit votes for their own candidatsiig a compang’ proxy materials. The legislation also directsFeeere
Reserve to promulgate rules prohibiting excessbrapensation paid to bank holding company executregmrdless of whether the company is publiclgieta

Bank Holding Company Requlation

As a bank holding company registered under the B#oiing Company Act of 1956, as amended, the Camjmsubject to the regulation and supervisiorliegple tc
bank holding companies by the Federal Reserve Cidmpany is also subject to the provisions of thevNersey Banking Act of 1948 (the “New Jersey Baglct”) and th
regulations of the Commissioner of the New Jersepdbtment of Banking and Insurance (“Commissionditie Company is required to file reports with theléral Reserve al
the Commissioner regarding its business operatiodghose of its subsidiaries.

Federal Regulation. The Bank Holding Company Act requires, among othirgs, the prior approval of the Federal Resemvany case where a bank holding comj
proposes to (i) acquire all or substantially altlué assets of any other bank, (ii) acquire dioechdirect ownership or control of more than 5%t outstanding voting stock
any bank (unless it owns a majority of such compamgting shares) or (iii) merge or consolidate vétlty other bank holding company. The Federal Reseill not approv
any acquisition, merger, or consolidation that wlobbve a substantially anti-competitive effect,essl the anttompetitive impact of the proposed transaction |é&anty
outweighed by a greater public interest in meethrgy convenience and needs of the community to bedeThe Federal Reserve also considers capitjusty and oth
financial and managerial resources and future aisppof the companies and the banks concernedhtogeith the convenience and needs of the commtmibe served, whi
reviewing acquisitions or mergers.

The Bank Holding Company Act generally prohibitsaak holding company, with certain limited excepsipfrom (i) acquiring or retaining direct or inelit ownershi
or control of more than 5% of the outstanding vgptatock of any company which is not a bank or baolkding company, or (ii) engaging directly or irelitly in activities othe
than those of banking, managing or controlling [zamk performing services for its subsidiaries egalsuch nobanking business is determined by the Federal Reserbe s
closely related to banking or managing or contngllbanks as to be properly incident thereto.

The Bank Holding Company Act has been amendedripbank holding companies and banks, which megam capital, management and Community Reinves
Act standards, to engage in a broader range ofbaoking activities. In addition, bank holding comfes which elect to become financial holding conigamay engage
certain banking and ndmanking activities without prior Federal Reserverapal. At this time, the Company has elected ndé¢come a financial holding company, as it
not engage in any activities not permissible farksa

There are a number of obligations and restriction®sed on bank holding companies and their degrysiistitution subsidiaries by law and regulatppficy that ar
designed to minimize potential loss to the depesitd such depository institutions and the FDIQumasice funds in the event the depository institut®in danger of defau
Under a policy of the Federal Reserve with respediank holding company operations, a bank holdiogipany is required to serve as a source of fishrstiength to it
subsidiary depository institutions and to commgagrces to support such institutions in circumstanghere it might not do so absent such policy. Héderal Reserve also |
the authority under the Bank Holding Company Actequire a bank holding company to terminate aniyicor to relinquish control of a nobhank subsidiary upon the Fedt
Reserve’s determination that such activity or aadrgonstitutes a serious risk to the financial smess and stability of any bank subsidiary of taekbtholding company.
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The Federal Reserve has adopted risk-based cagpitilines for bank holding companies. The fislsed capital guidelines are designed to make atgyl capite
requirements more sensitive to differences in pisKile among banks and bank holding companieactmunt for offbalance sheet exposure, and to minimize disinoesfio
holding liquid assets. Under these guidelines,tasm®d offbalance sheet items are assigned to broad risgar&e each with appropriate weights. The resultiagital ratio
represent capital as a percentage of total riskpwted assets and off-balance sheet items.

The Company is subject to regulatory capital reznnts and guidelines imposed by the Federal Resehich are substantially similar to those impolsgdhe FDIC
on depository institutions within their jurisdictie. At December 31, 2012, the Company, was corsiderbe a well capitalized Bank Holding Company.

The Federal Reserve may set higher capital reqeimésrfor holding companies whose circumstancesantit. For example, holding companies experienaierna
growth or making acquisitions are expected to na@&instrong capital positions substantially abowe inimum supervisory levels, without significaetiance on intangib
assets.

As noted above, the Dodgtank Act requires the Federal Reserve to set mimmapital levels for bank holding companies thatas stringent as those requirec
insured depository institutions, and the componefitier 1 capital would be restricted to capitastruments that are currently considered to be Tieapital for insure
depository institutions. In June 2012, propose@gukere issued that would implement these diretiBeich changes when finalized, and others that meagroposed a
implemented in the future, may affect the Compaucgigital ratios and risk-adjusted assets.

New Jersey Regulation. Under the New Jersey Banking Act, a company owmingontrolling a savings bank is regulated as &bwiding company and must 1
certain reports with the Commissioner and is sulfe@xamination by the Commissioner. Under the Newsey Banking Act, as well as Federal law, negremay acquil
control of the Company or the Bank without firstathing approval of such acquisition of controlrfrthe Federal Reserve and the Commissioner.

Bank Requlation

As a New Jersey-chartered commercial bank, the Basltbject to the regulation, supervision, andwération of the Commissioner. As an FDitsured institution, tr
Bank is subject to the regulation, supervision examination of the FDIC. The regulations of the ERInd the Commissioner impact virtually all of @ativities, including th
minimum level of capital we must maintain, our ébito pay dividends, our ability to expand througgw branches or acquisitions and various othetensat

Insurance of Deposit Accounts. The FDIC insures deposits at FDIC insured finaniaistitutions such as the Bank. Deposit accountiérBank are insured by the FL
generally up to a maximum of $250,000 per separatslired depositor and up to a maximum of $250f608elf-directed retirement accounts.

Under the FDIC's current riskased assessment system, insured institutionssaignad to one of four risk categories based omrsigory evaluations, regulatc
capital levels and certain other risk factors. Assgents are based on an instituorisk category and certain specified adjustmerith Wigher assessments applyin¢
institutions deemed most risky.

As part of its plan to restore the Deposit Insueafand in the wake of the large number of bankufed following the financial crisis, the FDIC impalsa specii
assessment of 5 basis points for the second quarg809. In addition, the FDIC required all insdiii@stitutions to prepay their quarterly ribksed assessments for the fo
quarter of 2009, and for all of 2010, 2011 and 2@¥2part of this prepayment, the FDIC assumed aabfiual growth in the assessment base and applidhais point increa
in assessment rates effective January 1, 2011f Beaember 31, 2012 our prepaid FDIC premium assesswas fully utilized.

In February 2011, the FDIC published a final rubeler the Dodd=rank Act to reform the deposit insurance assesssystem. The rule redefined the assessmen
used for calculating deposit insurance assessneffietstive April 1, 2011. Under the new rule, ase@asts are based on an institut®@verage consolidated total assets n
average tangible equity as opposed to total depdihce the new base is much larger than therdunese, the FDIC also lowered assessment ratdmsthe total amount
revenue collected from the industry is not sigaifitty altered. The new rule is expected to bemsefialler financial institutions, which typically yemore on deposits for fundir
and shift more of the burden for supporting theiiaace fund to larger institutions, which have tgeaccess to non-deposit sources of funding.

The Dodd-Frank Act also extended the unlimited dépmsurance on non-interest bearing transactiooents through December 31, 2012. Unlike the FBIC’
Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program, the insueammvided under the Dodd-Frank Act did not extemtbw-interest NOW accounts, and there was no separs¢sssel
on covered accounts.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the Ripiéh a finding that an institution has engagednisafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe auwntscondition t
continue operations or has violated any applicke regulation, rule, order or condition impossdthe FDIC. We do not currently know of any praeticondition or violatio
that may lead to termination of our deposit insaean

In addition to the FDIC assessments, the FinanCimigporation (“FICO”)is authorized to impose and collect, with the applof the FDIC, assessments for anticip
payments, issuance costs and custodial fees orshissuled by the FICO in the 1980s to recapitaligeformer Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Catipor The bonc
issued by the FICO are due to mature in 2017 thr@@3 9. For the year ended December 31, 2012, idebFa,000 in FICO assessments.

Capital Adequacy Guidelines . The FDIC has promulgated ridlased capital rules, which are designed to makelatgy capital requirements more sensitiv
differences in risk profile among banks, to accdonbff-balance sheet exposure, and to minimiaendentives for holding liquid assets. Under theses, assets and dffalanc:
sheet items are assigned to broad risk catege@e$, with appropriate weights. The resulting cpétéos represent capital as a percentage of tisfeleighted assets and off-
balance sheet items. These rules are substarsiadilar to the Federal Reserve rules discussedeabov

In addition to the riskbased capital rules, the FDIC has adopted a minirfiien 1 capital (leverage) ratio. This measurenigrgubstantially similar to the Fede

Reserve leverage capital measurement discusse@.ahbDecember 31, 2012, the Bank’s ratio of tatpital to risk-weighted assets was 14.03%. Our Tieapital to risk-
weighted assets was 12.78%, and our Tier 1 cdpitalerage assets was 8.38%.
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As noted above, the Doderank Act establishes a floor for capital of inglidepository institutions that cannot be lower ttt@nstandards in effect today, and direct
federal banking regulators to implement new leveragd capital requirements within 18 months. These leverage and capital requirements must takeaiotount offealanc
sheet activities and other risks, including risktating to securitized products and derivativesJume 2012, the Federal Bank Regulators issuedopeoprules that wou
implement the Dodd-Frank Ast'directives as well as recommendations of theriat®nal Basel Committee on Banking Supervisione proposed rules would substanti
revise capital requirements including establisrangew common equity Tier 1 requirement, certaisemiriskbased requirement, and certain increased risk weeidthis no
known when the rule will be finalized.

Transactions with Affiliates. Transactions between banks and their related pastiaffiliates are limited by Sections 23A and 28Bthe Federal Reserve Act.
affiliate of a bank is any company or entity thantols, is controlled by or is under common conwéh the bank. In a holding company context, gagent bank holdir
company and any companies which are controlleduisy parent holding company are affiliates of thakb@enerally, Sections 23A and 23B of the FedReserve Act ar
Regulation W (i) limit the extent to which the bamikits subsidiaries may engage in “covered traimas’ with any one affiliate to an amount equall0% of such institutios’
capital stock and surplus, and contain an aggrduaiteon all such transactions with all affiliatés an amount equal to 20.0% of such institusocépital stock and surplus ¢
(i) require that all such transactions be on tesubstantially the same, or at least as favordbl¢he institution or subsidiary as those providechonaffiliates. The terr
“covered transactionthcludes the making of loans, purchase of assgance of a guarantee and other similar transactio addition, loans or other extensions of ¢ragithe
financial institution to the affiliate are requirénl be collateralized in accordance with the rezmignts set forth in Section 23A of the Federal ReesAct. The Sarbanedxley
Act of 2002 generally prohibits loans by a comp#mits executive officers and directors. Howevke, taw contains a specific exception for loans lolgpository institution to i
executive officers and directors in compliance wWeHeral banking laws assuming such loans are p@smitted under the law of the institutisnchartering state. Under si
laws, the Bank’s authority to extend credit to exa® officers, directors and 10% shareholderssftlars”), as well as entities such persooontrol, is limited. The law limi
both the individual and aggregate amount of loAesBank may make to insiders based, in part, ofB#ré’s capital position and requires certain board amgrprocedures
be followed. Such loans are required to be madéeons substantially the same as those offered &ffiliated individuals and not involve more tharethormal risk ¢
repayment. There is an exception for loans madsuanit to a benefit or compensation program thatidely available to all employees of the institutiand does not gi
preference to insiders over other employees. Ltmrgecutive officers are further limited by specdategories.

The DoddFrank Act requires that the Federal Reserve maitaioehanges to the regulations governing tramsaswith affiliates described above. It is unciertaher
such changes will become effective.

Dividends . The Bank may pay dividends as declared from timine by the Board of Directors out of funds legallailable, subject to certain restrictions. Untie
New Jersey Banking Act of 1948, as amended, thé Baay not pay a cash dividend unless, followingghgment, the Bar's capital stock will be unimpaired and the Bank
have a surplus of no less than 50% of the Banktalagtiock or, if not, the payment of the dividendl wot reduce the surplus. In addition, the Bamkioot pay dividends
amounts that would reduce the Bank’s capital betegulatory imposed minimums.

Federal Securities Laws

The Company’s common stock is registered with tB€ Sinder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asnded (“Exchange Act”JThe Company is subject to -
information, proxy solicitation, insider tradingstdctions and other requirements under the Séesifitxchange Act of 1934.

Under the Exchange Act, we are required to condwamprehensive review and assessment of the adeqgfiaur existing financial systems and contréist the yee
ended December 31, 2012, our auditors are reqtgraddit our internal control over financial repogt

SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Sarbanes-Oxlegdhtains a broad range of legislative reforms idéehto address corporate and accounting frauddditian to the
establishment of a new accounting oversight bolaadl will enforce auditing, quality control and in#sdence standards and will be funded by fees &trpublicly trade:
companies, Sarbanes-Oxley places certain restrictim the scope of services that may be providedcbpunting firms to their public company audients. Any noraudit
services being provided to a public company au@é&nhtwill require preapproval by the company’s &iuammittee. In addition, Sarban€sdey makes certain changes to
requirements for audit partner rotation after aqueof time. Sarbane®xley requires chief executive officers and chieffcial officers, or their equivalent, to certiiy the
accuracy of periodic reports filed with the Sedesitand Exchange Commission, subject to civil afminal penalties if they knowingly or willingly weiate this certificatio
requirement. The Company’'s Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer have signed certifioas to this Form 10-K as required by Sarbabgkey. In addition, und
Sarbane®xley, counsel will be required to report evidenéa material violation of the securities laws dsraach of fiduciary duty by a company to its claeécutive officer ¢
its chief legal officer, and, if such officer doest appropriately respond, to report such evideadbe audit committee or other similar committé¢he board of directors or t
board itself.

Under Sarbane®xley, longer prison terms will apply to corporaeecutives who violate federal securities laws; ghgod during which certain types of suits ca
brought against a company or its officers is ex¢elndand bonuses issued to top executives prioestatement of a compasyfinancial statements are now subjec
disgorgement if such restatement was due to caanessconduct. Executives are also prohibited ftading the company’s securities during retiren@an “blackout’periods
and loans to company executives (other than logrnancial institutions permitted by federal rulasd regulations) are restricted. In addition, avizion directs that civ
penalties levied by the Securities and Exchanger@iesion as a result of any judicial or administrataction under Sarban&sey be deposited to a fund for the benef
harmed investors. The Federal Accounts for InveRestitution provision also requires the Securities Exchange Commission to develop methods ofdwipg collectiot
rates. The legislation accelerates the time fraonedisclosures by public companies, as they mustédiately disclose any material changes in thearfcial condition ¢
operations. Directors and executive officers missi provide information for most changes in owngrsh a company’s securities within two businesgsdaf the change.

Sarbane®xley also increases the oversight of, and codifiedain requirements relating to, audit committeégublic companies and how they interact with
company’s ‘“registered public accounting firmAudit Committee members must be independent andabselutely barred from accepting consulting, astyisor othe
compensatory fees from the issuer. In addition, pames must disclose whether at least one membreafommittee is a “financial experdg such term is defined by
Securities and Exchange Commission) and if not, wbly Under Sarbanes-Oxley, a compansegistered public accounting firm is prohibitednfi performing statutori
mandated audit services for a company if such cogipachief executive officer, chief financial officemmptroller, chief accounting officer or any perserving in equivale
positions had been employed by such firm and ppéted in the audit of such company during the yee- period preceding the audit initiation datertb8aesOxley alsc
prohibits any officer or director of a company ayather person acting under their direction frakirig any action to fraudulently influence, coemtgnipulate or mislead a
independent accountant engaged in the audit ofdhgpany’s financial statements for the purposeeafiering the financial statements materially muileg. Sarbane®©xley
also requires the Securities and Exchange Commissiprescribe rules requiring inclusion of anyemtl control report and assessment by managemeiné iannual report
shareholders. Sarbanes-Oxley requires the compaegistered public accounting firm that issues dhéit report to report on the compasyhternal control over financ
planning.
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Under Section 404 of the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002, we are required to conduct a pa@hensive review and assessment of the adequamy eisting financial systems &
controls.

AVAILABILITY OF ANNUAL REPORT

Our Annual Report is available on our website, wiaakbancorp.com. We will also provide our Annual &¢pn Form 1K free of charge to shareholders who writ
the Corporate Secretary at 104-110 Avenue C, Bagiddaw Jersey 07002.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The effects of Hurricane Sandy impacted our operatins and potentially affected loan facilities in thee areas affected by the storm. Consequently, ourdgditability will
be adversely affected.

On October 29" and 30", 2012, Hurricane Sandy struck the Northeast seaifche country. The Bank’market area was significantly impacted by thenstavhict
resulted in widespread flooding, wind damage andgumutages. We are assessing whether the undgdyifateral of any loan facilities we have in taageas affected by |
storm have suffered damage and possible loss oévAldditionally, we are determining whether or tiw storm has impacted our borroweslility to repay their obligations
the Bank. The Bank is generally named as a losegay hazard and flood insurance policies coveroiigteral properties and carries both mortgageaimpent and busine
interruption insurance. These policies could miggksses that the Bank may sustain due to thetsffef the hurricane. Presently, that process mesnangoing and it i
premature to determine what, if any impact this maye on our level of loan losses or mmerforming loans. Predicted upon the completiothefaforementioned, the Comp:
may experience increased levels of non-perfornoags and loan losses which may negatively impaatdwperating results.

Our loan portfolio consists of a high percentage obans secured by commercial real estate and mulfamily real estate. These loans are riskier than Bns secured b
one- to four-family properties.

At December 31, 2012, $588.3 million, or 62.84%oof loan portfolio consisted of commercial and rrfainily real estate loans. We intend to continuertgphasiz
the origination of these types of loans. Thesedagenerally expose a lender to greater risk of apment and loss than one- to fdamily residential mortgage loans bece
repayment of the loans often depends on the su’ategseration and income stream of the borrowdusiness. Such loans typically involve largenlbalances to sing
borrowers or groups of related borrowers compasezhe- to foufamily residential mortgage loans. Consequentlyadverse development with respect to one loan ercoedi
relationship can expose us to a significantly grneesk of loss compared to an adverse developmightrespect to a one- to four-family residentiamgage loan.

We may not be able to successfully maintain and mage our growth.

Our growth since July 2010 has primarily been dribg acquisitions. Our ability to continue to grdepends, in part, upon our ability to expand ourkeiapresenc
successfully attract core deposits, identify attvaccommercial lending opportunities, and idenpifytential acquisitions and complete such acqaissti

We cannot be certain as to our ability to manageemsed levels of assets and liabilities. We maeqeired to make additional investments in equipne@d personn
to manage higher asset levels and loans balanbésh wmay adversely impact our efficiency ratio,rélags and shareholder returns.

If our allowance for loan losses is not sufficiento cover actual loan losses, our earnings could dease.

Our loan customers may not repay their loans adugrid the terms of their loans, and the collatseduring the payment of their loans may be incieffit to assu
repayment. We may experience significant credgdeswhich could have a material adverse effeciusroperating results. We make various assumptodsjudgments abc
the collectability of our loan portfolio, includintipe creditworthiness of our borrowers and the eafithe real estate and other assets servingllasecal for the repayment
many of our loans. In determining the amount of #dflewance for loan losses, we review our loans andloss and delinquency experience, and we eteleieonomi
conditions. If our assumptions prove to be incdtrear allowance for loan losses may not coverdsds our loan portfolio at the date of the finahatatements. Mater
additions to our allowance would materially decee@sr net income. At December 31, 2012, our allmedor loan losses totaled $12.4 million, represgnt.32% of total loan

While we have only been operating for twelve years,have experienced significant growth in our Ipantfolio, particularly our loans secured by comoed rea
estate. Although we believe we have underwritirapdérds to manage normal lending risks, and althaug had $26.2 million, or 2.23% of total assetasisting of non-
performing assets at December 31, 2012, it isadiffito assess the future performance of our laatfglio due to the relatively recent originatiohroany of these loans. We ¢
give you no assurance that our non-performing leghsot increase or that our non-performing ofiiguent loans will not adversely affect our futyoerformance.

In addition, federal and state regulators peridijicaview our allowance for loan losses and mayuiee us to increase our allowance for loan lossescognize furthe
loan charge-offs. Any increase in our allowanceldan losses or loan chargéfs as required by these regulatory agencies doaNg a material adverse effect on our resu
operations and financial condition.

We depend primarily on net interest income for ourearnings rather than fee income

Net interest income is the most significant compored our operating income. We do not rely on tiadal sources of fee income utilized by some comitgubanks
such as fees from sales of insurance, securiti@gsvestment advisory products or services. Foryders ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, our eeesttincome was $4:
million and $39.6 million, respectively. The amowtdtour net interest income is influenced by therall interest rate environment, competition, amel &mount of interest-
earning assets relative to the amount of intdveating liabilities. In the event that one or moféhese factors were to result in a decrease imetiinterest income, we do
have significant sources of fee income to makeouplécreases in net interest income.
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If Our Investment in the Federal Home Loan Bank ofNew York is Classified as Other-Than-Temporarily Inmpaired, Our Earnings and Stockholders’ Equity Could
Decrease.

We own common stock of the Federal Home Loan Bdri%eav York. We hold the FHLBNY common stock to géafor membership in the Federal Home Loan E
System and to be eligible to borrow funds undeRH&BNY’ s advance program. The aggregate cost and faie wdlaur FHLBNY common stock as of December 31,2@4:
$7.7 million based on its par value. There is noketafor our FHLBNY common stock.

Recent published reports indicate that certain nezrbbnks of the Federal Home Loan Bank System raagubject to accounting rules and asset qualikg tisat coul
result in materially lower regulatory capital leseln an extreme situation, it is possible thatdhpitalization of a Federal Home Loan Bank, incigdthe FHLBNY, could b
substantially diminished or reduced to zero. Coueatly, we believe that there is a risk that owestment in FHLBNY common stock could be deemee@rthantemporarily
impaired at some time in the future, and if thisuws, it would cause our earnings and stockholdggsity to decrease by the after-tax amount ofrttpairment charge.

Fluctuations in interest rates could reduce our préitability.

We realize income primarily from the differencevee¢n the interest we earn on loans and investnagwtshe interest we pay on deposits and borrowifigs.interes
rates on our assets and liabilities respond difitlye¢o changes in market interest rates, whichmaezur interesbearing liabilities may be more sensitive to chanigemarke
interest rates than our interest-earning assetdcerversa. In either event, if market interesesechange, this “gap” between the amount of istezarning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities that reprice in response tcsthinterest rate changes may work against us, @neaonings may be negatively affected.

We are unable to predict fluctuations in marketriest rates, which are affected by, among othéorf®cchanges in the following:

. inflation rates:

. business activity level:

. money supply; and

. domestic and foreign financial marke

The value of our investment portfolio and the cosifon of our deposit base are influenced by piengimarket conditions and interest rates. Our talszeility
management strategy, which is designed to mititieeisk to us from changes in market intereststateay not prevent changes in interest rates arites market downtur
from reducing deposit outflow or from having a nietleadverse effect on our results of operations,fimancial condition or the value of our investite

Adverse events in New Jersey, where our businesscncentrated, could adversely affect our resultsral future growth.

Our business, the location of our branches andethleestate collateralizing our real estate loaasancentrated in New Jersey. As a result, wexpesed to geograpl
risks. The occurrence of an economic downturn iwNersey, or adverse changes in laws or regulatioNew Jersey, could impact the credit qualityof assets, the busin
of our customers and our ability to expand our hess.

Our success significantly depends upon the gromwtiopulation, income levels, deposits and housingurr market area. If the communities in which yerate do n
grow or if prevailing economic conditions locally wationally are unfavorable, our business may dmatively affected. In addition, the economieshef tcommunities in whic
we operate are substantially dependent on the profwthe economy in the State of New Jersey. Tcettient that economic conditions in New Jerseyuafavorable or do n
continue to grow as projected, the economy in carket area would be adversely affected. Moreovercannot give any assurance that we will benefinfany market grow
or favorable economic conditions in our market aféaey do occur.

In addition, the market value of the real estataigag loans as collateral could be adversely &fby unfavorable changes in market and econoariditions. As ¢
December 31, 2012, approximately 93.5% of our tio@hs were secured by real estate. Adverse dewelojs affecting commerce or real estate valuelsardcal economies
our primary market areas could increase the crisliassociated with our loan portfolio. In additisubstantially all of our loans are to individdiahd businesses in New Jer
Our business customers may not have customer Hesteare as diverse as businesses serving regiomadtional markets. Consequently, any declinehénéconomy of ol
market area could have an adverse impact on oenues and financial condition. In particular, weyreaperience increased loan delinquencies, whicldoe@sult in a highe
provision for loan losses and increased charge-Affiy sustained period of increased mEayment, delinquencies, foreclosures or lossesedaog adverse market or econo
conditions in our market area could adversely affee value of our assets, revenues, results abtipas and financial condition.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and mpabe adversely affected by changes in federal, staind local laws and regulations

We are subject to extensive regulation, superviaihexamination by federal and state banking aitit® Any change in applicable regulations orefied, state or loc
legislation could have a substantial impact onnds@ur operations. Additional legislation and redjioins that could significantly affect our poweasthority and operations
be enacted or adopted in the future, which coulet leamaterial adverse effect on our financial ctiowliand results of operations. Further, regulabarge significant discretic
and authority to prevent or remedy unsafe or undqoractices or violations of laws by banks and baplding companies in the performance of their supery anc
enforcement duties. The exercise of regulatoryaitthmay have a negative impact on our resultspefrations and financial condition.

Like other bank holding companies and financiatiingons, we must comply with significant anti-menlaundering and anterrorism laws. Under these laws, we
required, among other things, to enforce a custadesrtification program and file currency transastand suspicious activity reports with the fedg@lernment. Governme
agencies have substantial discretion to imposéftsignt monetary penalties on institutions which fa comply with these laws or make required répoBecause we operate
business in the highly urbanized greater Newark/Newk City metropolitan area, we may be at greeshr of scrutiny by government regulators for coiapte with these laws.
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Failure to achieve and maintain effective internalcontrol over financial reporting in accordance with rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission @mulgatec
under Section 404 of the Sarbane®xley Act could harm our business and operating ragts and/or result in a loss of investor confidencé our financial reports, which
could in turn have a material adverse effect on oubusiness and stock price.

Under rules of the Securities and Exchange Comamnigsiomulgated under Section 404 of the Sarb&hdsy Act of 2002, we were required to furnish pagt by ou
management on our internal control over finanaglorting in our Annual Report on Form KOfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011héndourse of our assessmer
the effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of December 31, 2011, which sssent was conducted during the fourth quarte©afizand the first quart
of 2012 in connection with the preparation of 2@LMited consolidated financial statements and curual Report on Form 1K; we identified a material weakness in
internal control over financial reporting resultifigm (i) a failure to document that monitoring tats were in place with respect to outside sereiganizations, and that (ji) \
failed to test the operating effectiveness of suehtrols as of December 31, 2011. The Company efitithe operating effectiveness of its monitoringtmls subsequent
December 31, 2011 and found them to be effectilie. Material weakness in our internal control oirarfcial reporting, as described in Item 9A, Colstemd Procedures, of «
Annual Report on Form 1B-for the year ended December 31, 2011, as walhgsother weaknesses or deficiencies that may existreafter arise or be identified, could h
our business and operating results, and couldtresativerse publicity and a loss in investor cdefice in the accuracy and completeness of ourdialareports, which in tu
could have a material adverse effect on our steide pand, if such weaknesses are not properly deatesl, could adversely affect our ability to repmur financial results on
timely basis.

As a result of the foregoing our independent regést public accounting firm identified a materiadakness in the Compasyinternal controls and procedures citinc
Companys failure to document monitoring controls over tise of outside service organizations and to tesppierating effectiveness of such controls as aebwer 31, 201
The material weakness was considered in determitiiagnature, timing and extent of audit tests &gbln the independent public accounting fndudit of our 201
consolidated financial statements. Consequentlyjralependent registered public accounting firmobated that the Company did not maintain effectiternal control ove
financial reporting as of December 31, 2011.

Although we believe that we have identified the enial weakness, identified in Item 9A. Controls d&wbcedures, of this report, we cannot assure lyauadditionz
deficiencies or weaknesses in our internal cordvelr financial reporting will not be identified. Bddition, we have as of the date of this filingised our internal control ov
financial reporting to ensure that the materialadeficy noted above does not occur in the future.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Bank conducts its business through an execaffiee, one administrative office, and eleven lofanffices. Six offices have drivep facilities. The Bank has ele\
automatic teller machines at its branch facilitiesl two other off-site locations. The following llsets forth information relating to each of thenR's offices as of Decemt

31, 2012. The total net book value of the Bank&nmises and equipment at December 31, 2012 was $iilidh.

Location

Executive Office
104-110 Avenue C
Bayonne, New Jerse
Administrative Office
591-597 Avenue C
Bayonne, New Jerse
Branch Offices
860 Broadway
Bayonne, New Jerse
510 Broadway
Bayonne, New Jerse
401 Washington S
Hoboken, New Jerse
987 Broadway
Bayonne, New Jerse
473 Spotswood Englishtown F
Monroe Township, New Jers:
611 Avenue C
Bayonne, New Jerse
181 Avenue A
Bayonne, New Jerse
211-A Washington Stree
Jersey City, New Jers:t
200 Valley Stree
S. Orange, New Jersi
34 Main Stree
Woodbridge, New Jerse
3499 Route 9 North Suite 2
Freehold, New Jerse

Net book value of propertie
Furnishings and equipme
Total premises and equipme

(@) Leased Property
@ Includes off-site ATM'’s
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Year Office Openec Net Book Value

2003

2010

2000

2003

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2010

2011

2011

2012

(In Thousands)

$ 2,74:

2,62¢

8141
26<D)
760
70€
194
2,791
621
52(0)
1,511
2271
4c@)
12,12t

1,4442)
$  13,56¢
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved, from time to time, as plaintiff defendant in various legal actions arising in tleemal course of business. Other than as set fmetbw, as c
December 31, 2012, we were not involved in any ratkegal proceedings, the outcome of which, ifetlmined in a manner adverse to the Company, woal@é a materi
adverse affect on our financial condition or resoft operations.

The Company is a named defendant in the lawsuitd&mn. Robbins, et alfiled in the Superior Court of New Jersey on May 2612. The lawsuit alleges that |
Robbins, the former Chairman of the Board of Alegie Community Bank and currently a director of @@mpany, and others defrauded Mr. Kontos with eespo hi:
investment in a real estate project and inducedkdntos to borrow money from Allegiance Communitgri®, also a named defendant. The lawsuit seeksispeaified dolle
amount of damages, as well as equitable and o#lief.rinsurance coverage is currently in effedieTCompany has filed its Answer to the lawsuit. TB@mpany, afte
preliminary review, believes the lawsuit is withaaeérit and frivolous. The Company intends to vigsly defend its interests in this litigation.

The Company is the successor to Pamrapo Bancarpamamed defendant in the lawsuit Brian Campbdfiamrapo Bancorp, Inc., et,dlled in the Superior Court
New Jersey in December 2010. The lawsuit alleges Mr. Campbell sustained personal injuries in atomobile accident while on a werelated trip and should
compensated for his injuries. Insurance coveragariently in effect. The Company believes thatl#vesuit is without merit and it intends to vigostyidefend its interests.

The Company, as the successor to Pamrapo Bancarpahd in its own corporate capacity, is a naaeféndant in a shareholder derivative lawsglitbe, et al., \
Pamrapo Bancorp, Inc., et diled in the Superior Court of New Jersey, Hudsauy, Chancery Division, General Equity. On May2912, the Company obtained pal
summary judgment, dismissing three of the five Gswif the Complaint. On May 9, 2012, plaintfftounsel was awarded interim legal fees of apprately $350,000. Tt
Company'’s obligation to pay that amount has beayest The Compang’motion for leave to file an interlocutory appe&that award was denied by the Appellate Divisid
the Superior Court of New Jersey. The Companygserausly defending its interests in the litigation.

The Company is a named defendant in the lawsuitsfrong v. BCB Bancorp, Inc., and Brian M. Campbetich was filed in the Superior Court of New Jer
Atlantic County, Law Division, on September 27, 20The Company is a named defendant as the sucdesBamrapo Bancorp, Inc. The lawsuit accusesnBziampbell, th
former Managing Director of Pamrapo Services Caton, a whollyewned subsidiary of Pamrapo Bancorp, Inc., of warieiolations of federal and state securities ldvesid
breach of fiduciary duty and negligence. Prime @épinc., and other entities have been named disi@thl, potentiallyresponsible parties by the Company and/or the tiffa
The case has been transferred to FINRA arbitrafibe. arbitration is in its early stages. The piiig seeking unspecified damages. Insurance @meeis currently in effect f
the Company. The Company intends to vigorouslyrigfes interests in this litigation.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE
Not applicable
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

BCB Bancorp, Inc.'s common stock trades on the Bgd@lobal Market under the symbol “BCBR order to list common stock on the Nasdaq GldWatket, the
presence of at least three registered and activieetnmakers is required and BCB Bancorp, Inc. hdsast three market makers.

The following table sets forth the high and lowsit prices for BCB Bancorp, Inc. common stock tfee periods indicated. As of December 31, 2012etheert
8,496,508 shares of BCB Bancorp, Inc. common sbatktanding. At December 31, 2012, BCB Bancorp, iad approximately 2,000 stockholders of record.

Fiscal 2012 High Low Cash Dividend Declaret
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 10.7¢ $ 871 % 0.12
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! 10.8(C 10.0¢ 0.1z
Quarter Ended June 30, 2C 10.9¢ 9.8( 0.1z
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 10.6( 9.6¢ 0.1z

Fiscal 2011 High Low Cash Dividend Declaret
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 10.65 $ 8.5t $ 0.12
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! 11.6¢ 8.7t 0.1Z
Quarter Ended June 30, 2C 11.4¢ 10.21 0.1z
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 12.0C 9.9C 0.1z

Please see “Item 1. Business—Bank Regulation—Dndd&for a discussion of restrictions on the apitif the Bank to pay the Company dividends.
Compensation Plans

Set forth below is information as of December 311 2regarding equity compensation plans that haea lapproved by shareholders. The Company hasuity egse:
benefit plans that were not approved by sharehslder

Number of securities to be Number of securities remaining
issued upon exercise of Weighted averagi | available for issuance under

Plan outstanding options and right: | Exercise price(2) plan
Equity compensation plans approved by shareho 274,29(1) |$ 11.97 845,46
Equity compensation plans not approved by sharehs — — -0-
Total 27429t I 11.97 845,46¢

(1) Consists of options to purchase (i) 27,319 shafe®mmon stock under the 2002 Stock Option Plan(@nd73,977 shares of common stock under the 2B@8k Optio
Plan and (i) 19,000 shares of common stock utiger2003 Stock Option Plan from the former Pamfgpocorp, Inc., converted to options to purchaseeshaf commo
stock of BCB Bancorp under the terms of the meageeement and 54,000 under the 2011 Stock Optam

(2) The weighted average exercise price reflects tleecese prices ranging from $9.34 to $15.65 peresifiar options granted under the 2003 Stock Optiam Bnd rangin
from $10.18 to $15.65 per share for options unider2002 Stock Option Plan and ranging from $18048209.25 per share for options under the 2003 SBption Plan fror
the former Pamrapo Bancorp, Inc., converted taoogtio purchase shares of common stock of BCB Bpnauder the terms of the merger agreement anél.88%$er sha
for options under the 2011 Stock Option P
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Nasdaq Market Index over such period. Cumulatiterneassumes the reinvestment of dividends, aegpsessed in dollars based on an assumed invesofn®hdO.

Set forth hereunder is a stock performance graphpeoing (a) the cumulative total return on the camrstock for the period beginning with the clossades price ¢
January 1, 2008 through December 31, 2012, (byuhrulative total return on all publicly traded coemeial bank stocks over such period, and (c) theutative total return ¢

BCB BANCORP, INC.

Index Value

Total Return Performance

150

125

—+—BCB Bancorp, Inc.

—&— NASDAQ Composite

—&— SNL Bank

100

75

50

25 ; } } ;
12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/3112
Period Ending
I ndex 12/31/0° 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0¢ 12/31/1( 12/31/1: 12/31/1:
BCB Bancorp, Inc 100.0( 68.8 62.71 72.0¢ 77.61 76.1°
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 60.0Z 87.2¢ 103.0¢ 102.2¢ 120.4:
SNL Bank 100.0( 57.0¢ 56.47 63.21 49.0( 66.1:
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On May 9, 2012, the Company announced a sixth stegirchase plan to repurchase 5% or 462,800 sbatbe Company common stock. On June 28, 2012,
Company announced a seventh stock repurchase @lapirchase 5% of 440,000 shares of the Compaaysnon stock. The Compamsystock purchases for three moi
ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Total number of shares
purchased as part of ¢ Number of shares
Total number of share«| Average price pel| publicly announced [remaining to be purchase:

Period purchased share paid program under program
October 1-31, 2012 24,27¢ 10.52 24,27¢ 223,96
November 1-30, 2012 23,37: 9.9¢ 47,647 200,59°
December 1-31, 2012 — — — —
Total 47,647 10.3¢ 47,64% 200,59°

ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables set forth selected consolidatestorical financial and other data of BCB Bamcdnc. at and for the years ended December 312,281111, 201(
2009 and 2008. The information is derived in peotrf, and should be read together with, the audiedsolidated Financial Statements and Notes thefdB®B Bancorp, In
Per share data has been adjusted for all periogslézt the common stock dividends paid by the Gamy.

Selected financial condition data at December 3

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Total asset $ 117135 $ 1,216,900 $ 1,106,838 $ 631,50 $ 578,62
Cash and cash equivale 35,13: 117,08 121,12° 67,34% 6,761
Securities, held to maturi 164,64¢ 206,96! 165,57 132,64 141,28(
Loans receivabl 922,30: 840,76: 773,10: 401,87 406,82¢
Deposits 940,78t 977,62 886,28t 463,73¢ 410,50:
Borrowings 131,12 129,53: 114,12. 114,12. 116,12:
Stockholder’ equity 91,58 100,04 98,97+ 51,39: 49,71¢
Selected operating data for the year ended Decembat,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands, except for per share amounts

Net interest incom $ 41,70 $ 39,58: $ 26,43: $ 19,38 $ 19,96(
Provision for loan losse 4,90( 4,10¢ 2,45( 1,55(C 1,30(
Non-interest income (los: (7,22%) 2,44¢ 14,20 931 (2,059
Non-interest expens 33,88¢ 28,50¢ 22,35¢ 12,39¢ 11,31«
Income tax (benefit) expen (2,252) BYEIE 1,50¢ 2,621 1,82(
Net (loss) incom $ (2,060 $ 6,051 $ 1432t $ 3,746 $ 3,47
Net (loss) income per shai

Basic $ (0279 $ 06 $ 206 $ 081 $ 0.7

Diluted $ 029 $ 0.6¢ $ 208 $ 08C $ 0.7¢4
Dividends declared per share $ 04¢ $ 04t $ 04t $ 04t $ 0.41
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At or for the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 201C 200¢ 200¢
Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data
Return (loss) on average assets (ratio of net iecnaverage total asse (0.19)% 0.5%% 1.62% 0.61% 0.6(%
Return (loss) on average stockhol’ equity (ratio of net income to average stockhol equity’ (2.2¢) 6.14 22.61 7.34 7.0C
Non-interest income (loss) to average as (0.62) 0.2z 1.61 0.1f (0.3¢)
Nor-interest expense to average as 2.8¢€ 2.52 225¢ 2.0¢ 1.97
Net interest rate spread during the pe 3.44 3.4C 2.81 2.8¢ 3.0¢
Net interest margin (net interest income to averatgest earning asse 3.6( 3.6( 3.0 3.2¢ 3.5¢
Ratio of average intere-earning assets to average inte-bearing liabilities 115.2¢ 116.0¢ 115.0¢ 114.0° 115.0¢
Cash dividend payout rat (208.7) 75.0C 23.3( 59.2¢ 54.67
Asset Quality Ratios:
Non-performing loans to total loans at end of pel 2.4¢ 5.61 5.3t 2.92 0.9C
Allowance for loan losses to n-performing loans at end of peri 54.0( 21.9% 20.1: 55.6¢ 142.2%
Allowance for loan losses to total loans at engerfod 1.32 1.2t 1.0¢ 1.62 1.2¢
Capital Ratios:
Stockholder’ equity to total assets at end of per 7.82 8.2z 8.94 8.1¢ 8.5¢
Average stockholde’ equity to average total ass 7.72 8.7 7.14 8.3t 8.61
Tier 1 capital to average ass 8.3¢ 8.6€ 9.1€ 8.6¢ 9.22
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted ass 12.7¢ 15.3¢ 14.9¢ 13.11 13.3¢

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

General

This discussion, and other written material, ardeshents management may make, may contain ceotavarfd-looking statements regarding the Compsupybspectiv
performance and strategies within the meaning ofi@e 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amenaetl Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Adt984, as amende
The Company intends such forward-looking statemgntse covered by the safe harbor provisions fovéodlooking statements contained in the Private Seesrltitigatior
Reform Act of 1995, and is including this statemfentpurposes of said safe harbor provisions.

Forwardiooking information is inherently subject to risksd uncertainties, and actual results could diffaterially from those currently anticipated duetoumber ¢
factors, which include, but are not limited to,ttas discussed in the Company’s Annual Report amFHK and in other documents filed by the Company i Securitie
and Exchange Commission. Forwdodking statements, which are based on certainngssons and describe future plans, strategies apeéatations of the Company,
generally identified by the use of the words “pldibelieve,” “expect,” “i anticipate,” “estate,” “project,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “predicts,” “forecasts,”

"o " ow n o n ”ow " o« " ow " .

intend,
“potential,” or “continue” or similar terms or theegative of these terms. The Compangbility to predict results or the actual effeotsits plans or strategies is inherel
uncertain. Accordingly, actual results may diffeaterially from anticipated results.

Factors that could have a material adverse effie¢he operations of the Company and its subsidianielude, but are not limited to, changes in meikerest rate
general economic conditions, legislation, and ratjoh; changes in monetary and fiscal policieshefnited States Government, including policiethefUnited States Treasi
and Federal Reserve Board; changes in the qualitpmposition of the loan or investment portfoliobanges in deposit flows, competition, and denfandinancial service:
loans, deposits and investment products in the @omip local markets; changes in accounting principled guidelines; war or terrorist activities; and estleconomic
competitive, governmental, regulatory, geopolitiaatl technological factors affecting the Compawysrations, pricing and services.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliamtieese forwardeoking statements, which speak only as of the dathis discussion. Although the Company beli
that the expectations reflected in the forwhmoking statements are reasonable, the Companyot@uarantee future results, levels of activityff@enance or achievemer
Except as required by applicable law or regulatibe,Company undertakes no obligation to updateetifi@rwardiooking statements to reflect events or circumstartbat occt
after the date on which such statements were made.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are those accountinficies that can have a significant impact on tleenBanys financial position and results of operations tieguire th
use of complex and subjective estimates based p@sinexperiences and managengejutgment. Because of the uncertainty inherestigh estimates, actual results may d
from these estimates. Below are those policiesiegpph preparing the Comparsyconsolidated financial statements that managebwigves are the most dependent or
application of estimates and assumptions. For iaddit accounting policies, see Note 2 of “Note€tmsolidated Financial Statements.”

Allowance for Loan Losst¢

Loans receivable are presented net of an allowfamdean losses. In determining the appropriatell®f the allowance, management considers a cortidmaf factors
such as economic and industry trends, real estatkainconditions, size and type of loans in poidfahature and value of collateral held, borrowérsincial strength and cre
ratings, and prepayment and default history. THeutation of the appropriate allowance for loanskes requires a substantial amount of judgment degathe impact of t
aforementioned factors, as well as other factansthe ultimate realization of loans receivableatidition, our determination of the amount of thewance for loan losses
subject to review by the New Jersey Departmentafidhg and Insurance and the FDIC, as part of #wamination process. After a review of the infotiora available, ot
regulators might require the establishment of aditmshal allowance. Any increase in the loan lofisveance required by regulators would have a negaitnpact on ot
earnings.

Other-than-Temporary Impairment of Securities

If the fair value of a security is less than itsaatized cost, the security is deemed to be impalahagement evaluates all securities with unredlipsses quarterly
determine if such impairments are “temporary” aih#r-than-temporary” in accordance with AccountBtgndards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 320,
Investment— Debt and Equity Securities.

Accordingly, temporary impairments are accountedbfmsed upon the classification of the related riesi as either available for sale or held to migtuTemporar
impairments on available for sale securities aoegaized, on a tax-effected basis, through Otheng@ehensive Income (“OCI'With offsetting entries adjusting the carry
value of the securities and the balance of defetares. Conversely, the carrying values of helch&durity securities are not adjusted for tempoiangairments. Informatic
concerning the amount and duration of temporaryaimpents on both available for sale and held tountgtsecurities is generally disclosed in the sai® the consolidat
financial statements.

Other-than-temporary impairments are accountedbésed upon several considerations. First, othertdraporary impairments on equity securities and ebt
securities that the Company has decided to self #s close of a fiscal period, or will, more likeghan not, be required to sell prior to the fidtovery of fair value to a le\
equal to or exceeding amortized cost, are recodnizearnings. If neither of these conditions regsg the likelihood of the sale of debt securiées applicable, then the other-
than-temporary impairment is bifurcated into credlated and noncredit-related components. A ciredfited impairment represents the amount by whietptesent value of t
cash flows that are expected to be collected oab& skecurity fall below its amortized cost. The creditrelated component represents the remaining podfiche impairmer
not otherwise designated as credit-related. Crethted other-than-temporary impairments are reizegrin earnings and noncredit-related other-tlegmporary impairments &
recognized in OCI. Equity securities on which thisran unrealized loss that is deemed other-thapdeary are written down to fair value with the texiiown recognized
earnings.

Deferred Income Taxe

The Company records income taxes using the asdeliadnility method. Accordingly, deferred tax assend liabilities: (i) are recognized for the expelcfuture ta
consequences of events that have been recognizéé ionsolidated financial statements or the dafeted and separate entity tax returns; (ii) atgbaitable to difference
between the consolidated financial statement agagr@mounts of existing assets and liabilities awelrtrespective tax bases; and (iii) are measussguenacted tax raf
expected to apply in the years when those tempaiiffgrences are expected to be recovered or dettle

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax sssmanagement considers whether it is more likiedn not that some portion of the deferred taxtassél not be
realized. In making this assessment, managemesidesa the profitability of current core operatiphsture market growth, forecasted earnings, futasable income, al
ongoing, feasible and permissible tax planningetyias. Deferred tax assets have been reduced/dyaion allowance for all portions determined likely to be realized. Tt
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities ohange in tax rates is recognized in income taxersg in the period of enactment. The valuatiomaliwe is adjusted, by a cha
or credit to income tax expense, as changes is fad circumstances warrant.

Fair Value Measuremen

Management uses its best judgment in estimatingvidue measurements of the Companfihancial instruments; however, there are inheregaknesses in a
estimation technique. Management utilized varioysuis to determine fair value including but notited to the use of, valuation techniques based aows assumptior
including, but not limited to cash flows, discouttes, rate of return, adjustments for nonperfoweaand liquidity, quoted market prices, and appigisTherefore, fc
substantially all financial instruments, the faidlwe estimates herein are not necessarily indeatithe amounts the Company could have realizedgales transaction on
dates indicated. The estimated fair value amouats been measured as of their respective yearagmtlsave not been mvaluated or updated for purposes of these cordet
financial statements subsequent to those respedtites. As such, the estimated fair values of tfies@cial instruments subsequent to the respecéperting dates may
different than the amounts reported at each yedr-en
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Financial Condition
Comparison at December 31, 2012 and at December 2011

Total assets decreased by $45.6 million or 3.7%it471 billion at December 31, 2012 from $1.21%dvilat December 31, 2011. The decrease in tosdtaccurre
primarily as a result of decreases in securitiéd teematurity of $42.3 million, loans held for eaf $4.3 million and cash and cash equivalen®8@t0 million which more the
offset the increases in loans receivable of $81lilfom and other assets of $5.2 million. Managemisntoncentrating on controlled balance sheet droavtd maintainin
adequate liquidity in anticipation of funding loansthe loan pipeline as well as seeking opporiesiin the secondary market that provide reasorrablens. During the seco
and third quarters, the Bank sold a portion ofrtba-performing loan portfolio which totaled apprmeately $25.9 million resulting in a ptex loss of $10.8 million. Managem
continues to evaluate its non-performing loans, lsasked upon market conditions and the ability t@miobsatisfactory pricing may consider future saés portion of its non-
performing loan portfolio. It is our intention teayv our assets at a measured pace consistent wittepital levels and as business opportunitiesijper

Total cash and cash equivalents decreased by $8@idh or 70.0% to $35.1 million at December 3012 from $117.1 million at December 31, 2011. Therdase i
cash and cash equivalents resulted primarily fronding new loans and deposit outflow. Investmentisges classified as held-toaturity decreased by $42.3 million or 20
to $164.6 million at December 31, 2012 from $20mi0ion at December 31, 2011. This decrease instment securities resulted primarily from purchase$57.3 millior
offset by allowable sales of $30.6 million of mag-backed securities from the held-to-maturitytfpbo, $61.2 million of repayments and prepaymentthe mortgagdsacke«
securities portfolio, $3.3 million in maturities oértain Government Sponsored Enterprise bondstartmillion of call options exercised on certaail@ble agency securiti
during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Loans receivable increased by $81.5 million or 9t39%922.3 million at December 31, 2012 from $84@iBion at December 31, 2011. The increase reditamarily
from a $107.0 million increase in real estate negts comprising residential, commercial and nfaliily, construction and participation loans witther financial institutior
partially offset by a $14.9 million decrease in eoetrcial loans comprising business loans and comaidites of credit, net of amortization, and a&illion decrease
consumer loans, net of amortization partially dffsga $1.9 million increase in the allowance fmairl losses. The increase was partiallyseffby the sale of certain commer
loans obtained as part of the Allegiance CommuBiyk acquisition in April 2011 totaling approximité10.8 million. The sale of the aforementionedlaans receivab
resulted in a gain on sale of loans of approxinya$86,000. Further, during the year ended Decer®@beR012, the Bank sold approximately $25.9 millaf loans that we
classified as non-performing loans. The $25.9 aomillof non-performing loans sold included $9.1 miiliof residential mortgage loans, $14.6 millionrcommercial and multi-
family loans, $1.1 million of home equity loans,887000 of commercial business loans, and $313,8@®mstruction loans. The primary reason for thémsaction was tl
elimination of ongoing carrying costs associatethwiiese non-interest earning assets. The sal@so§uib-set of the non-performing loan portfolisuiéed in a preéax loss o
approximately $10.8 million. As of December 31, 20the allowance for loan losses was $12.4 mikiob4.0% of norperforming loans and 1.32% of gross loans. As altref
the loans acquired in the business combinatiors&ieions being recorded at their fair value, tHara=e in the allowance for loan losses that wer¢henbalance sheet of -
former Pamrapo Bancorp, Inc., and Allegiance ComtyuBank are precluded from being reported in tHewance balance previously discussed, consistetfit generall
accepted accounting principles.

Deposit liabilities decreased by $36.8 million 8% to $940.8 million at December 31, 2012 fromZ87illion at December 31, 2011. The decreasdtezsprimarily
from a $39.8 million decrease in certificate of dgifs, a decrease of $8.7 million in savings amth cleposits and a decrease of $3.8 million in manayket interest beari
deposits which more than offset a $7.4 million @ase in norAterest bearing deposits and an increase of $8ldmmin NOW deposits. During the year ended Deben31
2012, the Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC)dmaginued its mindset of a continuing accommodathanetary policy. This has resulted in historicadiw short terr
market rates that have further resulted in low tdaposit account yields which in turn has had ffeceof decreasing interest expense.

Longterm borrowed money decreased by $15.4 million1o8% to $114.1 million at December 31, 2012 fror2%5% million at December 31, 2011. The decrea
borrowed money resulted primarily from the jpayment of $15.4 million in Federal Home Loan Bawkances that were acquired in the business cotiirtsansaction wit
Allegiance Community Bank. As a result, a pre-paynpenalty of $49,000 was recognized as intergs¢mese. Shorterm borrowed money increased by $17.0 million 1@.4
million at December 31, 2012 compared to no coordmg amount at December 31, 2011. The purposkeoborrowings reflects the use of long term arattsterm Feder:
Home Loan Bank advances to augment deposits d&athies funding source for originating loans anddsting in investment securities.

Stockholders’ equity decreased by $8.4 million @28 to $91.6 million at December 31, 2012 from $00@illion at December 31, 2011. The decreasedck$lders’
equity is primarily attributable to the repurchadel, 046,726 shares of the Compangbmmon stock at a cost of $10.9 million, as &slthe payment of cash dividends du
the year totaling $4.3 million, along with a nesdofor the year ended December 31, 2012 of $2.lomilpartially offset by the issuance of $8.6 ioifl of Series A 6¢
noncumulative perpetual preferred stock in the tfoguarter of 2012 and an increase of $109,000tmegLfrom the exercise of stock options totaling,661 shares. As
December 31, 2012, the Bank’s Tier 1, Tier 1 Risls&l and Total Risk Based Capital Ratios were 8.32%8% and 14.03% respectively.

33




Table of Content

Analysis of Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the difference between @steincome on interest-earning assets and intexpsinse on interebearing liabilities. Net interest income depend
the relative amounts of interest-earning assetsraackest-bearing liabilities and the interest sagarned or paid on them, respectively.

The following tables set forth balance sheets, aye@lyields and costs, and certain other informdtorthe periods indicated. All average balancesdaily averac
balances. The yields set forth below include tiiecef deferred fees, discounts and premiums, vaie included in interest income.

At December 31, 201. Year ended December 31, 201 Year ended December 31, 201
Actual Average Average
Actual Yield/ Average Interest Yield/Cost  Average Interest Yield/Cost
Balance Cost Balance earned/paic (5) Balance earned/paic (5)

_ (Dollars in Thousands)

Interes-earning asset:

Loans receivable (1 $ 934,66 51(%$ 864,56. $ 47,75¢ 552 % 804,02t $ 45,02 5.6(%
Investment securities(: 173,58t 3.3¢ 204,41 5,77¢ 2.8¢ 217,44 7,76¢ 3.517
Interes-earning deposit 28,89: 0.3¢ 88,79¢ 112 0.1: 78,81« 87 0.11
Total interest-earning assets 1,137,14. 4.71% 1,157,77 53,64 4.65% 1,100,28 52,87¢ 4.81%

Interes-earning liabilities
Total interes-bearing

demand deposi $ 120,76! 0.25%$ 119,17 $ 297 0.2t%$ 92,62« $ 50C 0.5%%
Money market deposi 63,83« 0.4z 67,82¢ 267 0.3¢ BIN55% 34¢ 0.6¢
Savings deposit 256,76¢ 0.1¢ 260,31 477 0.1¢ 257,06} 1,02( 0.4C
Certificates of depos 413,46t 1.42 439,75 5,84¢ 1.3¢ 429,37! 6,421 1.5C
Borrowings 131,12 3.8¢ 117,65: 5,057 4.3C 117,64: 5,007 4.2¢
Total interes-bearing liabilities 985,96( 1.21% 1,004,72. 11,94, 1.1% 948,25¢ 13,29 1.41%
Net interest incom $  41,70( $ 39,58

Interest rate spread( 3.5(% 3.4% 3.4%
Net interest margin(< 3.6€% 3.6(% 3.6(%
Ratio of interes-earning assets

interes-bearing liabilities 115.3% 115.2% 116.09%

(1) Excludes allowance for loan loss

(2) Includes Federal Home Loan Bank of New York st

(3) Interest rate spread represents the differencedeetthe average yield on inte-earning assets and the average cost of in-bearing liabilities
(4) Net interest margin represents net interest incasne percentage of average inte-earning asset:

(5) Average yields are computed using annualized isténeome and expense for the peric
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Analysis of Net Interest Income (Continued)

Year ended December 31, 201
(Dollars in Thousands)

Interes-earning asset:

Loans receivable (1 $ 60526¢ $ 34,50: 5.7(%
Investment securities(. 153,00t 5,481 3.5¢
Interest-earning deposits 107,36¢ 117 0.11
Total interes-earning asse! 865,64« 40,10( 4.62%
Interes-earning liabilities

Interes-bearing demand depos $ 65,16¢ $ 558 0.85%
Money market deposi 45,19t 38t 0.8¢
Savings deposit 179,02( 1,30¢ 0.7
Certificates of depos 348,22¢ 6,22( 1.717
Borrowings 114,77¢ 5,20¢ 4,54
Total interes-bearing liabilities 752,39: 13,66¢ 1.82%
Net interest incom $ 26,43:

Interest rate spread( 2.81%
Net interest margin(¢ 3.05%
Ratio of interesearning assets to inter-bearing liabilities 115.09%

(1) Excludes allowance for loan loss

(2) Includes Federal Home Loan Bank of New York st

(3) Interest rate spread represents the differencedestthe average yield on inte-earning assets and the average cost of in-bearing liabilities
(4) Net interest margin represents net interest incasne percentage of average inte-earning asset:

(5) Average yields are computed using annualized isténeome and expense for the peric
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The table below sets forth certain information reg@ey changes in our interest income and interegerse for the periods indicated. For each categbipterest-
earning assets and interéstaring liabilities, information is provided on ciyes attributable to (i) changes in average vol(zhanges in average volume multiplied by old r
(i) changes in rate (change in rate multipliedoly average volume); (iii) changes due to combicteghges in rate and volume; and (iv) the net change

Years Ended December 31

2012 vs. 201! 2011 vs. 201!
Increase (Decrease) Due t Increase (Decrease) Due t
Total Total
Increase Increase
\olume Rate Rate/Volume (Decrease Volume Rate Rate/Volume (Decrease

(In thousands)
Interest income:

Loans receivabl $ 339 $ (611) $ (46) $ 2,73t $ 11,33C $ (609 $ (200 $ 10,52:
Investment securitie (465) (1,627) 97 (1,990 2,30¢ (19 (6) 2,28¢
Interes-earning deposit
with other bank: 11 12 2 25 (31) 1 — (30)

Total interes-earning assel 2,93¢ (2,229 53 76€ 13,60" (622) (20¢€) 12,77¢

Interest expense

Interes-bearing demand accour 142 (269) 77) (203) 238 (207) (85) (53

Money marke 11C (14€) (46) (82 54 (79) (12) (36)

Savings and clu 13 (54¢) ()] (543 56¢ (594) (259) (2849)

Certificates of Deposit 15¢ (710 a7 (572) 1,44¢ (1,019 (236) 201

Borrowed funds — 5C — 50 13C (321) (8) (199
Total interes-bearing liabilities 421 (1,622 (147 (1,350 2,43¢ (2,209 (599 (371)

Change in net interest incor $ 251t $ (597 $ 20C $ 2,118 $ 1117 $ 158 $ 39: $ 13,15(
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Results of Operations for the Years Ended Decemb@&l, 2012 and 2011

We experienced a net loss of $2.06 million forybar ended December 31, 2012 compared with netriaadf $6.05 million for the year ended December2R1L1. Thi
net loss was due to a decrease in the non-intesne primarily associated with losses incurreanfithe sale of noperforming loans in 2012, and increases in theipiav for
loans losses and in non-interest expense, partifiigt by an increase in net interest income adéecaease in income taxes.

Net interest income increased by $2.12 million g% to $41.70 million for the year ended Decemidgr2d12 from $39.58 million for the year ended Deber 31
2011. This increase in net interest income resydtedarily from an increase of $57.5 million or %3n the average balance of interest earning ass&k.16 billion for the ye.
ended December 31, 2012 from $1.10 billion forybar ended December 31, 2011, partially offset bg@ease in the average yield on interest eaassgts to 4.63% for t
year ended December 31, 2012 from 4.81% for the greded December 31, 2011. The average balanceeoést bearing liabilities increased by $56.5iomillor 6.0% to $1.C
billion for the year ended December 31, 2012 frd@483 million for the year ended December 31, 20dile the average cost of interest bearing liibgi decreased to 1.1!
for the year ended December 31, 2012 from 1.41%heryear ended December 31, 2011. As a consequéribe aforementioned, our net interest marginaieed static
3.60% for the years ended December 31, 2012 andrileer 31, 2011. The increase in the average bat#rioéerest earning assets and the average batdnnterest bearir
liabilities reflects the completion of the acquisit of Allegiance Community Bank.

Interest income on loans receivable increased by3aillion or 6.1% to $47.76 million for the yeamded December 31, 2012 from $45.02 million forytkar ende
December 31, 2011. The increase was primarilybattable to an increase in the average balanceantloeceivable of $60.6 million or 7.5% to $864iBiom for the year ende
December 31, 2012 from $804.0 million for the yeaded December 31, 2011, partially offset by aeles® in the average yield on loans receivable52?6 for the year end
December 31, 2012 from 5.60% for the year endecedber 31, 2011. The increase in the average batdrocans is primarily attributable to the comptetiof the acquisition
Allegiance Community Bank. The decrease in aveyégjd reflects the competitive price environmergvalent in the Bank' primary market area on loan facilities as welihe
repricing downward of variable rate loans.

Interest income on securities decreased by $1.98mbr 25.6% to $5.78 million for the year endB@écember 31, 2012 from $7.77 million for the yeadex
December 31, 2011. This decrease was due to aadeche the average balance of securities hefdatuity of $13.0 million or 6.0% to $204.4 millidior the year ende
December 31, 2012 from $217.4 million for the yeaded December 31, 2011, along with a decreadeeimverage yield of securities heldrwa¢turity to 2.83% for the ye
ended December 31, 2012 from 3.57% for the yeaeeimbcember 31, 2011. The decrease in the averelgergflects the low interest rate environmentiniythe year ende
December 31, 2012.

Interest income on other interesstrning assets increased by $25,000 or 28.7% 8,810 for the year ended December 31, 2012 from0$87for the year end
December 31, 2011. This increase was primarilytduen increase of $10.0 million or 12.7% in therage balance of other interesirning assets to $88.8 million for the )
ended December 31, 2012 from $78.8 million foryhar ended December 31, 2011. The average yietdhan interesearning assets remained relatively static at 0.i8%he
year ended December 31, 2012 and 0.11% for the greded December 31, 2011. The static nature ohiteeage yield on other interesarning assets reflects the cur
philosophy by the FOMC of keeping short term insemates at historically low levels for the lasves@l years. The increased balance of other irte@sing assets refle
management’s decision to have higher liquid investis affording the Bank the latitude of capitaligon advantageous market opportunities.

Total interest expense decreased by $1.35 millidF0®2% to $11.95 million for the year ended Decen®i, 2012 from $13.30 million for the year en@etember 3:
2011. The decrease resulted primarily from a deeréathe average cost of interest-bearing liadliof twentyene basis points to 1.19% for the year ended DeeeBih 201
from 1.40% for the year ended December 31, 201rdiafig offset by an increase in the balance ofrage interesbearing liabilities of $56.5 million or 5.9% to $1L billion for
the year ended December 31, 2012 from $948.3 mificw the year ended December 31, 2011. The inere@athe balance of average interdsaring liabilities is primaril
attributable to the completion of the acquisitidnAlegiance Community Bank. The decrease in therage cost reflects the lower short term interast environment and ¢
ability to reduce our pricing on a select numberetéil deposit products.

The provision for loan losses totaled $4.9 millend $4.1 million for the years ended December 8122and 2011, respectively. The provision for ld@sses i
established based upon management’s review of #m&'8loans and consideration of a variety of factarduiding, but not limited to, (1) the risk charatstics of the loa
portfolio, (2) current economic conditions, (3)wdtlosses previously experienced, (4) the dynawiivity and fluctuating balance of loans receieglzsind (5) the existing le\
of reserves for loan losses that are probable atih@ble. During the year ended December 31, 2#2Bank experienced $3.05 million in net chaoffs-(consisting of $3.C
million in charge-offs and $35,000 in recoverid3iring the year ended December 31, 2011, the Bapérienced $2.01 million in net chargéfs (consisting of $2.03 million
charge-offs and $25,000 in recoveries). The Bamkrienperforming loans totaling $22.9 million or 2.45%grbss loans at December 31, 2012 and $47.8 miliidh61% o
gross loans at December 31, 2011. The decreaseniperforming loans resulted primarily from theesabf approximately $25.9 million in ngrerforming loans during tl
second quarter and third quarters of 2012. Thegmimeason for this transaction was the eliminatiboarrying and legacy costs associated with thesenterest earning asse
These sales resulted in a pae-loss of approximately $10.8 million. The allowea for loan losses was $12.4 million or 1.32%rofsg loans at December 31, 2012 as com|
to $10.5 million or 1.23% of gross loans at Decenidge 2011. Despite the decrease in performing loans, the provision and allowance @@l losses increased in recogni
of the growth in the loan portfolio and due to umaiaty regarding the impact of Hurricane Sandye Emount of the allowance is based on estimateshanaltimate losses m
vary from such estimates. Management assessedldhearece for loan losses on a quarterly basis anéie® provisions for loan losses as necessary ier dodmaintain th
adequacy of the allowance. While management usaitable information to recognize losses on loantyre loan loss provisions may be necessary basethanges in tt
aforementioned criteria. In addition various reguiip agencies, as an integral part of their exatiingprocess, periodically review the allowancel&@n losses and may reqt
the Bank to recognize additional provisions basetheir judgment of information available to thetrtlee time of their examination. Management beliethat the allowance {
loan losses was adequate at both December 31,a82012011.

Total noninterest income (loss) was a loss of ($7.23) milfior the year ended December 31, 2012 comparédimibme of $2.45 million for the year ended Decel
31, 2011. The decrease in non-interest incometegbprimarily from the aforementioned $10.8 millimss on sale of noperforming loans partially offset by an increas
$333,000 or 37.5% in gain on sale of loans origiddbr sale to $1.22 million for the year ended &wsber 31, 2012 from $887,000 for the year endecedber 31, 2011. Tl
increase in gain on sale of loans originated fte sacurred primarily as a result of the activealomarket for refinancing onfeur family residential mortgages, aided in le
part by the low interest rate environment. In ddditthe Bank sold approximately $10.6 million afnemercial business loans acquired in the Allegia@oenmunity Ban
acquisition which resulted in a gain of approxinha%286,000. Gain on sale of securities held tourit increased by $331,000 or 1,838.9% to $349adGhe year ende¢
December 31, 2012 from $18,000 for the year endeszkBber 31, 2011. Fees and service charges arrdhotiimterest income increased by $627,000 or 57.294 té2smillior
for the year ended December 31, 2012 primarily tduecreases in deposit account service charges,dpplication fees, and late charges from $1.1ibmior the year ende
December 31, 2011.
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Total noninterest expense increased by $5.38 million or %8t6 $33.89 million for the year ended December 112 from $28.51 million for the year en:
December 31, 2011. Unless specified otherwiseirttrease in the categories of nioterest expense occurred primarily as a resuth@facquisition of Allegiance Commur
Bank. Salaries and employee benefits expense seniday $2.34 million or 18.5% to $15.02 million fbe year ended December 31, 2012 from $12.68aomiftir the year end:
December 31, 2011. Occupancy expense increase819R0 or 17.1% to $3.56 million for the year eh@ecember 31, 2012 from $3.04 million for the yeaded Decemb
31, 2011. Equipment expense increased by $606,008.2% to $4.91 million for the year ended Decen8ie 2012 from $4.30 million for the year endecc®mber 31, 201
The primary component of this expense item is datgice provider expense which increases with theviip of the Banls assets. In addition, system conversion costsviaig
the acquisition of Allegiance Community Bank tothlapproximately $250,000. Professional fees ineddsy $1.2 million or 93.5% to $2.49 million foretlyear ende
December 31, 2012 from $1.29 million for the yeaded December 31, 2011. The increase is primatiby td several legacy lawsuits that arose as atrefthe busines
combination transaction with Pamrapo Bancorp, Dicector fees increased by $39,000 or 5.7% to $¥X&Bfor the year ended December 31, 2012 from $689%or the ye:
ended December 31, 2011. Regulatory assessmemtsaged by $9,000 or 0.85% to $1.17 million for yiear ended December 31, 2012 from $1.18 milliontieryear ende
December 31, 2011 primarily due to the new asseasshase methodology pursuant to the Dodd-Frankwhkith lowered the Bank'insurance premiums. Advertising expe
increased by $85,000 or 21.3% to $484,000 for & ynded December 31, 2012 from $399,000 for ¢lae gnded December 31, 2011. Merger related expeleseeased |
$538,000, as we had no such expenses for the pdadeéecember 31, 2012. Other real estate owneehegp increased by $732,000 or 60.8% to $1.94omifbr the yee
ended December 31, 2012 from $1.20 million for year ended December 31, 2011. The increase wasuisindue to an increase in writlswns of OREO properties
$455,000 or 89.2% to $965,000 for the year endeceDéer 31, 2012 compared to $510,000 for the ymded December 31, 2011, along with increases setosn sales
OREO properties by $183,000 or 36.5% to $681,00aHe year ended December 31, 2012 compared to,3®8or the year ended December 31, 2011. Othesimeres
expense increased by $409,000 or 12.83% to $3l®&mfbr the year ended December 31, 2012 from %3nillion for the year ended December 31, 2011 .eDtioninteres
expense is comprised of loan expense, stationamysfand printing, check printing, correspondemtkbfees, telephone and communication, and other ded expenses. Al
included in other nomterest expense were settlements in the amou®8%8,000 relating to several lawsuits that arosa ssult of the business combination transactiih
Pamrapo Bancorp, Inc and during normal course sinless.

We had an income tax benefit of $2.25 million foe tyear ended December 31, 2012 compared with prtassion of $3.37 million for the year ended Dateer 31

2011. The tax benefit resulted from the far4oss we experienced during the year ended Dieee81, 2012. The consolidated effective tax ratetfe year ended December
2012 was a tax benefit of 52.2% compared to taxigian of 35.8% for the year ended December 311201
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Results of Operations for the Years Ended Decemb@&l, 2011 and 2010

Net income decreased by $8.28 million or 57.8%&®% million for the year ended December 31, 20binf$14.33 million for the year ended December2R10. Thi
decrease in net income resulted primarily from erekese in non-interest income and increases ipritvsion for loan losses, nanterest expense and income taxes, par
offset by an increase in net interest income.

Net interest income increased by $13.2 million 81036 to $39.6 million for the year ended Decemider2)11 from $26.4 million for the year ended Debem31
2010. The increase in net interest income reswpitiedarily from an increase in the average balarfaeterest earning assets of $234.4 million or 27tb $1.1 billion for the ye.
ended December 31, 2011 from $865.6 million forytbar ended December 31, 2010, and an increabe iaverage yield on interest earning assets t@ {81 the year endt
December 31, 2011 from 4.63% for the year endecidéer 31, 2010. The average balance of interesingdabilities increased by $195.9 million or 2684 to $948.3 millio
at December 31, 2011 from $752.4 million at Decem@ig 2010 while the average cost of interest bediabilities decreased to 1.40% for the year dridecember 31, 20.
from 1.82% for the year ended December 31, 2010a Aasult of the aforementioned, our net intereatgin increased to 3.60% for the year ended DeceBihe2011 fror
3.05% for the year ended December 31, 2010.

The decrease in ndnterest income resulted primarily from a decreiasthe gain on bargain purchase of $11.4 milliorB6r5% to $1.2 million for the year enc
December 31, 2011 from $12.6 million for the yeaded December 31, 2010. The gain on bargain pusabifa$1.2 million recorded for the year ended Demen81, 2011 we
associated with the completion of the acquisitibrAlbegiance Community Bank. The gain on bargaimcgpase of $12.6 million for the year ended Decengigr2010 we
associated with the completion of the acquisitibR@mrapo Bancorp, Inc. A bargain purchase is @dfs a business combination in which the totaliaitapn-date fair value ¢
the identifiable net assets acquired exceeds tinevddue of the consideration transferred plus aoyp-controlling interest in the acquisition, and it vegs the acquiror
recognize that excess in earnings as a gain atblito the acquisition.

Interest income on loans receivable increased ByS$hillion or 30.4% to $45.0 million for the yeanded December 31, 2011 from $34.5 million for ykar ende
December 31, 2010. The increase was primarily dantincrease in average loans receivable of $I88lidn or 32.8% to $804.0 million for the yearded December 31, 20
from $605.3 million for the year ended DecemberZ1,0, partially offset by a decrease in the awerdgld on loans receivable to 5.60% for the yemieel December 31, 2C
from 5.70% for the year ended December 31, 2018.ifitrease in the average balance of loans is pynadtributable to the effect of a full year dfe balances of the Pamri
Bancorp, Inc. acquisition impacting our balanceestaad the completion of the acquisition of Allegia Community Bank during 2011. The decrease ire@eeyield reflects tt
competitive price environment prevalent in the Banfirimary market area on loan facilities as wellttas repricing downward of variable rate loanstiplly offset by th
inclusion of the loan portfolio from Allegiance Camnity Bank whose average yield was 6.42%.

Interest income on securities increased by $2.Bomibr 41.8% to $7.8 million for the year endedcBmber 31, 2011 from $5.5 million for the year ehB&cember 3
2010. The increase was primarily attributable tonanease in the average balance of securitie§4#$million or 42.1% to $217.4 million for the yeended December 31, 2(
from $153.0 for the year ended December 31, 204Qjafly offset by a slight decrease in the avergigéd on securities to 3.57% for the year endeddbeber 31, 2011 fro
3.58% for the year ended December 31, 2010. Tlatively static yield reflects the persistent loieng term interest rate environment prevalent fmestment securities oy
the last several years. The increase in the avérageace is primarily attributable to the effectadiull year of the balances of the Pamrapo Bandam acquisition impacting o
balance sheet and the completion of the acquisitiohllegiance Community Bank as well as the pusghaf $95.5 million of investment securities dur2@l1, partially offse
by repayments, prepayments and call options exetas investment securities of $85.1 million aslasl$2.4 million in proceeds from the sale of @erinvestment securities.

Interest income on other interesarning assets consisting primarily of intereshiear demand deposits decreased by $30,000 or 2606887,000 for the year enc
December 31, 2011 from $117,000 for the year efsmbmber 31, 2010. This decrease was primarilytal@aedecrease in the average balance of otheegttearning assets
$28.6 million or 26.6% to $78.8 million for the yeended December 31, 2011 from $107.4 million Fer year ended December 31, 2010. The averagegnetdher interest-
earning assets remained stable at 0.11% for the pealed December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2&l18.résult of the lower interest rate environmentofvernight deposi
during the year ended December 31, 2011, a deciedlke average balance resulted, as managemelotyddfunds into loans and investment securitieanireffort to achie\
higher returns and funding an outflow of retail dsips. The static nature of the average yield drepinterest earning assets reflects the curreildgaphy by the FOMC «
keeping short term interest rates at historically levels for the last several years.

Total interest expense decreased by $371,000 & &%13.3 million for the year ended December28L,1 from $13.7 million for the year ended Decenier201C
This decrease resulted primarily from a decreashdraverage cost of interest bearing liabiliteed #41% for the year ended December 31, 2011 fr@®294 for the year end
December 31, 2010, partially offset by an increiasthe average balance of total interest beariagilities of $195.9 million or 26.0% to $948.3 nwh for the year end:
December 31, 2011 from $752.4 million for the yeaded December 31, 2010. The decrease in the aveoajreflects the Compasyability to reduce the pricing on a se
number of retail deposit products. The increasthébalance of average interest bearing liabilieprimarily attributable to the effect of a fuylear of the balances of
Pamrapo Bancorp, Inc. acquisition impacting ouabeé sheet and the completion of the acquisitiohllefiance Community Bank.

The provision for loan losses totaled $4.1 milliand $2.45 million for the years ended December2®1,1 and 2010, respectively. The provision for It@sses i
established based upon management's review of #mk’8loans and consideration of a variety of factadduiding, but not limited to, (1) the risk charatstics of the loa
portfolio, (2) current economic conditions, (3)wltlosses previously experienced, (4) the sigaifidevel of loan growth and (5) the existing leskteserves for loan losses 1
are probable and estimable. During 2011, the Baplergenced $2.01 million in net charge-offs (cotisgs of $2.04 million in chargeffs and $30,000 in recoveries). Dur
2010, the Bank experienced $677,000 in net chaffge@nsisting of $689,000 in charge-offs and $08,in recoveries). The Bank had nacerual loans totaling $47.8 milli
at December 31, 2011 and $41.8 million at Decenier2010. The allowance for loan losses stood tSsmnillion or 1.23% of gross total loans at DecemBl1, 2011 ¢
compared to $8.4 million or 1.08% of gross totars at December 31, 2010. The amount of the alloevé@based on estimates and the ultimate lossgs/amg from suc
estimates. Management assesses the allowanceafolldsses on a quarterly basis and makes provistwriean losses as necessary in order to mairkeradequacy of tl
allowance. While management uses available infdonéab recognize losses on loans, future loan fssisions may be necessary based on changes iafdhementione
criteria. In addition, various regulatory agencias,an integral part of their examination processiodically review the allowance for loan losses anay require the Bank
recognize additional provisions based on their foelgt of information available to them at the tinfie¢heir examination. Management believes that tlevance for loan loss
was adequate at both December 31, 2011 and 2010.
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Total noninterest income decreased by $11.76 million or 82t8 $2.45 million for the year ended December2R1L,1 from $14.21 million for the year ended Decer
31, 2010. The decrease in nioterest income resulted primarily from a decreiasthe gain on bargain purchase of $11.4 millior8r5% to $1.2 million for the year enc
December 31, 2011 from $12.6 million for the yeadedd December 31, 2010. The gain on bargain pueabfa$1.2 million recorded for the year ended Demen81, 2011 we
associated with the completion of the acquisitibrAllegiance Community Bank. The gain on bargain pase of $12.6 million for the year ended Decemler2®10 wa
associated with the completion of the acquisitibRP@mrapo Bancorp, Inc. The decrease in non-iritéresme also reflects a $716,000 decrease inddssm writedowns an
the sales of fixed assets and property held fer teah loss of $716,000 for the year ended DeceBihe2011 from no such corresponding entries feryiar ended December
2010. This decrease occurred primarily as a redutie closing of one of our Hoboken offices ane thalization of the full amortization of the remiag life of the fixed asse
remaining on our balance sheet at the time of mtpsvhich totaled $592,000. Additionally, the safeacformer branch site resulted in a loss on tHe s&that property ¢
$124,000. Fees and service charges decreased /80861 6.7% to $846,000 for the year ended DeceBibe2011 from $907,000 for the year ended Dece®be2010. Othe
fees and service charges decreased by $172,0@D 740 $251,000 for the year ended December 311 #@m $423,000 for the year ended December 310.20his decrea:
resulted primarily as a result of three items odogrin 2010 for a total of $345,500 where no sitems occurred in 2011. Those items were as atrefal $237,500 litigatic
settlement with the Bayonne Medical Center, a $8Dj@covery from a previous charg#-regarding a check kiting incident and a $67,88€overy received through litigati
on a real estate facility where insurance proceezte improperly retained by a third party. Theserelases in nomterest income were partially offset by an inceeasgain o
sale of loans originated for sale of $592,000 d).2% to $887,000 for the year ended December 311 #@m $295,000 for the year ended December 310.20he increase
gain on sale of loans originated for sale occumeaharily as a result of the active local market fiefinancing one-to foufamily residential mortgages aided in large parttie
low interest rate environment. Additionally, durig@11 the Bank engaged in the underwriting and sftertain Small Business Administration, (SBAahs. Fees genera
through this activity in 2011 totaled $479,000ppposed to no such corresponding gain in 2010. Gaale of securities totaled $18,000 for the wealed December 31, 20
No such corresponding gain occurred for the yedeémecember 31, 201

Total noninterest expense increased by $6.15 million or %7t6 $28.51 million for the year ended December 111 from $22.36 million for the year eni
December 31, 2010. Unless specified otherwiseijntrease in the categories of noterest expense occurred primarily as a resulhefeffect of a full year of the expense
the combined institution subsequent to the conmgetif the acquisition of Pamrapo Bancorp, Inc. #redcompletion of the acquisition of Allegiance Goomity Bank. Salarie
and employee benefits expense increased by $1lignmir 17.6% to $12.7 million for the year endedd@mber 31, 2011 from $10.8 million for the yeadezhDecember 3
2010. This increase occurred primarily as a resfudin increase in the number of full time equivakemployees to two hundred six (206) at DecembeB11 from one hundr
sixty nine (169) at December 31, 2010 and from tgigiight (88) at December 31, 2009. Equipment expemseased by $1.0 million or 30.3% to $4.3 millimm the year ende
December 31, 2011 from $3.3 million for the yeadesh December 31, 2010. The primary component sfeékpense item is data service provider expensehvihcreases as 1
Bank’s assets increase. Occupancy expense increasetl byn$flion or 57.9% to $3.0 million for the yeanded December 31, 2011 from $1.9 million for tharyende
December 31, 2010. Occupancy expense increasearyiras a result of the beginning of the amortaatof significant renovations completed on certaffices that wer
acquired as a result of the acquisition of PamiBancorp, Inc. Advertising expense increased by G8Bpor 18.8% to $399,000 for the year ended Dece®be2011 fror
$336,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010e8simhal fees increased by $507,000 or 65.0% ®#illion for the year ended December 31, 2011 f&#80,000 for th
year ended December 31, 2010. The increase ingsiofeal fees resulted primarily from an increasée@al fees in conjunction with various represeatet of legal issut
encountered in the normal course of a growing fiesec Directorsfees increased by $136,000 or 24.6% to $689,00théyear ended December 31, 2011 from $553,00thé¢
year ended December 31, 2010. The increase intaiisédees resulted primarily from an increase in the bemof board and committee meetings, facilitatinggeatoria
awareness of the challenging operating, regulaad/ compliance environment. Other real estate ovenpeénses increased by $859,000 or 249.0% to $illi@mfor the yea
ended December 31, 2011 from $345,000 for the geded December 31, 2010. The increase was printréyto an increase in loss on sales of OREO piepaf $153,000 «
41.4% to $498,000 for the year ended December G112 2ompared to $345,000 for the year ended DeaeB8he2010 along with an increase in writewns of an ORE
property of $510,000 or 100% to $510,000 compacedat corresponding entry for December 31, 2010eOtioninterest expense increased by $702,000 or 28.24%$8.t
million for the year ended December 31, 2011 fr@r®3$nillion for the year ended December 31, 201 ificrease in other nanterest expense occurred primarily as a res
an increase in loan expense and fees associatedheitollection process on certain delinquent faailities. Additionally, other noimterest expense is comprised of statior
forms and printing, check printing, correspondemmibfees, telephone and communication, sharehodtietions and other fees and expenses. The afotemed increases
nondinterest expense were partially offset by a deeréasegulatory assessments of $23,000 or 1.9%4 tB8%million for the year ended December 31, 2Gdinf$1.20 millio
for the year ended December 31, 2010. Merger eektpenses decreased by $106,000 or 16.5% to $EB&)Othe year ended December 31, 2011 from $684{0r the yee
ended December 31, 2010. The decrease in mergagedetxpenses occurred primarily as a result ofatfiisition of Allegiance Community Bank being queted over
shorter time frame than the acquisition of Pamignocorp, Inc.

Income tax expense increased by $1.86 million & 2% to $3.37 million for the year ended Decemtier2d11 from $1.51 million for the year ended Deben31
2010. Net income decreased during the year endedniieger 31, 2011 as compared to the year ended Decedh, 2010, as the majority of income recordedHe year ende
December 31, 2010 was primarily attributable togh& on bargain purchase related to the completidhe acquisition of Pamrapo Bancorp, Inc. whicds considerably larg
than the gain associated with the Allegiance Comtyank in 2011. As the gains associated with ¢éheansactions are ndaxable, the income tax provision for the year e
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 was cdduéxclusive of these gains. Conversely, a poribthe expenses associated with the consummatitimeoPamrap
Bancorp, Inc. and Allegiance Community Bank tratisas categorized as merger related expenses adedactible for income tax purposes. The const#itiaffective incorr
tax rates for the years ended December 31, 2012@t@Iwere 35.8% and 9.5%, respectively.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table sets forth our contractual ghtions and commercial commitments at Decembe2&IL2.

Payments due by perioc
More than 3-5 More than 5

Contractual obligations Total Less than 1 Yea 1-3 Years Years Years

(In Thousands)
Benefit Plans $ 10,44: $ 64¢ $ 1,30C $ 1,30¢ $ 7,18¢
Borrowed mone! 131,12 17,00( — 110,00( 4,12¢
Lease obligation 7,96( 1,007% 1,641 1,40( 3,912
Certificates of depos 413,46¢ 286,16: 93,82¢ 33,28¢ 19¢
Total $ 562,99t $ 304,810 $ 96,76« $ 14599! $ 15,42(
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2@R3-Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reportindumounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Caghpnsiv
Income, to improve the transparency of reportingassifications out of accumulated other compreivensicome. The amendments in this ASU do not chahg currer
requirements for reporting net income or other ca@hensive income in financial statements. All af thformation that this ASU requires already isuieed to be disclost
elsewhere in the financial statements under U.SABA

The new amendments will require an organizatioprésent (either on the face of the statement winetrencome is presented or in the notes) the affaetthe line iten
of net income of significant amounts reclassified of accumulated other comprehensive income, blytibthe item reclassified is required under UGRAP to be reclassifie
to net income in its entirety in the same reporfiegod. The new amendments will also require @aization to present crossferences to other disclosures currently req
under U.S. GAAP for other reclassification itemsaftare not required under U.S. GAAP) to be reifladsdirectly to net income in their entirety ihnet same reporting peric
This would be the case when a portion of the ameeriassified out of accumulated other comprehensigome is initially transferred to a balance $la@eount (e.g. pension-
related amounts) instead of directly to incomexqrease.

The amendments apply to all public and private camgs that report items of other comprehensive nmecoPublic companies are required to comply witks¢
amendments for all reporting periods (interim andwel). Nonpublic companies are required to mezteporting requirements of the amended paragraiptst the roll forwar
of accumulated other comprehensive income for batrim and annual reporting periods. However, gtévcompanies are only required to provide therinéion about tr
impact of reclassifications on line items of natdme for annual reporting periods, not for intereporting periods.

The amendments of ASU 2002- are effective for reporting periods beginninteeDecember 15, 2012, for public companies andefieetive for reporting perio
beginning after December 15, 2013, for nonpublimpanies. The Company does not believe this pror@uant, when adopted, will have a material impacobperations ¢
financial position.

In December 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Statsdblpdate (“ASU”) No. 2011-12,Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of tHeedive Date fo
Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassificatadritems Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensiveoine in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-U5is standar
indefinitely defers certain provisions of ASU 2003-(described below). The amendments are effeftivéiscal years, and interim periods within thggars, beginning aft
December 15, 2011. The adoption of this guidandendi result in a change in financial conditionoperations, but did result in the presentationavhgrehensive income ir
separate Statements of Comprehensive Income (lro#® Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standdpitate (ASU) No. 2011-0%omprehensive Incom&he ASU eliminates the option to present componehtthe
comprehensive income as part of the statementafges in stockholdersquity and will require it be presented either siregle continuous statement of comprehensive ie
or in two separate but consecutive statements.siiigde statement format would include the tradiloimcome statement and the components of totaratbmprehensi
income as well as total comprehensive income. érto statement approach, the first statement woalthe traditional income statement which wouldnbeediately followe
by a separate statement which includes the compoémther comprehensive income, total other cemgnsive income and total comprehensive income.affendments
this ASU will be applied retrospectively. For pubtiompanies, they are effective for fiscal years] mterim periods within those years, beginninggrabDecember 15, 201
Early adoption is permitted. Adoption of ASU 2013.-dlid not have a significant impact on the Compamgnsolidated financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2004- Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmémtdchieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disok
Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. The amendmerttis update result in common fair value meas® and disclosure requirements in U.S. GAAP amterhatione
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Consequetitlyamendments change the wording used to desodabg of the requirements in U.S. GAAP for meagufair value an
for disclosing information about fair value measneats. Some of the amendments in this update yclthgé FASBS intent about the application of existing fair us
measurement requirements. Other amendments changartiaular principle or requirement for measurifgjr value or for disclosing information about faialue
measurements. This update is effective duringimtand annual periods beginning on or after Deeamils, 2011 and is to be applied prospectively eantly adoption is n
permitted. Adoption of ASU 2011-04 did not haveignificant impact on the Company’s consolidatedficial statements.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Management of Market Risk

Qualitative Analysis. The majority of our assets and liabilities are manein nature. Consequently, one of our most §icant forms of market risk is interest rate r
Our assets, consisting primarily of mortgage lo&uwasie longer maturities than our liabilities, catisig primarily of deposits. As a result, a priradipart of our business stratt
is to manage interest rate risk and reduce thesexpoof our net interest income to changes in ntarierest rates. Accordingly, our Board of Dirgstdas established
Asset/Liability Committee which is responsible fraluating the interest rate risk inherent in aageds and liabilities, for determining the levekigk that is appropriate giv
our business strategy, operating environment, alapiquidity and performance objectives, and foarmaging this risk consistent with the guidelinepraped by the Board
Directors. Senior management monitors the levehtrest rate risk on a regular basis and the Adabtlity Committee, which consists of senior mgeenent and outsi
directors operating under a policy adopted by tharB of Directors, meets as needed to review aatéisbility policies and interest rate risk pasit

Quantitative Analysis. The following table presents the Company’s net fpbiot value (“NPV”). These calculations were based upon assumptionevbdlito b
fundamentally sound, although they may vary frosuasptions utilized by other financial institutiori$e information set forth below is based on dhatd included all financi.
instruments as of December 31, 2012. Assumptioms haen made by the Company relating to interéss réoan prepayment rates, core deposit duraioth the market valu
of certain assets and liabilities under the variotsrest rate scenarios. Actual maturity datesewesed for fixed rate loans and certificate accountvestment securities w
scheduled at either the maturity date or the netxéduled call date based upon manageragmtigment of whether the particular security wdoddcalled in the current inter
rate environment and under assumed interest rateg0s. Variable rate loans were scheduled aseaf mext scheduled interest rate repricing datiittonal assumptions ma
in the preparation of the NPV table include prepeghrates on loans and mortgdggeked securities, core deposits without stateditpgtiates were scheduled with an asst
term of 48 months, and money market and nonintéessting accounts were scheduled with an assummadofe24 months. The NPV at “PAR&presents the difference betw
the Companys estimated value of assets and estimated valliabdfties assuming no change in interest ratdse NPV for a decrease of 200 to 300 basis poirgsbles
excluded since it would not be meaningful in theiast rate environment as of December 31, 2012 fdllowing sets forth the Company’s NPV as of Daber 31, 2012.

NPV as a % of Asset:

Change in calculation Net Portfolio Value $ Change from PAR % Change from PAR NPV Ratio Change
+300bp $ 100,07 $ (41,414 $ (29.27)% 8.81% (270  bps
+200bp 121,76( (19,729 (13.99) 10.4( (111)  bps
+100bp 135,34 (6,147) (4.39 11.2¢ (25  bps
PAR 141,48¢ — — 11.5] — bps
-100bp 147,57( 6,081 4.3C 11.8: 31 bps

bp-basis points
The table above indicates that at December 31,,201Be event of a 100 basis point increase ier@dt rates, we would experience a 4.34% decredsBV.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodoleged in the above interest rate risk measurerMdeling changes in NPV require making certairuagstion:
that may or may not reflect the manner in whictuakyields and costs respond to changes in manketeist rates. In this regard, the NPV table pteseassumes that 1
composition of our interestensitive assets and liabilities existing at thgifi@ng of a period remains constant over the pekieing measured and assumes that a part
change in interest rates is reflected uniformlyoasrthe yield curve regardless of the duratiorepricing of specific assets and liabilities. Acdngly, although the NPV tak
provides an indication of our interest rate risk@sure at a particular point in time, such measargmare not intended to and do not provide a geeforecast of the effect
changes in market interest rates on our net irtteresme, and will differ from actual results.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements identified in Item 15(x){&reof are included as Exhibit 13 and are incatea hereunder.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The required disclosure is incorporated by refezénche BCB Bancorp, Inc. Proxy Statement for2b&3 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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ITEM 9A. (T) CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedt

Under the supervision and with the participatioroof management, including our Chief Executive €ffiand Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated tfieativeness ¢
the design and operation of our disclosure continés procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) &ddlb(e) under the Exchange Act) as of Decembe2@12 (the Evaluatior
Date”). Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executivéc&ffand Chief Financial Officer concluded thatpéthe Evaluation Date, our disclosure controld procedures we
effective in timely alerting them to the materialdrmation relating to us (or our consolidated &tibsies) required to be included in our periodiECSfilings.

(b) Managemer's Annual Report on Internal Control over Finan&laporting.

Management of BCB Bancorp, Inc., and subsidiaties {Company”)is responsible for establishing and maintaininggadée internal control over financial reporti
The Companys system of internal control is designed underdingervision of management, including our Chief Exige Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to prade
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilityuoffimancial reporting and the preparation of themanys consolidated financial statements for externabrng purposes
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).

Our internal control over financial reporting indes policies and procedures that pertain to theter@ance of records that, in reasonable detaiyrately and fairl
reflect transactions and dispositions of assets;ige reasonable assurances that transactione@eded as necessary to permit preparation of idased financial statemer
in accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and ediperes are made only in accordance with the aiziion of management and the Board of Directars] provid
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidethction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opalition of the Compang’assets that could have a material effect o
consolidated financial statements. Because ofniterent limitations, internal control over finariciaporting may not prevent or detect misstatemeRtsjections on ar
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgest to the risk that the controls may becomeagaate because of changes in conditions or thategree of compliance w
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As of December 31, 2012, management assessedféativeiness of the Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting basgubmi the framework establishec
Internal Control— Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrthe Treadway Commission (COSO). Based upoasisgssment, managern
believes that the Company’s internal control ovearicial reporting as of December 31, 2012 is éffeaising these criteria.

(c) Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Repgr

There were no significant changes made in ournatezontrols during the fourth quarter of 2012torpur knowledge, in other factors that has matgrédfected or i:
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Comparipternal control over financial reporting.

See the Certifications pursuant to Section 30hef3arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics thatespfmi the Compang’chief executive officer, chief financial officer, controller or persons performing sim
functions. The Code of Ethics is available for fblgewriting to: President and Chief Executive OfficBCB Bancorp, Inc., 10410 Avenue C, Bayonne, New Jersey 07002

Code of Ethics was filed as an exhibit to the F&G¥K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The “Proposal I—Election of Directors” section bEtCompany’s definitive Proxy Statement for the @any’s 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (t2013 Prox

Statement”) is incorporated herein by referenaegponse to the disclosure requirements of Iteris4b, 406, 407(d)(4) and 407(d)(5) of RegulataK.

The information concerning directors and executffecers of the Company under the caption “Propddalection of Directors”and information under the captic

“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Compliance” &fle Audit Committee” of the 2013 Proxy Statemisnincorporated herein by reference.

There have been no changes during the last yele iprocedures by which security holders may recentmominees to the Company’s board of directors.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The “Executive Compensation” section of the Compm2@13 Proxy Statement is incorporated hereinetigrence.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTER S

The “Proposal |I—Election of Directors” section betCompany’s 2013 Proxy Statement is incorporageeih by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The “Transactions with Certain Related Personsti@ecand “Proposal I-Election of Directors—Boarddépendence” of the Compasy2013 Proxy Statement

incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by Item 14 is incorporatedrbference to the Company’s Proxy Statement fo28%8 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, “ProposaRA#tificatior

of the Appointment of Independent Auditors—FeesiRaiParenteBeard LLC.”

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)(1) Financial Statements

The exhibits and financial statement scheduled fife a part of this Form 10-K are as follows:

)
(B)
©
(D)
(E)
F
(©)

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiing

Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditionfd3ezember 31, 2012 and 20

Consolidated Statements of Operations for eacheo¥ars in the Thr-Year period ended December 31, 2!

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomssilLfor each of the Years in the Tt-Year period ended December 31, 2
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh¢ Equity for each of the Years in the Th-Year period ended December 31, 2!
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheo¥ears in the Thr-Year period ended December 31, 2!

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem:

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are noinejor applicable, or the required informatiorsti®wn in the consolidated statements or the nbtzeto.

(b)

Exhibits
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3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of BCB Bancorp, Int)

3.2 Bylaws of BCB Bancorp, Inc. (¢

3.3 Specimen Stock Certificate (

10.1  BCB Community Bank 2002 Stock Option Plan

10.2  BCB Community Bank 2003 Stock Option Plan

10.3  Amendment to 2002 and 2003 Stock Option Plan

10.4 2005 Director Deferred Compensation Plan

10.5 Employment Agreement with Donald Mindiak

10.6  Employment Agreement with Thomas M. Coughlin
10.7  Employment Agreement with Kenneth Walter (

10.8  Executive Agreement with Donald Mindiak (1

10.9  Executive Agreement with Thomas M. Coughlin (
10.10 Executive Agreement with Kenneth Walter (.

10.11 Consulting Agreement with Dr. August Pellegrini, (r4)
10.12 Consulting Agreement with James E. Collins (

10.13 BCB Bancorp, Inc. 2011 Stock Option Plan (

10.14 Employment Agreement with Amer Sale:

10.15 Executive Agreement with Amer Sale¢

13 Consolidated Financial Stateme

14 Code of Ethics (17

21 Subsidiaries of the Compal

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
31.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigihancial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 200z

)

@)
©)
4)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to @@mpany’s Registration Statement on Form S-1panded, (Commission File Number 3838214) originally filed wit
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Septebni2805.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 to the F8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarOctober 12, 200°
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the F8-K-12g3 filed with the Securities and Exchange Comimisen May 1, 2003
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany s Registration Statement on Fori-8 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodanuary 26, 200
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®)
(6)
@)

®)

©)

(10)
(11)
(12
(13)
(14
(15)

(16)

17

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenPany s Registration Statement on For-8 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodanuary 26, 200
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to thmdal Report on Form -K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissorMarch 16, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 te ompany’s Registration Statement on Form S-Bnaanded, (Commission File Number 3B23214) originally files
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onebelper 9, 200

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenk&-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorjuly 30, 2012
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thent&-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorjuly 30, 2012
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thent&-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorjuly 8, 201C
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to then&-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissinrDecember 15, 200
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to then6-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissinorDecember 15, 200
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to thenk6-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorjuly 8, 201C
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to thenfré-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorjuly 8, 201C
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenfré-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarSeptember 1, 201

Incorporated by reference to Appendix A topinexy statement for the Company’s Annual Meetih§loareholders (File No. 0080275), filed by the Company with 1
Securities and Exchange Commission on Scheduleotdarch 28, 2011

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14 to the AalriReport on Form -K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommisgiarMarch 26, 200+
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of teeuffties Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant thaly caused this report to be signed on its bebhgltthe
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BCB BANCORP, INC.

Date: March 18, 2013 By: Donald Mindiak
Donald Mindiak
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Duly Authorized Representativ

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh of 1934, this report has been signed belowhéyfollowing persons on behalf of the Registramd @ the
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
BCB Bancorp, Inc.
Bayonne, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatis of financial condition of BCB Bancorp, InedaSubsidiaries (collectively the “Company3 of Decembi
31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidatéensémts of operations, comprehensive income (lehshiges in stockholders' equity and cash flowgéah of the years in t
threeyear period ended December 31, 2012. These coatadidinancial statements are the responsibilitthef Company's management. Our responsibility isxjoress &
opinion on these consolidated financial statemeased on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBoUnited States). Those standards require thgtlan an
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoatathether the consolidated financial statemergsfree of material misstatement. Andit includes examining, on a1
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and digélesn the consolidated financial statements.a@idit also includes assessing the accounting piegiused and significe
estimates made by management, as well as evalubérayerall financial statement presentation. \&&be that our audits provide a reasonable basisur opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteenferred to above present fairly, in all maleréapects, the consolidated financial positioB6B Bancorp, Inc. ar
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 201 1thendonsolidated results of their operations aed ttash flows for each of the years in the threar period ended Decem
31, 2012, in conformity with accounting principlgsnerally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo#ddnited States), the Compaasyinternal control o
financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, basethe criteria established internal Control - Integrated Framewoi&sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatid
the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our reportddsliterch 18, 2013, expressed an unqualified opittieneon.

/sl Parente Beard LLC

Clark, New Jersey
March 18, 2013




Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
BCB Bancorp, Inc.
Bayonne, New Jersey

We have audited BCB Bancorp, Inc.’s (the “Comparigternal control over financial reporting as ofdeenber 31, 2012, based on criteria establishddtamnal Control—
Integrated Frameworlissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatimnghe Treadway Commission (COSO). BCB Bancor,.’'$nmanagement is responsible
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting, and for its assessment of the effeogss of internal control over financial reportimgluded in the accompanyi
Report on Management's Assessment of Internal @batrer Financial Reporting. Our responsibilitytisexpress an opinion on the Companiyiternal control over financ
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statelof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@g&nited States). Those standards require thatlare and perfori
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abouhemetfective internal control over financial refiog was maintained in all material respects. Quditaof internal control ove
financial reporting included obtaining an underdiag of internal control over financial reportiragsessing the risk that a material weakness eaisistesting and evaluating
design and operating effectiveness of internal robtased on the assessed risk. Our audit alsaded| performing such other procedures as we caesideecessary in t
circumstances. We believe that our audit providesaaonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is a@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranagliregthe reliability of financial reporting andettpreparation «
financial statements for external purposes in atanoze with accounting principles generally accepietie United States of America. A companyiternal control over financ
reporting includes those policies and procedures ¢h) pertain to the maintenance of records timateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refldw transactions a
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) igeveasonable assurance that transactions anelegcas necessary to permit preparation of finhstadements in accordar
with generally accepted accounting principles, #rat receipts and expenditures of the company aiggbtmade only in accordance with authorizationsnahagement al
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteaifounauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositibrthe companys asse’
that could have a material effect on the finansfatements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of any evatuatif effectiveness to futt
periods are subject to the risk that controls megome inadequate because of changes in conditorthat the degree of compliance with the policesprocedures m:
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all malerespects, effective internal control over fioal reporting as of December 31, 2012, basedriberia established
Internal Contro—Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiditke Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stadsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidated statementmah¢ial condition ar
the related consolidated statements of operat@mrmprehensive income (loss), changes in stockhsildguity, and cash flows of the Company, and our ntegeted March 1
2013 expressed an unqualified opinion.

/sl Parente Beard LLC
ParenteBeard LLC

Clark, New Jersey
March 18, 2013




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

ASSETS
Cash and amounts due from depository institut
Interes-earning deposit

Total cash and cash equivalents

Securities available for sa

Securities held to maturity, fair value $171,608 $213,903
respectively

Loans held for sal

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losde®l 2,363 an«
$10,509; respective

Premises and equipme

Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stc

Interest receivabl

Other real estate ownt

Deferred income taxe

Other asset
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Nor-interest bearing depos
Interest bearing depos
Total deposit:
Shor-term Debt
Long-term Debi
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock: $0.01 per value, 10,000,000 stearé®rized
issued and outstanding 865 shares of series A 6funaulative perpetui
preferred stock (liquidation preference value $00,per share) at December 31, 2!
and none at December 31, 2(
Additional paic-in capital preferred stoc
Common stock; $0.064 stated value; 20,000,000 slzarénorized
10,841,079 and 10,817,901 shares, respectiveligds
8,496,508 shares and 9,520,056 shares, respeabivisianding
Additional paic-in capital common stoc
Treasury stock, at cost, 2,344,571 and 1,297,84feshrespectivel
Retained earninc
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of t

Total Stockholders' Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitérsents.

December 31

2012 2011
(In Thousands, Except For Per Share Dat:
$ 6,242 $ 8,692
28,89! 108,39!
35,13t 117,08
1,24C 1,04t
164,64 206,96!
1,602 5,85¢
922,30: 840,76
13,56¢ 13,57¢
7,69¢ 7,49¢
4,06 4,997
3,27¢ 6,57(
10,05¢ 9,94(
7,77¢ 2,611
$ 1,171,35: $ 1,216,90:
$ 85,95( $ 78,58¢
854,83t 899,03«
940,78t 977,62
17,00( —
114,12: 129,53:
7,861 9,70¢
1,079,77 1,116,86!
8,57( —
694 692
91,84¢ 91,71t
(27,17) (16,32))
18,88: 25,25t
(1,235 (1,287)
91,58: 100,04
$ 1,171,35: $ 1,216,90:




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Interest income:
Loans
Investments, taxab
Investments, nc-taxable
Other intere-earning asse
Total interest income

Interest expense
Deposits
Demanc
Savings and clu
Certificates of depos

Borrowed money
Total interest expens:

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losse

Non-interest income (loss)
Fees and service char¢
Gain on sales of loans originated for ¢
Gain on sale of SBA loans acquil
Loss on bulk sale of impaired loans held in fodid
Loss on sale of property held for s
Loss on writ-down of fixed asset
Gain on sale of securities held to matu
Gain on bargain purcha
Other

Total nor-interest (loss) income

Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy expense of premi
Equipmen
Professional fee
Director fee
Regulatory assessme
Advertising
Merger related expens
Other real estate own
Other
Total nor-interest expense

Income (loss) before income tax (benefit) provisio
Income tax (benefit) provision

Net Income (loss,
Preferred stock dividenc

Net Income (loss) available to common stockholde

Net Income (loss) per common sha-basic and diluted
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average number of common shares outstandijt
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanastistents.

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(In Thousands, Except for Per Share Data
$ 47,75¢  $ 45,02 % 34,50:
5,73( 7,72( 5,451
49 49 24
112 87 117
53,64 52,87¢ 40,10(
564 84¢ 93¢
477 1,02( 1,304
5,84¢ 6,421 6,22(
6,89( 8,29( 8,462
5,057 5,007 5,20¢
11,947 13,297 13,66¢
41,70( 39,58: 26,43:
4,90(¢ 4,10¢ 2,45(
36,80( 35,48: 23,98:
1,59t 84€ 907
1,22( 887 29t
28€ —
(10,804 —
— (129 —
— (592 —
34¢ 18 —
— 1,16: 12,58:
12¢ 251 42:
(7,225) 2,44¢ 14,207
15,017 12,68( 10,78t
3,565¢ 3,03¢ 1,93:
4,901 4,301 3,29t
2,49( 1,287 78C
72¢ 68¢ 558
1,17 1,181 1,20¢
484 39¢ 33€
— 53¢ 644
1,93¢ 1,20¢ 34k
3,591 3,18¢ 2,48¢
33,88¢ 28,50¢ 22,35¢
(4,319 9,42¢ 15,83:
(2,257) 3,37: 1,50¢
$ (2,067 $ 6,051 $ 14,32¢
$ (2,069 $ 6,051 $ 14,32¢
$ (029 $ 0.6¢ $ 2.0¢€
$ (029 $ 064 $ 2.0
8,94% 9,41 6,96¢
8,947 9,43 6,98:




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (ks)

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(In Thousands)
Net Income (Loss $ (2,062 $ 6,051 $ 14,32¢
Other comprehensive income (los

Unrealized holding gains (losses) on séiesravailable for sale arising during the pel

Unrealized holding (losses) gainsiagisiuring the perior 19t (52) (21)

Less: reclassification adjustment(f@ins) losses included in net income (lc — — —

Benefit plan (107 (2,129 7

88 (2,189 (14)

Income tax effec (36) 88¢ 6

52 (1,297 (8)

Comprehensive income (los $ (2,010 $ 4,75¢  $ 14,31¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanastistents.




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity

Balance at December 31, 20C

Common Stock issued for the acquisition of PamiBgacorp, Inc
(4,935,495 shares, including 30,000 shares tranesféo treasury
Exercise of Stock Options (13,677 shai

Treasury Stock Purchases (193,383 sh

Cash dividend ($0.48 per share) decle

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Balance at December 31, 201

Common stock issued for the acquisition of Allegai€ommunity Bar
(issued 644,434 share

Exercise of Stock Options (28,637 shal

Stock compensation exper

Tax benefit on stock compensati

Treasury Stock Purchases (536,710 sh:

Cash dividends ($0.48 per share) decl:

Net income

Other comprehensive lo

Balance at December 31, 201

Proceeds from issuance of series A sti
net of issuance costs of $

Exercise of Stock Options (29,661 shai
Stock compensation exper

Treasury Stock Purchases (1,046,726 shi
Cash dividends ($0.48 per share) decl:
Net Loss

Other comprehensive incor

Balance at December 31, 201

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanaststents.

Accumulated
Other
Treasury Retainec Comprehensive

Preferred Stock Common Stoc} Paid In Capital Stock Earnings Income (Loss) Total
(Dollars in Thousands, except per share amount:
$ —$ 332 % 46,92¢ $ (8,719 9% 12,83¢ 13 51,39:
— 31€ 38,32¢ (23%) — — 38,4u
— 1 72 — — 73
— — — (1,809 — — (1,800
— — — — (341) — (3,419
—_ — — —  14,32¢ — 14,32¢
) )
— 64¢ 85,327 (10,76() 23,75 5 98,97:
— 41 6,12¢ — — — 6,167
— 2 23t — — — 237
— — 12 — — — 12
— — 15 — — — 15
— — — (5,569 — — (5,569
— — — — (4,549 —  (4,54¢
— — — — 6,051 — 6,051
(1,297 (1,299
— 692 91,71t (16,327 25,25t (1,287 100,04¢
8,57( 8,57(
— 2 107 — — — 10¢
— — 24 — — — 24
— — — (10,850 — — (10,850
— — — — (4,310 — (4,310
— — — — (2,069 — (2,06
— — — — — 52 52
$ —$ 694 $ 100,41¢ $ (27,177 $ 18,88! $ (1,235 $ 91,58:




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Cash flows from Operating Activities : (In Thousands)
Net income (los: $ (2,067 $ 6,051 $ 14,32¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income (lass)et cash provided by (used
operating activitie:
Depreciation of premises and equipn 1,14: 1,05¢ 64z
Amortization and accretion, 1,457 1,30¢ 1,871
Provision for loan loss 4,90( 4,10¢ 2,45(
Deferred income tax bene (149 (1,84%) (34))
Loans originated for se (30,137 (31,950 (26,147)
Proceeds from sale of loans originatedsébe 32,724 30,88¢ 19,43:
Gain on sales of loans originated for (1,220 (887) (295)
Loss on sales of other real estated ov 681 49¢ 34t
Loss on donated other real estate ownejiepty 12¢ — —
Loss on sale of property held for invesih — 124 —
Loss on leasehold improvements on bratading — 592 —
Write down of other real estate owi 96% 51C —
Gain on bargain purche — (1,167) (12,587)
Gain on sales of securities held to mat (349 (18 —
Gain on sales of SBA loans acqui (286) — —
Loss on bulk sale of impaired loans halgartfolio 10,80+ — —
Stock compensation expe! 24 12 —
Decrease in interest receive 934 64¢ 501
(Increase) decrease in other as (5,167 5,227 (1,207
(Decrease) increase in accrued interegtipea (29 26 (239
(Decrease) in other liabiliti (1,927) (937) (1,159
Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities 12,44( 14,23t (2,39)
Cash flows from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from repayments, calls, and ntiggion securities held to matur 67,48¢ 85,08¢ 156,75
Purchases of securities held to matt (57,33) (95,537 (104,99)
Proceeds from sales of securities hetldaturity 30,58 2,43¢ —
Proceeds from sales of SBA loans acqt 10,83¢ — —
Proceeds from sales of participation ggés in loan: — 4,77 1,70¢
Proceeds from sales of other real estatesd 4,227 2,72z 1,26(
Proceeds from bulk sale of impaired loagisl in portfolio 15,09: — —
Proceeds from sale of property held feegimen — 511 —
Purchases of loa (31,06¢) (2,297) —
Net (increase) decrease in loans reces (91,109 10,32 39,55!
Improvements to other real estate ow (59) (113) (32
Additions to premises and equipm (2,13¢ (2,24¢) (709
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank of Nevk stock (833) — —
Redemption of Federal Home Loan Bank ofvN@rk stock 63< 44 1,86¢
Cash acquired in acquisiti — 5,901 22,97¢
Net Cash (Used In) Provided by Invesiy Activities (52,669 11,61¢ 118,39:
Cash flows from Financing Activities:
Net decrease in depo: (36,837 (20,030) (13,26()
Repayment of lor-term debt (15,407 — (43,81%)
Net change in short term d 17,00( — —
Purchase of treasury stc (10,85() (5,567%) (1,80€)
Cash dividends pa (4,310 (4,549 (3,417
Net proceeds from issuance of common ¢ 10¢ 237 73
Net proceeds from issuance of preferredk 8,57( — —
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options — 15 —
Net Cash (Used In) Financing Activitie (41,725 (29,894 (62,22()
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and<baEquivalents (81,959) (4,040 53,78(
Cash and Cash Equivalent-Begininng 117,08 121,12 67,347
Cash and Cash Equivalent-Ending $ 3513 $ 117,08 $ 121,12




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Supplementary Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the year f
Income taxe
Interes

Non-cash items:
Transfer of loans to other real estateex
Loans to facilitate sales of other reghtesownec
Reclassification of loans originated fatesto held to maturit
Reclassification of property held for steeal estate owne

Acquisition of noncash assets and liabilitie
Assets acquire
Liabilities assume

AR TR @+

Lo

3,97¢
11,97:

4,46
1,821
2,881

AR TR Lol

Lol

AR R Lo

Lol

2,252
13,907

6,881
3,771
5,70

514,52
486,27!




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 - Organization and Stock Offerings

BCB Bancorp, Inc. (the “Companyf¥ incorporated in the State of New Jersey and igr&k holding company. The common stock of the Gomps listed on the Nasc
Electronic Bulletin Board and trades under the syifiBCBP.”

On December 20, 2012, the Company amended its tReésEertificate of Incorporation to include a newtiéle V, Part (C) which establishes a Series A B#nhcumulativi
Perpetual Preferred Stock and sets forth the nuwibeghhares to be included in such series, andktthé designation, powers, preferences, and rightse shares of each si
series and any qualifications, limitations or resitns thereof. Such amendment to the RestatetifiCate of Incorporation was approved by the dioes of BCB Bancorp, In
on October 10, 2012.

On December 31, 2012, the Company closed a prplatement of Series A Noncumulative Perpetual PmedeStock, resulting in the issuance of 865 shafeSeries A 69
Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Shares for grossepds of $8.65 million. The costs associated wighgrivate placement were approximately $80,00@. Strares issu
are callable by the Company after December 31, 28t1$10,000 per share (liquidation preferenceejallihere is no ability to convert the preferredrss to common shar
Dividends on the preferred shares, if and whenadled| will be paid quarterly in arrears.

On November 20, 2007, the Company announced a stpckchase plan which provided for the repurcld€®s or 234,002 shares of the Compangdmmon stock. This pl
was completed during 2010. On July 14, 2010, then@&my announced a stock repurchase plan to rema &% or 479,965 shares of the Compampmmon stock. This pl
was completed during 2010. On December 20, 20E0Cttmpany entered into an agreement with a brakaediminister a Rule 10bb+rading plan on behalf of the Compe
The Rule 10b8k trading plan will permit the broker to purchageta 450,000 shares of Company common stock aguigssid prices during periods when the Company v
otherwise be unable to purchase its common stdué.Board authorized the Rule 10b%rading plan on December 16, 2010. On Decembe20#1, the Company announce
stock repurchase plan to repurchase 5% or 462 2@%s of the Comparg’common stock. This plan was completed during 2@t2May 9, 2012, the Company announc
stock repurchase plan to repurchase 5% or 462/80@s of the Comparg/’common stock. This plan was completed during 2@t2June 28, 2012, the Company announ:
stock repurchase plan to repurchase 5% or 440)@8@s of the Comparg’common stock. During 2012, 2011 and 2010, a t6th|046,726, 536,710 and 193,383 shares (
Companys common stock was repurchased under these plamsagt of approximately $10.9 million, $5.6 mifli@and $1.8 million or $10.37, $10.37 and $9.34 giere
respectively.

The Company'’s primary business is the ownershipagadation of BCB Community Bank (the “BankThe Bank is a New Jersey commercial bank whiclof &ecember 3.
2012, operated at eleven locations in Bayonne, Kemalersey City, Monroe Township, South Orangd,\@inodbridge New Jersey, and is subject to regquiasupervision, ar
examination by the New Jersey Department of BankimdjInsurance and the Federal Deposit Insurangeo@dion. The Bank is principally engaged in tlwsibess of attractir
deposits from the general public and using thepedlts, together with borrowed funds, to invessécurities and to make loans collateralized bydezgial and commercial re
estate and, to a lesser extent, consumer loans. B&@#ing Company Investment Corp. (the “New Jerbeyestment Company'jvas organized in January 2005 under
Jersey law as a New Jersey investment company filsnba hold investment and mortgadecked securities. Pamrapo Service Corporationonganized in 1975 under N
Jersey law to engage in the purchase and salalodstate. In the 1990's, the Service Corporatias @ngaged in the business of selling fieancial products, (annuities, mut
funds and stocks) to the public. The Pamrapo Se@mrporation has been inactive since May 2010. Be® York Management, Inc. (the “New York Managem@ampany)
was organized in October 2012 under New York lava &ew York investment company primarily to holdigas loan products, investment and mortghgeked securitie
BCB New York Management, Inc. was inactive in 2012.

On July 6, 2010, the Company acquired all of thistanding common shares of Pamrapo Bancorp, IRanftapo”)the parent company of Pamrapo Savings Bank, amdl
acquired all of Pamrapo Savings Banl0 branch locations. Under the terms of the nmeageeement, Pamrapo stockholders received 1.@ sti@CB Bancorp, Inc. comm
stock in exchange for each share of Pamrapo constoggk, resulting in the Company issuing 4.9 millemmmon shares of BCB Bancorp, Inc. common stotk am acquisitio
date fair value of $38.6 million. See Note 19 fantfier details.

On October 14, 2011, the Company acquired all ef dhtstanding common shares of Allegiance CommuBépk (“Allegiance”)and thereby acquired all of Allegiar
Community Banks two branch locations. Under the terms of the ereagreement, Allegiance stockholders received 6f35share of BCB Bancorp, Inc. common stock
price of $9.57 per share in exchange for each stfafdlegiance common stock, resulting in BCB Bamzdnc. issuing 644,434 common shares of BCB Bgndac. commo
stock with an acquisition date fair value of $6.®@ion. See Note 19 for further details.




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Consolidated Financial Statement Preseniah

The consolidated financial statements which incliigeaccounts of the Company and its whollyaed subsidiaries, the Bank, the Investment Cosnpad Pamrapo Servi
Corporation, have been prepared in conformity wvaiticounting principles generally accepted in thetééhiStates of America. All significant intercompaagcounts ar
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

In preparing the consolidated financial statememinagement is required to make estimates and ptisusthat affect the reported amounts of assedsliabilities as ¢
the date of the consolidated statement of finanmialdition and revenues and expenses for the petleh ended. Material estimates that are partigusaisceptible t
significant change relate to the determinationhaf allowance for loan losses, the identificatiorotifer-thartemporary impairment of securities, the determoras ti
whether deferred tax assets are realizable, andetteemination of the fair value of financial instrents. Management believes that the allowancéor losses is adeque
no securities in unrealized loss positions areretthen-temporarily impaired; net deferred tax asbetve been reduced to an amount which is moriHtkan-not realizable
and the fair values of financial instruments arprapriate. While management uses available infdonab recognize losses on loans, future additiorthe allowance fc
loan losses may be necessary based on changesniongic conditions in the market area. Managemnseassessment regarding impairment of securitibassd on futu
projections of cash flow which are subject to clanthe realizability of deferred tax assets isigytbased on projections of future taxable incomvaich is subject |
change. The determination of fair value requiresutbe of various inputs which are subject to fragaed ongoing changes.

In addition, various regulatory agencies, as amgiral part of their examination process, periotijcaview the Banlks allowance for loan losses. Such agencies mayre
the Bank to recognize additions to the allowanazbtan their judgments about information availabldhem at the time of their examination.

In preparing these consolidated financial statemyehe Company evaluated the events that occuedekn December 31, 2012 and the date these atesalifinancic
statements were issued.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and amduetsom depository institutions and interbstring deposits in other banks having originalumiés of three months
less.

Securities Available for Sale and Held to Maturity

Investments in debt securities that the Companyth@apositive intent and ability to hold to maturére classified as held to maturity securities segbrted at amortiz
cost. Debt and equity securities that are bougtitheeid principally for the purpose of selling thémthe near term are classified as trading seesriéind reported at f
value, with unrealized holding gains and lossesuded in earnings. Debt and equity securities nasgsified as trading securities or as held to nitgtisecurities ar
classified as available for sale securities (“AF&ijl reported at fair value, with unrealized holdgains or losses, net of applicable deferred inctares, reported in t
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) coerg®f stockholders’ equity.

If the fair value of a security is less than itsaatized cost, the security is deemed to be impaik&&hagement evaluates all securities with unredlipsses quarterly
determine if such impairments are “temporary” ath&r-than-temporary” in accordance with Account8tgndards Codification (“ASC") Topic 32Dywvestments Debt anc
Equity SecuritiesAccordingly, temporary impairments are accountedbfised upon the classification of the related ritsesi as either available for sale or held to migtt
Temporary impairments on available for sale selesrire recognized, on a tax-effected basis, thr@ter Comprehensive Income (“OCWjth offsetting entries adjustil
the carrying value of the securities and the baafdeferred taxes. Conversely, the carrying &bfeheld to maturity securities are not adjustedémporary impairmen
Information concerning the amount and duration evhporary impairments on both available for sale hatll to maturity securities is disclosed in theesoto th
consolidated financial statements.

Other-than-temporary impairments are accounteddsed upon several considerations. First, otheriraporary impairments on equity securities and elot decuritie
that the Company has decided to sell as of thedba fiscal period, or will, more likely than nde required to sell prior to the full recoveryfair value to a level equal

or exceeding amortized cost, are recognized inirgsnlf neither of these conditions regardingltkelihood of the sale of debt securities are aggtlie, then the other-than-
temporary impairment is bifurcated into credit-tethand noncredit-related components. A cregldted impairment generally represents the ambynthich the prese
value of the cash flows that are expected to bleateld on a debt security fall below its amortipedt. The noncreditlated component represents the remaining pooff
the impairment not otherwise designated as cretited. Credit-related, other-than-temporary impaints are recognized in earnings and noncredieclather-than-
temporary impairments are recognized in OCI. Eqgsétgurities on which there is an unrealized loas ithdeemed other-thaamporary are written down to fair value v
the write-down recognized in earnings.

Premiums and discounts on all securities are ansaitaccreted to maturity using the interest methadrest and dividend income on securities, windiudes amortizatic
of premiums and accretion of discounts, are recmghin the consolidated financial statements wianesl. Gains or losses on sales are recognized basthe specif
identification method.

Loans Held For Sale
Loans held for sale consist primarily of residdntreortgage loans intended for sale and are caaietie lower of cost or estimated fair market valseng the aggrege

method. These loans are generally sold with sergioghts released. Gains and losses recognizéohorsales are based upon the cash proceeds reesigie¢he cost of tl
related loans sold.




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued )
Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are stated at unpaid principaras, less net deferred loan origination feedtamdllowance for loan losses. Loan originatiorsfaed certain direct lo
origination costs are deferred and amortized/aedrets an adjustment of yield, over the contradived of the related loans.

The accrual of interest on loans that are contedigtudelinquent more than ninety days is discorgthiand the related loans placed on nonaccrualsstiataome i
subsequently recognized only to the extent th&t pagments are received until delinquency statusdsced to less than ninety days, in which casdadan is returned
accrual status.

Acquired Loans

Loans that were acquired in acquisitions are rezmat fair value with no carryover of the relatidveance for credit losses. Determining the failuesof the loans involve
estimating the amount and timing of principal antgtiest cash flows expected to be collected ototires and discounting those cash flows at a maaketof interest.

The excess of cash flows expected at acquisitien the estimated fair value is referred to as tlweedable discount and is recognized into intdresime over the remaini
life of the loan. The difference between contraltyueequired payments at acquisition and the cdstved expected to be collected at acquisition i®mefd to as tf
nonaccretable discount. The nonaccretable discmymesents estimated future credit losses expaotbeé incurred over the life of the loan. Subsetjdeatreases to t
expected cash flows require an evaluation to détertihe need for an allowance for credit lossebs8guent improvements in expected cash flows restite reversal of
corresponding amount of the nonaccretable disoatith is then reclassified as accretable discduattis recognized into interest income over theaiaing life of the loa
using the interest method. The evaluation of thewarof future cash flows that is expected to biéected is performed in a similar manner as thadu® determine o
allowance for credit losses. Charge-offs of the@pal amount on acquired loans would be first igojplo the nonaccretable discount portion of theviaue adjustment.

Acquired loans that met the criteria for nonaccrfainterest prior to the acquisition may be coesid performing upon acquisition, regardless ofthérethe customer
contractually delinquent, if we can reasonablyneste the timing and amount of the expected casVsflin such loans and if we expect to fully colkbet new carrying valt
of the loans. As such, we may no longer considerdhn to be nonaccrual or nonperforming and mayuacinterest on these loans, including the impéetny accretab
discount. We have determined that we cannot rea$peatimate future cash flows on any such acquoeads that are past due 90 days or more and centintreat them
non-accrual.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is increased thrqurghisions charged to operations and by recoveifiesiy, on previously charged-off loans and reduibg chargesffs or
loans which are determined to be a loss in accomlaith Bank policy.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel leonsidered adequate to absorb loan losses.ddarent, in determining the allowance for loan Isssensiders the ris
inherent in its loan portfolio and changes in théure and volume of its loan activities, along wiie general economic and real estate market ¢onslitThe Bank utilizes
two tier approach: (1) identification of impairezhhs and establishment of specific loss allowancesuch loans; and (2) establishment of generaktiah allowances «
the remainder of its loan portfolio. The Bank mains a loan review system which allows for a pedadview of its loan portfolio and the early idiiceition of potentiall
impaired loans. Such a system takes into considarabut is not limited to, delinquency status,esef loans, types and value of collateral, andrfai condition of th
borrowers. Specific loan loss allowances are estadal for impaired loans based on a review of saftitmation and/or appraisals of the underlyingateral. General loz
loss allowances are based upon a combination edriadncluding, but not limited to, actual loan dosxperience, composition of the loan portfoliofrent economi
conditions, and management’s judgment.

Although management believes that adequate spexrificgeneral allowances for loan losses are esihlj actual losses are dependent upon futureseaadt as suc
further additions to the level of specific and gahéan loss allowances may be necessary.

Impaired loans are measured based on the predertafaexpected future cash flows discounted atdha’s effective interest rate, or as a practeqiedient, at the loas’
observable market price or the fair value of thkateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Adaavaluated for impairment is deemed to be impairkeen, based on curre

information and events, it is probable that the lBadll be unable to collect all amounts due accogdio the contractual terms of the loan agreenfdhtoans identified a

impaired are evaluated independently. The Bank do¢sggregate such loans for evaluation purpd3agments received on impaired loans are applistl tfir accrue

interest receivable and then to principal.

Concentration of Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject thempany and its subsidiaries to concentrationsredlit risk consist of cash and cash equivalemgestment ar
mortgage-backed securities and loans.

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts pladadghly rated financial institutions. Securitieslude securities backed by the U.S. Governmedtather highly rate
instruments. The Bank’'lending activity is primarily concentrated in fzacollateralized by real estate in the State off Nersey. As a result, credit risk related to loa
broadly dependent on the real estate market anefglezconomic conditions in the State.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued )
Premises and Equipment
Land is carried at cost. Buildings, building impeovents, leasehold improvements and furniture, ieg@and equipment are carried at cost, less acetedulepreciation a

amortization. Significant renovations and additians charged to the property and equipment accMaihtenance and repairs are charged to expertse jperiod incurre:
Depreciation charges are computed on the straiightrhethod over the following estimated usefuldied each type of asset.

Years
Buildings 40
Building improvements 7-40
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5
Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life ¢

term of lease
Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB") of New York Stock
Federal law requires a member institution of théBldystem to hold stock of its district FHLB acciglto a predetermined formula. Such stock is edrait cost.

Management evaluates the FHLB of New York stockifigpairment in accordance with guidance on accagniy entities that lend to or finance the actatof other:
Managemensg determination of whether this investment is imgrhiis based on their assessment of the ultimaieveeability of their cost rather than by recogng
temporary declines in value. The determination bétlier a decline affects the ultimate recoverahiifttheir cost is influenced by criteria such &@pthe significance of tt
decline in net assets of the FHLB of New York ampared to the capital stock amount for the FHLBNefv York and the length of time this situation Ipessisted, (-
commitments by the FHLB of New York to make paynsaetquired by law or regulation and the level afrspayments in relation to the operating perforreasfche FHLE
of New York, and (3) the impact of legislative aegjulatory changes on institutions and, accordimgiythe customer base of the FHLB of New York.

No impairment charges were recorded related té-HieB of New York stock during 2012, 2011, or 2010.
Other Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foosares are held for sale and are initially recorakefhir value less cost to sell at the date ogédtwsure, establishing a n
cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuatimperiodically performed by management and thetasse carried at the lower of carrying amourfarvalue less cost
sell. Costs relating to development and improveneémiroperty are capitalized, whereas costs rejatiinthe holding of property are expensed. At Ddzem81, 2012, tt
Bank owned twelve properties totaling $3,274,000D&cember 31, 2011, the Bank owned fifteen prageetotaling $6,570,000.

Interest Rate Risk

The Bank is principally engaged in the businesattficting deposits from the general public andigishese deposits, together with other funds, tkemi@ans secured
real estate and to purchase securities. The patéotiinterest-rate risk exists as a result ofdtference in duration of the Bank’s interagnsitive liabilities compared to
interest-sensitive assets. For this reason, maragemagularly monitors the maturity structure of ank’s interest-earning assets and intdveating liabilities in order
measure its level of interest-rate risk and to parfuture volatility.

Income Taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consoliidéeleral income tax return. Income taxes are atkgtto the Company and its subsidiaries based th@inrespectiv
income or loss included in the consolidated inceaxereturn. Separate state income tax returnslacelfy the Company and its subsidiaries.

Federal and state income tax expense has beemedovn the basis of reported income. The amoufiected on the tax returns differ from these primris due principall
to temporary differences in the reporting of certigéms for financial reporting and income tax neipg purposes. The tax effect of these temporé#fgrénces is account
for as deferred taxes applicable to future peridferred income tax expense or (benefit) is detethby recognizing deferred tax assets and lt@slifor the estimate
future tax consequences attributable to differefegaeen the financial statement carrying amouhexisting assets and liabilities and their resipectax bases. Deferr
tax assets and liabilities are measured using etideix rates expected to apply to taxable incomihenyears in which those temporary differenceseagected to t
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taetasand liabilities of a change in tax rates cogaized in earnings in the period that includes eéhactment date. T
realization of deferred tax assets is assessed aatiation allowance provided, when necessanthtairportion of the asset which is not more likisigin not to be realized.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued )

The Company accounts for uncertainty in income gaseeognized in the consolidated financial stateémén accordance with ASC Topic 74@come Taxes whick
prescribes a recognition threshold and measureatgiitute for the financial statement recognition aneasurement of a tax position taken or expdotée taken in a t:
return, and also provides guidance on derecognitiassification, interest and penalties, accognitininterim periods, disclosure and transitiorta& position is recogniz:
as a benefit only if it is “more likely than natfiat the tax position would be sustained in a tean@nation, with a tax examination being presun@ddcur. The amou
recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit ltiaa a likelihood of being realized on examinatdmore than 50 percent. For tax positions nottmgehe ‘more likely
than not” test, no tax benefit is recorded. Undher ‘tmore-likely-than-notthreshold guidelines, the Company believes no fagmit uncertain tax positions exist, eit
individually or in the aggregate, that would giveerto the nomecognition of an existing tax benefit. The Compaegognizes interest and penalties on unrecogrex
benefits in income taxes expense in the ConsolidStatement of Operations. The Company did notgrEze any interest in 2011, however the Companyreadgniz
$11,000 for penalties assessed during an auditiaf periods. The Company did not recognize angregt and penalties for the years ended Decemh&032 and 201
The tax years subject to examination by the tazimthorities are the years ended December 31, 2010, and 2009.

Net Income (Loss) per Common Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share is cordpatedividing net income (loss) less dividends oaf@rred stock by the weighted average number afeshof commc
stock outstanding. The diluted net income (loss)goenmon share is computed by adjusting the weijaterage number of shares of common stock ouistabal include
the effects of outstanding stock options, if dileti using the treasury stock method. Dilution is aygplicable in periods of net loss. For the yearded December 31, 2(
and 2010, the difference in the weighted averageb®u of basic and diluted common shares was dedydol the effects of outstanding stock options.adfustments to n
income (loss) were necessary in calculating basicdiluted net income (loss) per share. For thesyeaded December 31, 2011 and 2010, the weightrdge number
outstanding options considered to be anti-dilutiees 209,441, and 243,884.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The Company, under plans approved by its stockmeltle2011, 2003 and 2002, has granted stock aptieremployees and outside directors. See noterl&dditions
information as to option grants. Compensation egspercognized for all option grants is net of eated forfeitures and is recognized over the awardgiective requisi
service periods. The fair values relating to aliaps granted are estimated using a Bl&ckoles option pricing model. Expected volatilittee based on historical volatil
of our stock and other factors, such as impliedketavolatility using this options expected termeT@ompany used the mbint of the original vesting period and origi
option life to estimate the options’ expected tewhjch represents the period of time that the eystigranted are expected to be outstanding. Theraskrate for perioc
within the contractual life of the option is basau the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at ineetof grant. The Company recognizes compensatiperese for the fe
values of these option awards, which have gradstinge on a straight-line basis over the requisitevice period of these awards.

Benefit Plans

The Company acquired through the merger with PamBgmcorp, Inc. a nooentributory defined benefit pension plan coveritigeligible employees of Pamrapo Savi
Bank. Effective January 1, 2010, the defined bémpefnsion plan (the “Pension Planijas frozen by Pamrapo Savings Bank. All benefitefgible participants accrued
the “Pension Plan” to the freeze date have beeainezt. The benefits are based on years of servideemployees compensation. The defined benefit plan is furid
conformity with funding requirements of applicaldevernment regulations. Prior service costs for deéined benefit plan generally are amortized aber estimate
remaining service periods of employees. Additionaltith the merger with Pamrapo Bancorp, Inc., aerformer employees of Pamrapo Bank are coveretrue
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”)uafunded non-qualified deferred retirement plaartifipants who retire at the age of 65 (tidofmal Retiremer
Age”), are entitled to an annual retirement benefit equal5% of compensation reduced by their retirenpdamt annual benefits. Participants retiring befibie Norma
Retirement Age receive the same benefits reducedg®rcentage based on years of service to the &ogngnd the number of years prior to the Normair&aent Age th:
participants retire.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The Company records unrealized gains and lossesf eferred income taxes, on securities availfdnlesale in accumulated other comprehensive inclass). Realize
gains and losses, if any, are reclassified to interest income upon sale of the related securdresipon the recognition of an impairment loss. wunalated othe
comprehensive income (loss) also includes benkfit pmounts recognized in accordance with ASC Thnpensation-Retirement Benefitghich reflect, net of tax, tl
unrecognized gains (losses) on the benefit plans.

Reclassification

Certain amounts as of and for the years ended Dmere®1, 2011 and 2010 have been reclassified tiooarto the current yeas’presentation. These changes had no
on the Company'’s results of operations or finanoésition.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued )

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2@3-Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): ReportindAofounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Caghpnsiv
Income, to improve the transparency of reportirdassifications out of accumulated other comprelveriscome. The amendments in this ASU do not chehg curret
requirements for reporting net income or other cahgnsive income in financial statements. All & thformation that this ASU requires already isuieed to be disclos¢
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statememter U.S. GAAP.

The new amendments will require an organizatioprésent (either on the face of the statement whetréncome is presented or in the notes) the affectthe line items
net income of significant amounts reclassified@fuaiccumulated other comprehensive income, butibtifye item reclassified is required under U.S.AFAto be reclassifie
to net income in its entirety in the same reportoegiod. The new amendments will also require ajaization to present crossference to other disclosures curre
required under U.S. GAAP for other reclassificatitems (that are not required under U.S. GAAP) ¢oréclassified directly to net income in their gty in the san
reporting period. This would be the case when gigroof the amount reclassified out of accumulatéter comprehensive income is initially transferted balance she
account (e.g. pension-related amounts) insteadt@dtty to income or expense.

The amendments apply to all public and private camigs that report items of other comprehensivenmed?ublic companies are required to comply wigs¢hamendmer
for all reporting periods (interim and annual). lablic company are required to meet the reporteguirements of the amended paragraphs about théoratard o
accumulated other comprehensive income for boirimtand annual reporting periods. However, privampanies are only required to provide the infdiomaabout th
impact of reclassifications on line items of netame for annual reporting periods, not for intereporting periods.

The amendments of ASU 2002 are effective for reporting periods beginnintgeafDecember 15, 2012, for public companies andeffextive for reporting perios
beginning after December 15, 2013, for nonpublimpanies. The Company does not believe this proreonent, when adopted, will have a material impaabperations ¢
financial position.

In December 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Staisd&pdate (“ASU”) No. 2011-12,Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of théedive Date fo
Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassificatminkems Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensiveoine in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-0%is
standard indefinitely defers certain provisionsA8U 201105 (described below). The amendments are effeétivéiscal years, and interim periods within thossars
beginning after December 15, 2011. The adoptiothisf guidance did not result in a change in thesgm&ation of comprehensive income in the Compaoyghsolidate
financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standdpifate (ASU) No. 2011-0%;omprehensive Incom&he ASU eliminates the option to present componehtsthe
comprehensive income as part of the statementarigds in stockholdergquity and will require it be presented either isirggle continuous statement of compreher
income or in two separate but consecutive statesndrite single statement format would include tlaglitional income statement and the components taf tithe
comprehensive income as well as total comprehensogne. In the two statement approach, the fiesement would be the traditional income statermdrich would bi
immediately followed by a separate statement whicludes the components of other comprehensiveniecdotal other comprehensive income and total cehgnsiv
income. The amendments in this ASU will be applietfospectively. For public companies, they aredife for fiscal years, and interim periods withitose year
beginning after December 15, 2011. Adoption of AB11-05 did not have a significant impact on thenBany’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2004 Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmeat#\chieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Dssok
Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. The amendmianthis update result in common fair value measeret and disclosure requirements in U.S. GAAP
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)nsequently, the amendments change the wordied tes describe many of the requirements in U.S. 84é
measuring fair value and for disclosing informatadout fair value measurements. Some of the amemdrirethis update clarify the FAS8Iintent about the application
existing fair value measurement requirements. Giheendments change a particular principle or requént for measuring fair value or for disclosinfpimation about fa
value measurements. This update is effective duriterim and annual periods beginning on or aitecember 15, 2011 and is to be applied prospegtivatioption o
ASU 2011-04 did not have a significant impact o @ompany’s consolidated financial statements.

Note 3 - Related Party Transactions

The Bank leases a property from NEW BAY LLC (“NEWAB"), a limited liability corporation 100% owned by a méfy of the Directors and officers of the Bank
conjunction with the lease, NEW BAY substantialgnmoved the prexisting structure on the site and constructed & beilding suitable to the Bank for its bank
operations. Under the terms of the lease, theafdbis project was reimbursed to NEWBAY by the Bafihe amount reimbursed, which occurred duringytres 2000, we
$943,000, and is included in property and equipmeder the caption “Building and improvements” (bkse 7).

On May 1, 2006, the Bank renegotiated the leasetteentyfive year term. The Bank paid NEW BAY $165,000 ary¢b13,750 per month) for the first 60 months \uhi
included in the consolidated statements of operatfor 2012, 2011, and 2010 within occupancy expefigremises. The rent shall be reset every fagrythereafter at t
fair market rental value at the end of each preagfive year period. The Bank expects to pay NEWYBFL65,000 for the year 2013.

On February 8, 2012, the Bank entered into a tvas ease of a warehouse with a Director of the Bahle purpose of the lease is to store documentsumable supplie
equipment, and furniture not currently in use by Bank. The Bank paid $18,700 in the year 2012ckvis reflected in the 2012 Consolidated Staternér@peration
within occupancy expense of premises. The Bankaspe pay $20,400 for the year 2013.

The Bank leases a property in Woodbridge, New yeireen ACB Development LLC, owned by the former &itors of Allegiance Community Bank, including it
Gary Stetz and Director Spencer Robbins. The Baxi# $108,000 in rent in the year 2012, which idextéd in the 2012 Consolidated Statement of Op&Estwithir
occupancy expense of premises. The Bank expepeyt$110,000 for the year 2013.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4- Securities Available for Sale

December 31, 201,

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(In Thousands)
Equity Securitie-Financial Institution: $ 109 $ 14 8 — $ 1,24C
December 31, 201
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(In Thousands)
Equity Securities-Financial Institutions $ 1,097 $ 70 $ 12z $ 1,04¢
The unrealized losses, categorized by the lengtimef of continuous loss position, and fair valfieedated securities available for sale were ag¥s:
Less than 12 Months More than 12 Months Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(In Thousands)
December 31, 201.
Equity Securitie-Financial Institution: $ — % — % — % — % — % —
December 31, 201
Equity Securities-Financial Institutions $ 87¢ $ 12z $ — 3 — 3 87¢ $ 122
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5 — Securities Held to Maturity

December 31, 201,

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealizec Unrealizec
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(In Thousands
Residential mortga-backed securitie:

Due within one yes $ — — 3 — 3 —
Due after one year through five ye 4 — — 4
Due after five years through ten ye 9,48( 171 18 9,63t
Due after ten yeal 153,42} 6,741 38 160,13¢
162,90¢ 6,91¢ 56 169,77:
Municipal obligations

Due after five to ten yea 38¢ 28 — 41¢€
Due after ten yeal 97& 65 — 1,04(
1,368 93 — 1,45¢

Trust originated preferred securi
Due after ten yeal 37€ — = 37¢€
$ 164,64¢ $ 7,011 $ 56 $ 171,60:

The amortized cost and carrying values shown alaogeby contractual final maturity. Actual matutieill differ from contractual final maturities due scheduled montt
payments related to mortgadpaeked securities and due to the borrowers hatiagight to prepay obligations with or without pagment penalties. As of December 31, -
and December 31, 2011, all residential mortgag&dzhsecurities held in the portfolio were Governtrigmonsored Enterprise securities.

In 2012 and 2011, management decided to sell nemairtgage-backed securities that were issued déy-é&ueral National Mortgage Association (“FNMAdihd the Feder
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC'\While these securities were classified as held atunity, ASC 320 (formerly FAS 115) allows salessefurities so designat
provided that a substantial portion (at least 86%pe principal balance has been amortized padhé sale. During the years ended December 32, 20d 2011, proceeds fri
sales of securities held to maturity totaled appnately $30.6 million and $2.4 million, respectiyeland resulted in gross gains of approximately5$a@0 and $25,00
respectively, and gross losses of approximatelydfb6and $7,000, respectively.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5 — Securities Held to Maturity (Continued)

U.S. Government Agencie
Due within one yea
Due after ten yeal

Residential mortga-backed securitie:
Due within one yes

Due after one year through five ye
Due after five years through ten ye
Due after ten yeal

Municipal obligations
Due after five to ten yea
Due after ten yeal

Trust originated preferred securi
Due after ten yeal
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December 31, 201

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealizec Unrealizec
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In Thousands
$ 33t % 38 % — 3,35¢
3,00( 12 — 3,012
6,31¢ 50 — 6,36¢
9 — — 9
1,32¢ 32 3 1,35¢
37,03¢ 417 44 37,407
160,50¢ 6,46¢ 73 166,90(
198,87 6,91: 12C 205,67(
391 30 — 421
97¢ 59 — 1,03¢
1,37( 89 — 1,45¢
402 6 — 40¢
$ 206,96! $ 7,05¢ $ 12C  $ 213,90:




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5 — Securities Held to Maturity (Continued)

The unrealized losses, categorized by the lengtimef of continuous loss position, and fair valfieedated securities held to maturity were as foo

Less than 12 Montt More than 12 Month Total
Fair Unrealizec Fair Unrealizec Fair Unrealizec
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(In Thousands
December 31, 201

Residential mortgag+-backed securities $ 14,09! $ 56 $ — — 14,09 $ 56
$ 14,09: $ 56 $ — 8 —  $ 14,09: $ 56

December 31, 201

Residential mortga-backed securitie $ 16,94¢ $ 82 $ 594: $ 38 3 22,89: $ 12C
$ 16,94¢ $ 82 $ 594: $ 38 $ 22,89 $ 12C

At December 31, 2012, management concluded thairttealized losses above (which related to 16 ragefacked securities) are temporary in nature sineg dne related
interest rate fluctuations rather than any undegdyiredit quality of the issuers. Additionally, tBempany has not decided to sell these securitidshas concluded that it
unlikely it would be required to sell these sedesitprior to the anticipated recovery of the urireal losses.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses

The following table presents the recorded investrireloans receivable at December 31, 2012 and @bee 31, 2011 by segment and class.

December 31, 201 December 31, 20:
(In Thousands

Real estate mortgag

Residentia $ 202,92t $ 218,08t
Commercial and mu-family 588,26 472,42:
Construction 23,31( 17,00(
814,50: 707,50¢
Commercial:
Business loan 20,41¢ 30,29(
Lines of credit 39,25 44,28:
59,66¢ 74,57
Consumer
Passhook or certifica 73€ 80¢
Home equity lines of cred 17,84: 18,92¢
Home equity 42,55: 50,15:
Automobile 37 10¢
Personal 567 301
61,73: 70,28¢
Deposit overdrafts 294 95
Total Loans 936,19¢ 852,46!
Deferred loan fees, n (1,53% (1,199
Allowance for loan losse (12,362) (10,509
(13,899 (11,707
Net Loans $ 922,30: $ 840,76:

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, loans serviced &Btnk for the benefit of others, which consispaiticipation interests in loans originated by Bak, totaled approximate
$11.6 million and $6.3 million, respectively.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

The following table presents unpaid principal bae@and the related recorded investment in loansimhvia acquisitions of other companies incluite@ur Consolidate
Statements of Financial Condition.

December 31  December 31

2012 2011
(In Thousands, (In Thousand:s
Unpaid principal balanc $ 330,09 $ 410,05
Recorded investme 326,71 405,95:

The following table presents changes in the adsletiscount on loans acquired during the periadgated:

December 31

2012 2011 2010
(In Thousands, (In Thousand: (In Thousand:
Beginning Balanc: $ 180,72: $ 205,49. $ —
Acquisitions — 17,31¢ 229,80!
Accretion (44,519 (42,08 (24,319
Ending Balance $ 136,20¢ $ 180,72 $ 205,49:

No interest income is being recognized on loansiiaed where the fair value of the loan was basethercash flows expected to be received from thecfosure and sale of 1
underlying collateral. The carrying value of thésans at December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011Parsdmber 31, 2010 was $6.4 million, $13.3 milliand $11.7 millior
respectively.

18




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

The Bank grants loans to its officers and directord to their associates. Related party loans aderon substantially the same terms, includingeésterates and collateral,
those prevailing at the time for comparable tratisas with unrelated persons and do not involveertban normal risk of collectibility. The activityith respect to loans
directors, officers and associates of such perssias, follows:

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011

(In Thousands)

Balance- beginning $ 8,50¢ $ 7,27(C
Loans originater 40C 61<
Changes in related party sta — 1,10¢
Collections of principa (854) (479

Balance- ending $ 8,05t $ 8,50¢

Allowance for Loan Losses

Management reviews the adequacy of the allowane @ast a quarterly basis to ensure that theigioovfor loan losses has been charged againsingarim an amou
necessary to maintain the allowance at a levelishatlequate based on management’s assessmewbablar estimated losses. The Compamgethodology for assessing
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses consfsteveral key elements. These elements inclugienaral allocated reserve for impaired loans, aiipeeserve for impaire
loans and an unallocated portion.

The Company consistently applies the following ceghpnsive methodology. During the quarterly revigwthe allowance for loan losses, the Company idens ¢
variety of factors that include:

« General economic conditior

« Trends in charge-offs.

« Trends and levels of delinquent loa

« Trends and levels of non-performing loans, inclgdmans over 90 days delinquent.

« Trends in volume and terms of loa

« Levels of allowance for specific classified loa

« Credit concentrations

The methodology includes the segregation of the puatfolio into two divisions. Loans that are merhing and loans that are impaired. Loans whiclparérming ar
evaluated homogeneously by loan class or loan fipe allowance of performing loans is evaluatedam historical loan experience, including
consideration of peer loss analysis, with an adjest for qualitative factors due to economic cdodg in the market. Impaired loans are loans wiaieh more than 90 de
delinquent or troubled debt restructured. These@doare individually evaluated for loan loss eitlhgr current appraisal, estimated economic factornetr present valu
Management reviews the overall estimate for felitsilsind bases the loan loss provision accordingly.

The loan portfolio is segmented into the followingn classes, where the risk level for each claasalyzed when determining the allowance for loases:

Residential single family real estate loans invategtain risks such as interest rate risk and afskon-repayment. Adjustablate residential family real estate lo
decreases the interest rate risk to the Bank thassociated with changes in interest rates bwaivievother risks, primarily because as intereggatse, the payment by
borrower rises to the extent permitted by the teofrihie loan, thereby increasing the potentialdefault. At the same time, the marketability of threlerlying property may |

adversely affected by higher interest rates. Repaymsk may be affected by a number of factorfuitiag, but not necessarily limited to, job lossjaice, illness and persol
bankruptcy of the borrower.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

Construction lending is generally considered twiwng a high risk due to the concentration of pgatin a limited number of loans and borrowers tr&effects of tr
general economic conditions on developers and éngldVioreover, a construction loan can involve taldl risks because of the inherent difficulty éstimating both
propertys value at completion of the project and the egtchaost (including interest) of the project. Tta¢une of these loans is such that they are gepetifficult to evaluat
and monitor. In addition, speculative constructioans to a builder are not necessarily po&t and thus pose a greater potential risk toBi#wek than construction loans
individuals on their personal residence.

Commercial and multiamily real estate lending entails significant aidaial risks as compared with residential familpgerty lending. Such loans typically invo
large loan balances to single borrowers or grodipslated borrowers. The payment experience on &anfs is typically dependent on the successfutatfpe of the real este
project. The success of such projects is sengitizhanges in supply and demand conditions in theket for commercial real estate as well as ecoocanditions generally.

Commercial business lending, including lines ofddreis generally considered higher risk due to ¢leacentration of principal in a limited number lons an
borrowers and the effects of general economic ¢mmdi on the business. Commercial business lo@pranarily secured by inventories and other bissrassets. In most ca:
any repossessed collateral for a defaulted comaldrasiness loans will not provide an adequatecsoof repayment of the outstanding loan balance.

Home equity lending entails certain risks suchnssrest rate risk and risk of neepayment. The marketability of the underlying pdp may be adversely affected
higher interest rates, decreasing the collateralrsgg the loan. Repayment risk can be affectepbbyoss, divorce, iliness and personal bankrupfdye borrower. Home equ
line of credit lending entails securing an equitierest in the borrower’s home. In many casesB#r&’s position in these loans is as a junior lefder to another institutiog’
superior lien. This type of lending is often pricamlan adjustable rate basis with the rate satabave a predefined index. Adjustabdge loans decreases the interest rate r
the Bank that is associated with changes in intestss but involve other risks, primarily becaasenterest rates rise, the payment by the borrowes to the extent permiti
by the terms of the loan, thereby increasing thterg@l for default.

Other consumer loans generally have more credittresause of the type and nature of the collagmdl in certain cases, the absence of collatemis@ner loar
generally have shorter terms and higher interésshan other lending. In addition, consumer legdiollections are dependent on the borrosvedntinuing financial stabilit
and thus are more likely to be adversely effectegbb loss, divorce, illness and personal bankiugit most cases, any repossessed collateraldefalted consumer loan v
not provide an adequate source of repayment afutetanding loan.

The Company also maintains an unallocated allowaiite unallocated allowance is used to cover anfofs or conditions which may cause a potenteh lloss bt
are not specifically identifiable. It is prudentrnaintain an unallocated portion of the allowabeeause no matter how detailed an analysis of patéman losses is performe
these estimates lack some element of precisiomalylement must make estimates using assumptioriafanthation that is often subjective and changiagidly.

Classified AssetsOur policies provide for a classification system fooblem assets. Under this classification systemblem assets are classified as “substandard,”
“doubtful,” “loss” or “special mention./An asset is considered substandard if it is inadsdy protected by its current net worth and paydapacity of the borrower or of 1
collateral pledged, if any. Substandard assetsidiecthose characterized by the “distinct possybititat “some losstwill be sustained if the deficiencies are not ccied. Asse!
classified as doubtful have all the weaknessegémtén those classified substandard with the addiedacteristic that the weakness present mat@kettion or liquidation i
full” on the basis of currently existing facts, ditions, and values, “highly questionable and inyafnle.” Assets classified as loss are those coresideincollectible”and o
such little value that their continuance as assétwut the establishment of a specific loss reséswnot warranted, and the loan, or a portionetbielis chargeaff. Assets ma
be designated special mention because of potevei@knesses that do not currently warrant classifican one of the aforementioned categories.

When we classify problem assets, we may estabéslergl allowances for loan losses in an amount ddegrudent by management. General allowances esirks:
allowances which have been established to recoghzenherent risk associated with lending actsitibut which, unlike specific allowances, have Ineen allocated
particular problem assets. A portion of generas lalowances established to cover possible losdated to assets classified as substandard or fdbuidy be included |
determining our regulatory capital. Specific valoatallowances for loan losses generally do nofifyuas regulatory capital. As of December 31, 2042 had $5.7 million i
assets classified as doubtful, of which $5.7 millieere classified as impaired, $22.2 million inas<lassified as substandard, of which $18.6anilvere classified as impail
and $25.1 million in assets classified as specition, of which $17.3 million were classified aspiaired. The loans classified as substandard reprgsimarily commercii
loans secured either by residential real estatenwercial real estate or heavy equipment. The ltzatshave been classified substandard were clads8 such primarily becai
either updated financial information has not beerely provided, or the collateral underlying therois in the process of being revalued. As a resfutiurricane Sandy, o
levels of classified assets are expected to rerlairated through at least the first half of 2018.0ADecember 31, 2011, we had $576,000 in asketsified as loss, all of whi
is considered impaired, $7.1 million in assetssifeesi as doubtful, of which $4.3 million was cléigsl as impaired, $36.5 million in assets classifas substandard, of wh
$24.3 million was classified as impaired and $28iftion in assets classified as special mentionybafch $15.5 million was classified as impaired.eTlbans classified
substandard represent primarily commercial loamsireel either by residential real estate, commereial estate or heavy equipment. The loans tha¢ feen classifie
substandard were classified as such primarily tsaither updated financial information has nonb@eaely provided, or the collateral underlying tban is in the process
being revalued.

The Companys internal credit risk grades are based on theniiefis currently utilized by the banking regulat@gencies. The grades assigned and definitiana:
follows, and loans graded excellent, above avemgaad and watch list (risk ratings 1-4) are treaedpass” for grading purposes:

5 — Special Mentiontoans currently performing but with potential weakses including adverse trends in borrosveperations, credit quality, financial strengthpossibl
collateral deficiency.

6 — Substandare Loans that are inadequately protected by cuseunnd worth, paying capacity, and collateral supparans on “nonaccruaBtatus. The loan needs special
corrective attention.

7 — Doubtful Weaknesses in credit quality and collateral supmake full collection improbable, but pendingseaable factors remain sufficient to defer the kiasus.
8 — Loss Continuance as a bankable asset is not warrardtegever, this does not preclude future attemppméial recovery.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

The following table sets forth the activity in tBank’s allowance for loan losses for the year ended mbee 31, 2012 and recorded investment in loansvaiole at Decemb
31, 2012. The table also details the amount of totas receivable, that are evaluated individyadlyd collectively, for impairment, and the relapation of the allowance f
loan losses that is allocated to each loan clas$h{busands):

Commercial ¢ Commercie Home
Residentic  Multi-family ~ Constructio. Busines{!) equity® Consume Unallocater  Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc

$ 267¢ $ 57% $ 304 $ 1041 $ 677 $ 10 $ — $ 10,50¢
Charg-offs $ 79 3 1,360 $ 29z $ 61z $ 24 3 — $ — $ 3,081
Recoveries $ — 3 3 $ — 3 — 3 — | & — $ — $ 35
Provision:s $ 81 $ 357¢ $ 947 $ 391 $ (179 $ 49 3 32 $ 4,90(
Ending balance $ 196 $ 8,051 $ 95¢ $ 82C $ 47t $ 59 $ 32 $ 12,360
Ending balance: individually evaluat
for impairment $ 392 $ 1,061 $ %€ $ 355 ¢ 11 $ — $ — $ 2,01t
Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment $ 147C $ 6,99C $ 86 $ 467 $ 36z $ 59 $ 32 $ 10,24:
Ending balance: loans acquired w
deteriorated credit quality $ 105 $ — $ — 3 — 3 — $ — $ — $ 10t
Loans receivables:
Ending balanc $ 202,92 $ 588,26! $ 23,31( $ 59.66¢ $ 60,39! $ 163« $ — $936,19¢
Ending balance: individually evaluat
for impairment $ 13,788 $ 27,03C $ 13¢ $ 3926 $ 2697 $ — $ — $ 47,57(
Ending balance: collectively evaluat
for impairment $ 186,20¢ $ 557,79 $ 23,18( $ 5549¢ $ 5755¢ $ 163¢ $ — $881,86¢
Ending balance: loans acquired with
deteriorated credit quality $ 293 $ 3,447 $ — 3 241 $  14C $ — $ — $ 6,76C

(1) Includes business lines of credit.
(2) Includes home equity lines of credit.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

The following table sets forth the activity in tBank’s allowance for loan losses for the year ended mbee 31, 2011 and recorded investment in loansvaiole at Decemb
31, 2011. The table also details the amount of totas receivable, that are evaluated individyadlyd collectively, for impairment, and the relapastion of the allowance f
loan losses that is allocated to each loan clas$h{busands):

Commerica Commercie Home
Residentic & Multi-family Constructio. Businesd!) equity® Consume Unallocater  Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc

$ 171 8 6,17¢ $ 42¢ $ 1,28¢ $ 204 $ 18 $ 13 $ 8,41
Charg-offs $ 122 $ 1,17 $ 687 $ 24 $ — $ 27 $ — $ 2,03
Recoverie $ — $ 25 $ — 3 — $ — $ — 3 = & 25
Provision: $ 263 $ 767 $ 568 $ (220) $ 47 $ 18 $ (133 $ 4,100
Ending balanc: $ 267¢ $ 579¢ $ 304 $ 1,041 $ 677 $ 10 $ — $ 10,50¢
Ending balance: individually evaluat
for impairment $ 55C $ 2,67¢ $ — $ 95 $ 72 $ — $ — $ 3,391
Ending balance: collectively evaluat
for impairment $ 154¢ $ 2,65¢ $ 18¢ $ 79z $ 572 $ 10 $ — $ b5,76¢
Ending balance: loans acquired with
deteriorated credit quality $ 581 $ 47C $ 118 $ 154 $ 33 3 — $ — $ 1358
Loans receivables:
Ending balanc $ 218,08 $ 472,42 $ 17,000 $ 74570 $ 69,07F $ 1,30t $ — $852,46!
Ending balance: individually evaluated
for impairment $ 14,00¢ $ 39,46. $ 1511 $ 430 $ 1850 $ — $ — $ 61,13]
Ending balance: collectively evaluat
for impairment $ 194,86. $ 429,35¢ $ 13,23t $ 70,01: $ 66,611 $ 1,30t $ — $775,38t¢
Ending balance: loans acquired with
deteriorated credit quality $ 9217 $ 3,60¢ $ 2,257 $ 254 $ 61z $ — $ — $ 15,94:

(1) Includes business lines of credit.
(2) Includes home equity lines of credit.
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Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

The following table sets forth the Baskallowance for credit losses and recorded invastinefinancing receivables for the year ended bemer 31, 2010. The following tal
also details the amount of total loans receivathlat are evaluated individually, and collectively; impairment, and the related portion of the @whnce for loan losses tha
allocated to each loan type (In Thousands):

Commerica Commercie Home
Residentic & Multi-family Constructio.  Businesd!) equity® Consume Unallocater  Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Ending balanc: $ 171 8 6,17¢ $ 42¢ $ 1,28¢ $ 204 $ 18 $ 13 $ 8.41:

Ending balance: individually evaluat
for impairment $ — $ 1,65¢ $ — 3 44¢  $ 2 $ — $ — $ 2,10i

Ending balance: collectively evaluat
for impairment $ 171 $ 452: $ 42€ $ 837 $§ 20z $ 18 $ 13t $ 6,31

Ending balance: loans acquired with
deteriorated credit quality $ — $ — 3 — $ — $ — $ — 3 = & —

Loans receivables:

Ending balanc $ 234,43! $ 410,21 $ 17,84t $ 54,16( $ 63,600 $ 1.81¢ $ — $782,07:

Ending balance: individually evaluated
for impairment $ 8¢ 3 27,42: $ 291C $ 280¢ $ 372 $ — 3 — $ 33,60:

Ending balance: collectively evaluat
for impairment $ 219,79 $ 379,900 $ 1493t $ 51,27¢ $ 63,23 $ 181t $ — $730,96:

Ending balance: loans acquired with
deteriorated credit quality $ 14552 $ 2,88: $ — 3 76 $ — $ — 3 — $ 17,51

(1) Includes business lines of credit.
(2) Includes home equity lines of credit.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

The following table sets forth the activity in tBank’s allowance for credit losses for the yeareghBecember 31, 2010 (In Thousands):

Balance at beginning of peric
Chargeoffs

Recoveries

Net charg-offs

Provisions charged to operatic
Ending balanc

24

Year Ended December 3.

6,64
68¢

12

671
2,45(

8,41




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

The table below sets forth the amounts and type®ofaccrual loans in the Bank’s loan portfolioPatcember 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. Loemplaced on noaecrua
status when they become more than 90 days delihqurewhen the collection of principal and/or irgstr become doubtful. As of December 31, 2012 aidd 20onaccrual loar
differed from the amount of total loans past dueatgr than 90 days due to troubled debt restruefuof loans which are maintained on remerual status for a minimum of
months until the borrower has demonstrated itstltd satisfy the terms of the restructured loan.

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011
(Dollars in Thousands)

Non-accruing loans

Residentia $ 2,16: $ 15,512
Constructior 13C 4,04(
Commerical busines 3,15¢ 4,26k
Commercial and mu-family(1) 13,04: 22,28(
Home equity(2 1,56¢ 1,72¢
Consumer — —

Total $ 20,05¢ $ 47,82¢

(1) Includes business lines of credit.
(2) Includes home equity lines of credit.

Had nonaccrual loans been performing in accordance wiifr tiriginal terms, the interest income recogniftedhe years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar@d ®6ald hav
been approximately $1.06 million, $2.85 million aitl95 million, respectively. Interest income regiagd on such loans was approximately $649,0003 $96 and $280,0(
respectively. The Bank is not committed to lenditioichl funds to the borrowers whose loans havenlaced on a nonaccrual status. At December 312,2fere were $2.i
million in loans which were more than ninety dagstdue and still accruing interest.

During 2012, the Bank sold approximately $25.9 immillof non-performing loans for the purposes ofneliating future carrying costs associated with ¢hesninterest earnin
assets and improving the overall quality of thenlpartfolio. The sale of this sub-set of the mmrforming loan portfolio for approximately $15.1illilon in cash procee(
resulted in a pre-tax loss of approximately $10iion. The loans sold consisted of $14.6 milliohoc@mmercial and multiamily real estate loans, $9.1 million in residal
mortgage loans, $1.1 million of home equity log&$&81,000 of commercial business loans, and $313)0606nstruction loans.
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Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

The following table summarizes information in redgto impaired loans by loan portfolio class fa jlear ended December 31, 2012 and average redakdEtiment and actt
interest income recognized for the twelve monthdedrDecember 31, 2012 (In Thousands):

Recorded Unpaid Principle  Related  Avearge Recorder Interest Income

Investment Recognizec Allowance Investment Recognizec
With no related allowance recorded:
Residential Mortgages $ 6,147 $ 6,147 $ — $ 5,68 $ 21F
Commercial and Multi-family 13,820 13,82% — 20,23( 502
Construction — — — 1,174 10z
Commercial Business (1 2,55( 2,55( — 2,55¢ 69
Home Equity (2) 1,95¢ 1,95¢ — 1,927 43
Consumer — — — 2 —

$  2448: $ 24,48: $ — 3 31,57¢ $ 932
With an allowance recorded:
Residential Mortgages $ 7,63t $ 7,63¢ $ 497 $ 8,811 $ 48(
Commercial and Multi-family 13,20: 13,20: 1,061 12,88¢ 58¢
Construction 13C 13C 96 18C 6
Commercial Business (1 1,37¢ 1,37¢ 858 2,33( 31
Home Equity (2) 73¢ 73¢ 112 61€ 28
Consumer — — — 48 =
Total: $ 2308 $ 23,080 $ 2,12( $ 24,877 $ 1,13¢
Residential Mortgages $ 13,78 $ 13,78t $ 497 $ 14,50: $ 69t
Commercial and Multi-family 27,03( 27,03( 1,061 33,11¢ 1,091
Construction 13C 13C 96 1,354 10€
Commercial Business (1 3,92¢ 3,92¢ 352 4,88¢ 10C
Home Equity (2) 2,691 2,691 112 2,54¢ 71
Consumer — — — 50 —
Total: $  4757( $ 47,57C $ 2,12( $ 56,45: $ 2,06t

(1) Includes business lines of credit.
(2) Includes home equity lines of credit.
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Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

The following table summarizes information in redgto impaired loans by loan portfolio class fa jlear ended December 31, 2011 and average redakdEtiment and actt
interest income recognized for the twelve monthdedrDecember 31, 2011 (In Thousands):

Recordec  Unpaid Principl Related  Avearge Recorde Interest Incom
Investmen Recognize( Allowance Investmen Recognizec
With no related allowance recorde
Residential Mortgage $ 6,14z $ 6,14: $ — $ 3,37C $ 157
Commercial and Mul-family 23,41° 23,41° — 22,91( 79
Constructior 1,51z 1,51: — 2,41¢ 19
Commercial Business (. 2,36¢€ 2,36¢ — 1,65: 94
Home Equity (2] 1,301 1,301 — 711 52
Consume — — — — —
$ 34,73¢ $ 34,73¢ $ — 3 31,05¢ $ 1,11¢
With an allowance recorde
Residential Mortgage $ 7,86¢ $ 7,86 $ 55C $ 3,94t $ 30z
Commercial and Mul-family 16,04+« 16,04 2,674 15,44 582
Constructior — — — 33C —
Commercial Business (. 1,941 1,941 95 2,01¢ 24
Home Equity (2] 54¢ 54¢ 72 411 18
Consume — — — — —
Total: $ 26,39¢ $ 26,39¢ $ 3391 $ 22,15 $ 92¢
Residential Mortgage $ 14,00¢ $ 14,00¢ $ 55C $ 7,31t $ 46(
Commercial and Mul-family 39,46 39,46 2,67¢ 38,351 1,37¢
Constructior 1,51 1,51 — 2,74¢ 19
Commercial Business (. 4,307 4,307 95 3,672 11¢
Home Equity (2] 1,85( 1,85( 72 1,127 71
Consume — — — — —
Total: $ 61,137 $ 61,137 $ 3391 $ 53,21 $ 2,043

(1) Includes business lines of credit.
(2) Includes home equity lines of credit.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the agdralgnce of impaired loans was $29.5 million amerest income recognized on impaired loans wakl$aillion.
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Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

A troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”) is a lodinat has been modified whereby the Bank has agreethke certain concessions to a borrower to nieenéeds of both t
borrower and the Bank to maximize the ultimate vecyp of a loan. TDR occurs when a borrower is elgpeing, or is expected to experience, financitiladilties and the loan
modified using a modification that would otherwiset be granted to the borrower. The types of caicas granted are generally included, but not &nhito interest ra
reductions, limitations on the accrued interestgbd, term extensions, and deferment of principal.

The following table summarizes information in redgto troubled debt restructurings for the yeadedrDecember 31, 2012 and 2011, (In thousands):

Pre-Modification Outstandin Pos-Modification Outstandin

Year Ended December 31, 2C Number of Contrac Recorded Investmen Recorded Investmen

Residentia 13 $ 4,440 $ 4,44(
Commercial and mu-family 14 $ 8,38 $ 8,38¢
Commercial busines 1 $ 531 $ 531
Home equity 6 $ 534 $ 534

Pre-Modification Outstandin Pos-Modification Outstandin

Year Ended December 31, 2C Number of Contrac Recorded Investmen Recorded Investmen

Residentia 20 $ 5,98t $ 5,98t
Commercial and mu-family 12 $ 5,36¢ $ 5,36¢
Home equity 2 $ 47C $ 47(

The loans included above are considered TDRs asuit rof the Bank implementing one or more of thkofving concessions: granting a material extensibtime, issuing
forbearance agreement, adjusting the interestoaaebelow market rate, accepting interest onlyafgeriod of time or a change in amortization pkrids of December 31, 20
and 2011, TDRs totaled $13.9 million and $11.8 ionill respectively. All TDRs were considered impdi@nd therefore were individually evaluated for &nment in th
calculation of the allowance for loan losses. Ptiotheir classification as TDRs, certain of thésmns had been collectively evaluated for impairmerthe calculation of tt
allowance for loan losses.
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Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

The following table summarizes information in redguto troubled debt restructurings for which ther@s a payment default, within twelve months of estring, (Ir
thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2C Number of Contrac Recorded Investme
Residentia & $ 395
Commercial and mu-family 2 $ 1,109
Year Ended December 31, 2C Number of Contrac Recorded Investme
Residentia 2 $ 506
Commercial and mu-family 2 $ 1,429
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Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

The following table sets forth the delinquency s$atf total loans receivable at December 31, 2012.

As of December 31, 201

Loans Receivabl

3C-59 Days 6C-90 Days  Greater Than Total Past Total Loans >90 Days
Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Receivable and Accruing
(In Thousands)

Residential $ 7,566 $ 1,941 % 2,348 $ 11,858 $ 191,070 $ 202,92 $ 1,22
Commercial and multi-family 23,81¢ 5,24t 9,27t 38,33¢ 549,93: 588,26 1,38¢
Construction 2,531 1,17¢ 13C 3,841 19,46¢ 23,31( —
Commercial busines<?) 1,49¢ 152 1,51¢ 3,161 56,50} 59,66¢ —
Home equity® 1,38( 717 1,51¢ 3,61° 56,78( 60,39: 227
Consumer — — — — 1,63« 1,63¢ —
Total $ 36,79+ $ 9,22¢ $ 14,780 $ 60,80¢ $ 87539 $ 936,19¢ $ 2,83¢
(1) Includes business lines of credit.

(2) Includes home equity lines of credit.

The following table sets forth the delinquency s$atf total loans receivable at December 31, 2011.

As of December 31, 201
Loans Receivab
30-59 Days 6C-90 Days  Greater Tha Total Pas Total Loans >90 Days
Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Receivable and Accruing
(In Thousands

Residentia $ 6,16¢ $ 2,498 % 11,847 $ 20,50¢ $ 19755 $ 218,08 $ —
Commercial and mu-family 16,97° 6,34( 21,08( 44,417 428,07 472,42: —
Constructior 3,68¢ 13C 3,66( 7,47¢ 9,527 17,00( —
Commercial busines® 53€ — 1,78¢ 2,321 72,25 74,57: —
Home equity® 2,47¢ 1,01¢ 1,181 4,672 64,40: 69,07¢ —
Consumer 33 1C — 43 1,26t 1,30¢ —
Total $ 29,89: $ 9,99 $ 39,55! $ 79,44C $ 773,028 $ 852,46! $ =

(1) Includes business lines of credit.
(2) Includes home equity lines of credit.
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Note 6 - Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan lsses (Continued)

The following table presents the loan portfolioggmsummarized by the aggregate pass rating ardatsfied ratings of special mention, substandadodptful, and loss with
the Company'’s internal risk rating system as ofdbeiger 31, 2012:

Pass Special Mentior  Substandard Doubtful Loss Total
Residentia $ 190,05 $ 6,30 $ 565 $ 91¢ $ — $ 202,92
Commercial and mu-family 556,81« 15,03¢ 13,20¢ 3,21z — 588,26¢
Constructior 22,73¢ — 441 13C — 23,31(
Commercial businest) 54,10( 2,69¢ 1,45: 1,42( — 59,66¢
Home equity® 57,857 1,091 1,44t — — 60,39¢
Consume 1,59¢ — 36 — — 1,63¢
Total $ 88316. $ 25,12: $ 22,23 $ 5681 $ — $ 936,19

The following table presents the loan portfolioggmsummarized by the aggregate pass rating andatssified ratings of special mention, substandadodptful, and loss with
the Company’s internal risk rating system as ofddeiger 31, 2011:

Pass Special Mentio  Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Residentia $ 20331 $ 531t $ 7632 % 1437 $ 382 $ 218,08!
Commercial and mu-family 426,98: 19,62( 23,61¢ 2,20t — 472,42:
Constructior 13,691 — 2,61¢ 684 — 17,00(
Commercial busines® 67,59: 2,821 1,24¢ 2,78¢ 124 74,57¢
Home equity® 67,12¢ 46¢ 1,412 — 69 69,07¢
Consume 1,30¢ — — — — 1,30¢
Total $ 780,02: $ 28,23 $ 36,52¢ $ 7,106 $ 57¢ $ 852,46!
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Note 7 - Premises and Equipment

December 31

2012 2011

(In Thousands)
Land $ 1831 $ 1,83
Buildings and improvemen 11,49( 11,08(
Leasehold improvemen 1,20¢ 1,05:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 4,031 3,46

18,56¢ 17,43:
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (4,999 (3,85¢)

$ 13,56¢ $ 13,57¢

Buildings and improvements include a building camstied on property leased from a related party Kkste 3).

Rental expenses related to the occupancy of preraise related shared costs for common areas tdal@29,000, $987,000 and $693,000 for the yealedDecember 3
2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. The minimunigakibn under norcancelable lease agreements expiring through 8@riR031, for each of the years ended Decembes
as follows (in thousands):

2013 $ 1,007
2014 91¢€
2015 72t
2016 7317
2017 662
Thereaftel 3,912

$ 7,96(

Note 8 - Interest Receivable

December 31

2012 2011
(In Thousands)
Loans $ 3,50¢ $ 4,181
Securities 554 81€
$ 4065 $ 4,997
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Note 9 - Deposits

Demand:
Non-interest bearin
NOW
Money marke

Savings and clu
Certificates of depos

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, certificates of diéd $100,000 or more totaled approximately $834illion and $255.2 million respectively.

The scheduled maturities of certificates of depaisibecember 31, 2012, were as follows (In thousand

33

2017
Thereafter

December 31

2012

2011

(In Thousands)

$ 85,95( $ 78,58¢

120,76! 112,60!

63,83 67,59:

270,54¢ 258,78t

256,76¢ 265,54t

413,46¢ 453,29:

$ 940,78t $ 977,62:
Amount

$ 286,16:

72,88

20,94

18,27¢

15,00¢

19¢

$ 413,46¢
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Note 10 - Short-Term Borrowings and Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31

2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
Average Rate Amount Average Rate Amount

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances
Maturing by December 31,

201: 0.31 $ 17,000,00 — & —
201¢€ 4.2¢ 55,000,00 4.2¢  57,000,00
2017 4.3¢ 55,000,00 437  56,500,00
201¢ — — 2.51 10,500,00
3.7% 127,000,00 4.32% 124,000,00
(1) Fair Value Adjustments
— 1,406,98!I
$127,000,00 $125,406,98

(1) Fair value adjustments represents the differentedsn the fair market value and the book valuehef$10.5 million of FHLB advances acquired fromegjianc
Community Bank acquisition based on pricing frora Erederal Home Loan Bank of New York at date ofuition. The adjustment is being amortized over life of
the acquired advances. During the first quarte&Qdf2, this advance was prepaid along with a prepaympenalty of $49,00(

Beginning September 7, 2010, the Federal Home LBamk of New York (“FHLBNY”) replaced the existing Overnight Repricing AdvancegPam and its associa
companion products, the Overnight Line of Cred®@l(OC”), OLOC Plus, OLOC Companion, and OLOC Companion Riitis the new Overnight Advance. The new Overr
advance permits the Bank to borrow overnight ujistenaximum borrowing capacity at the FHLBNY. Thari is no longer restricted to the previous bormglimits of 10%
(OLOC) or up to 20% (OLOC Plus) of total assetsD&cember 31, 2012, the Barkbtal credit exposure cannot exceed 50% of ted &ssets, or $585,679,000, based o
borrowing limitations outlined in the Federal Holnean Bank of New Yorks member products guide. The total credit expokunie of 50% of total assets is recalculated ¢
quarter.

2012 2011
Coupon Rate Amount Coupon Rate Amount

Trust preferred junior subordinated debenture:
Maturing by December 31,

203¢ 2.95(% $ 4,124,001 3.21% $ 4,124,00
The Trust Preferred floating rate junior subordithtiebenture matures on June 17, 2034; interestaiditists quarterly to LIBOR plus 2.65%, the rag& @s of December &
2012 was 2.958%.
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Note 10 - Short-Term Borrowings and Long-Term Deb{Continued)
The trust preferred debenture became callablagaCompany’s option, on June 17, 2009, and qugtieereafter.
Additional information regarding short-term borrags is as follows:
December 31

2012 2011 2010
(In Thousands)

Average balance outstanding during the \ $ 145 3 — $ o
Highest mont-end balance during the ye $ 17,000 $ —  $ —
Average interest rate during the y: 0.31% $ — 3 —
Weighted average interest rate at -end 0.31% $ — 8 —

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 securities held tturitya with carrying values of approximately $133llion and $139.2 million, respectively, were gded to secure t
above noted Federal Home Loan Bank of New Yorkdwings. In addition, there was a blanket pledg¢herresidential mortgage portfolio at December2RiL1.

Note 11 - Regulatory Matters

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capiggjuirements administered by the federal banking@gs. Failure to meet minimum capital requiremesats initiate certa
mandatory, and possibly additional discretionagyioas by regulators that, if undertaken, couldéhawdirect material effect on the Bank. Under edgitlequacy guidelines ¢
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective anfithe Bank must meet specific capital guidelitied involve quantitative measures of the Ban&&sets, liabilities, a
certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated uredpriatory accounting practices. The Bangapital amounts and classifications are alscestitp qualitative judgments by
regulators about components, risk weightings, atiérofactors. The Holding Compasytapital adequacy guidelines are not materiaffierdint than the capital adequ:
guidelines for the Bank.

Quantitative measures, established by regulatie@nsure capital adequacy, require the Bank to miaimbinimum amounts and ratios of Total and Tieapital (as defined
the regulations), to risk-weighted assets, (anddji, and of Tier 1 capital to average assetsdfisadl). The following table presents informatianta the Bank’s capital levels.
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Note 11 - Regulatory Matters (Continued)

To be Well Capitalized

For Capital Adequacy under Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars in Thousands)
As of December 31, 201z

Total capital (to ris-weighted asset: $ 105,23: 14.0% $ >59,99: >80(% $ >74,98¢ >10.0%

Tier 1 capital (to ris-weighted asset: 95,84¢ 12.7¢ >29,99¢ >4.0C >44,99: >6.0C

Tier 1 capital (to average asse 95,84 8.3¢ >45,74. >4.0C >57,17" >5.0C
As of December 31, 201

Total capital (to ris-weighted asset: $ 112,80: 16.42% $ >54,96( >8.0% $ >68,69¢ >10.0(%

Tier 1 capital (to ris-weighted asset: 105,37¢ 15.3¢ >27,48( >4.0C >41,21¢ >6.0C

Tier 1 capital (to average asse 105,37¢ 8.6€ >48,64¢ >4.0C > 60,80¢ >5.0C

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the most reagtiftaation from the Bank’s regulators categorizbhd Bank as “well capitalizedinder the regulatory framework for pror
corrective action. There are no conditions or evesturring since that notification that managenhefieves have changed the Bank’s category.
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Note 12- Benefits Plans

Pension Plan

The Company acquired through the merger with PaonBgmcorp, Inc. a nooentributory defined benefit pension plan covertigeligible employees of Pamrapo Savings B
Effective January 1, 2010, the defined benefit menplan (“Pension Plan”)vas frozen by Pamrapo Savings Bank. All benefitsef@ible participants accrued in the Pen
Plan to the freeze date have been retained. Thefitseare based on years of service and empleyeampensation. The Pension Plan is funded in caitfp with funding
requirements of applicable government regulati®n®r service costs for the Pension Plan geneaa#lyamortized over the estimated remaining sepac®ds of employees.
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Note 12 - Benefits Plans

The following tables set forth the Plan's fundeatust at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and componkntt periodic pension cost for the years endedeBber 31, 2012 a
2011:

Change in Benefit Obligation: December 31
2012 2011

(In Thousands)
Benefit obligation, beginning of ye $ 10,33¢ $ 8,72:
Interest Cos 444 46¢
Actuarial loss 454 1,807
Benefits paic (5149 (509)
Settlement: (752) (158
Benefit obligation, ending $ 997( $ 10,33¢

Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of assets, beginning of yez $ 497 $ 4,74¢
Actual return on plan asse 597 76
Employer contribution 2,70C 812
Benefits paic (514 (509)
Settlements (752) (15€)
Fair value of assets, endin $ 7,00c  $ 4,97

Reconciliation of Funded Status:

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 997C $ 10,33¢
Projected benefit obligatic $ 9,97C % 10,33¢
Fair value of asse (7,004 (4,979
Funded status, included in other liabilities $ (2,99) $ (5,36

Valuation assumptions used to determin
benefit obligation at period end:

Discount rate 4.05% 4.4(%

Salary Increase Ra N/A N/A
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Note 12 - Benefits Plans (Continued)

Net Periodic Pension Expense December 31
2012 2011
(In Thousands)

Interest cos $ 444 % 46¢
Expected return on asst (469) (375)
Amortization of net (gain) or los 63 —
Settlement los 164 —
Net Periodic Pension Cos $ 206 $ 94

Valuation assumptions used to determine net periodibenefit cost for the year:

Discount rate 4.4(% 5.5/%
Long term rate of return on plan ass 8.0(% 8.0(%
Salary Increase Ra N/A N/A

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, unnimed net loss of $(2,187,000) and $(2,094,00@peetively, was included, net of deferred income ita accumulate
other comprehensive loss in accordance with ASG2Z0L&nd ASC 7180. We expect $73,000 of the unrecognized netttoge recognized in net periodic pension expent
the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Note 12 - Benefits Plan (Continued)
Plan Assets

Investment Policies and Strategies

The primary longerm objective for the Plan is to maintain asseéta kevel that will sufficiently cover future bemgfry obligations. The Plan will be structureditelude ¢
volatility reducing component (the fixed income aaitment) and a growth component (the equity committh

To achieve the Plan Sponsor’s logm investment objectives, the Trustee will invitst assets of the Plan in a diversified combimatibasset classes, investment strate
and pooled vehicles. The asset allocation guidelin¢he table below reflect the Bank’s risk tofera and londerm objectives for the Plan. These parametersbeilleviewed c
a regular basis and subject to change followingudisions between the Bank and the Trustee.

Initially, the following asset allocation targetsdaranges will guide the Trustee in structuring ¢irerall allocation in the Plas'investment portfolio. The Bank or the Tru:
may amend these allocations to reflect the mostompjate standards consistent with changing cir¢cantes. Any such fundamental amendments in stratégpe discusse
between the Bank and the Trustee prior to impleatimt.

Based on the above considerations, the followisgtaalocation ranges will be implemented:

Asset Allocation Parameters by Asset Clas
Minimum Target Maximum

Equity
Large-Cap U.S 26%
Mid/Small-Cap U.S. 12%
Non-U.S. 12%

Total-Equity 40% 50% 60%
Fixed Income
Long Duration 47%
Money Market/Certificates of Depo: 3%

Total-Fixed Income 40% 50% 60%

The parameters for each asset class provide theteErwith the latitude for managing the Plan withiminimum and maximum range. The Trustee will hiaMediscretion tc
buy, sell, invest and reinvest in these asset seggn@sed on these guidelines which includes atigwhe underlying investments to fluctuate withie stated policy ranges. 1
Plan will maintain a cash equivalents component {mexceed 3% under normal circumstances) withénfixed income allocation for liquidity purposes.

The Trustee will monitor the actual asset segmepogures of the Plan on a regular basis and, gesityl may adjust the asset allocation within theges set forth above a
deems appropriate. Periodic reallocations of asgi#itee based on the Trustee’s perception of thenging risk/return opportunities of the respectigset classes.

Determination of Long-Term Rate—of Return

The long-term rate-of-returon assets assumption was set based on histortcahsesarned by equities and fixed income secsritiljusted to reflect expectations of fu
returns as applied to the plan’s target allocatibasset classes. Equities and fixed income séesisitere assumed to earn real rates of returneimathges of 5-9% and 684,
respectively. The long-term inflation rate wasrmstied to be 3%. When these overall return expectatire applied to the Plartarget allocation, the result is an expectedot
return of 7% to 11%.
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Note 12 - Benefits Plan (Continued)

The fair values of the Company’s pension plan asseDecember 31, 2012, by asset category (seell§dte the definitions of levels), are as follows:

Asset Category

Mutual fund-Equity

Large-Cap Value (a
Mid-Cap Value (b
Smal-Cap Value (c
Foreign Large Growth (c

Mutual Fund-Fixed Income
World Bond (e}
Intermediate Government (
Inflation Protected (g

Mutual Fund-Asset Allocation/Balance

Conservative Allocation (t
World Allocation (i)

Stock
BCB Common Stoc

Cash Equivalent
Money Markel

Total

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 766,22. $ 766,22: $
385,76t 385,76t — —
367,80( 367,80( — —
230,04 230,04 — —
793,27 793,27 — —
727,62¢ 727,62¢ — —
666,73! 666,73! — —
2,219,13 2,219,13. — —
340,33. 340,33. — —
477,22! 477,22! — —
$ 30,34¢ $ 30,34¢ $ — —
$ 7,004500 $ 7,004,500 $ — —
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(a) Large-value portfolios invest primarily in Hi§S. companies that are less expensive or growinrg islowly than other large-cap stocks. Stock&éntop 70% of the
capitalization of the U.S. equity market are defias large cap. Value is defined based on low tialus (low price ratios and high dividend yieldspaslow growth
(low growth rates for earnings, sales, book vadung, cash flow

(b) Some mircap value portfolios focus on medi-size companies while others land here becauseotlieya mix of sma-, mic-, and larg-cap stocks. All look for U.<
stocks that are less expensive or growing morelglthan the market. The U.S. mid-cap range for reackpitalization typically falls between $1 biti@nd $8 billion
and represents 20% of the total capitalizatiorhefl.S. equity market. Value is defined based enMaluations (low price ratios and high dividendlgis) and slow
growth (low growth rates for earnings, sales, bealke, and cash flow

(c) Smal-value portfolios invest in small U.S. companiedwigluations and growth rates below other s-cap peers. Stocks in the bottom 10% of the capittdin of

the U.S. equity market are defined as small cajue/s defined based on low valuations (low prios and high dividend yields) and slow growtiw(lgrowth rates

for earnings, sales, book value, and cash fl

Foreign large-growth portfolios focus on higtiepd growth stocks, mainly outside of the Unitedt&s. Most of these portfolios divide their asset®ng a dozen or

more developed markets, including Japan, Britaian&e, and Germany. These portfolios primarily &twe stocks that have market caps in the top 7Dé&ach

economically integrated market (such as Europesia Ax-Japan). Growth is defined based on fastthréfiigh growth rates for earnings, sales, bookeaand cash
flow) and high valuations (high price ratios and/ldividend yields). These portfolios typically wilave less than 20% of assets invested in U. st

World-bond portfolios invest 40% or more of their asset®reign bonds. Some wo-bond portfolios follow a conservative approachofévg higt-quality bonds

from developed markets. Others are more advent@od®wn some lower-quality bonds from developedmerging markets. Some portfolios invest exclugive

outside the U.S., while others regularly invedbath U.S. and n¢- U.S. bonds

(f) Intermediat-government portfolios have at least 90% of themdboldings in bonds backed by the U.S. governmehy governmel-linked agencies. This backi
minimizes the credit risk of these portfolios, las U.S. government is unlikely to default on itsitleThese portfolios have durations typically beém 3.5 and 6.0
years. Consequently, the gr(s performanc-and its level of volatilit- tends to fall between that of the short governnaationg government bond categor

«d

~

(e

~

(9) Inflation-protected bond portfolios invest perily in debt securities that adjust their prindipalues in line with the rate of inflation. Thesends can be issued by any
organization, but the U.S. Treasury is currently lirgest issuer for these types of securi
(h) Conservativ-allocation portfolios seek to provide both cap#ppreciation and income by investing in three majeas: stocks, bonds, and cash. These portfeliat

to hold smaller positions in stocks than moderéteation portfolios. These portfolios typically ve&20% to 50% of assets in equities and 50% to 80D&ssets in
fixed income and cas

(i) World-allocation portfolios seek to provide batapital appreciation and income by investinghiieé major areas: stocks, bonds, and cash. Wi thortfolios do
explore the whole world, most of them focus onlth8., Canada, Japan, and the larger markets irpEutbis rare for such portfolios to invest mdnart 10% of their
assets in emerging markets. These portfolios tyipibave at least 10% of assets in bonds, less708h of assets in stocks, and at least 40% ofsassabn-U.S.
stocks or bond:

The Company expects to contribute, based upon rRaiteatimates, approximately $330,000 to the genpian in 2013.

Benefit payments are expected to be paid for tlaesyended December 31 as follows (In thousands):

2013 $ 587
2014 591
2015 58€
2016 59¢
2017 59C
201¢&-2022 2,971
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The fair values of the Company’s pension plan asseDecember 31, 2011, by asset category (seell§dte the definitions of levels), are as follows:

Asset Category Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Mutual fund-Equity
Large-Cap Value (a $ 266,86: $ 266,86: $ $
Large-Cap Core (b 327,67: 327,67: — —
Mid-Cap Core (c — — — —
Smal-Cap Core (d 158,80t 158,80t — —
International Cap (e 277,05¢ 277,05¢ — —
Mutual Fund-Fixed Income
US Core (f) 519,98: 519,98: — —
Core Plus (g — — — —
Common/Collective Trus-Equity
Large-Cap Value (i) 286,94« — 286,94« —
Large-Cap Growth (j) 525,03! — 525,03! —
International Core (k 272,94¢ — 272,94¢ —
Exchange Traded Fun
Fixed Income (h 537,98t 537,98t — —
Stock
BCB Common Stoc 494,41( 494,41( — —
Cash Equivalent
Money Market 14,63 14,63 — —
BCB Bank CD $ 129045 $ — $ 129045 $ =
Total $ 497279 $ 259741 $ 237538 $ —

(a) This category consists of a mutual fund holding-160 stocks, designed to track and outperform tres&®U1000 Value Inde:

(b) This category contains stocks of the S&P 500 Indée stocks are maintained in approximately theesanightings as the inde

(c) This category contains stocks of the MSCI U.S. Map 450 Index. The stocks are maintained in apprataly the same weightings as the inc

(d) This category consists of 400 or more small anda-cap companies, with as much as 25% invested i-U.S. equities

(e) This category consists of investments with -term growth potential located primarily in Europelahe Pacific Basin, with a smaller portion lochkite developing
economies

(f) This category consists of mutual funds thaestvin long-term treasury and investment gradearatp bond securities with a dollar-weighted avenagturity of 15 to
30 years

(g) This category consists of a diversified portfolidbonds and other fixed income securities, inclgdimortgag-related and asset backed securities. Up to 15%b&
invested in below investment grade domestic aneidarsecurities

(h) This category consists of an exchange traded fafi&) that seeks to approximate the total rate tofrneof the Barclays Capital U.S. 20+ Year Trea®®ond Index.

(i) This category contains lar-cap stocks with abo-average yield. The portfolio typically holds betwed® and 70 stock

() This category consists of a portfolio of betweeradl 65 stocks that will typically overweight teckogy and health car

(k) This category consists of a portfolio of over 2@8cks in no-U.S. domiciled companies, with up to 35% investedmerging market:
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Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

The Company acquired through the merger with PasnBegmcorp, Inc. a supplemental executive retirerpéan (“SERP”)in which certain former employees of Pamrapo t
are covered. A SERP is an unfunded non-qualififérced retirement plan. Participants who retiréhat age of 65 (the “Normal Retirement Agedye entitled to an annt
retirement benefit equal to 75% of compensationiced by their retirement plan annual benefits.i€pants retiring before the Normal Retirement Ageeive the same bene
reduced by a percentage based on years of seovite Company and the number of years prior tiNibrenal Retirement Age that participants retire.

The following tables set forth the SERP's fundediustand components of net periodic SERP cost:

Change in Benefit Obligation: December 31
2012 2011

(In Thousands)
Benefit obligation, beginning of yeat $ 511 $ 59€
Interest Cos 21 29
Actuarial loss 16 25
Benefits paic (74) (13¢€
Benefit obligation, ending $ 474  $ 511

Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of assets, beginning of yee $ — % —
Employer contribution 74 13¢
Benefits paic (74) (139)
Fair value of assets, ending $ — % —

Reconciliation of Funded Status

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 474 $ 511

Projected benefit obligatic $ 474 3% 511

Fair value of asse — —

Funded status, included in other liabilit $ 474 $ 511

Valuation assumptions used to determin
benefit obligation at period end:

Discount rate 4.05% 4.4(%

Salary Increase Ra N/A N/A
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December 31

Net Periodic SERP Expense 2012 2011
(In Thousands)

Interest Cost $ 21 $ 29

Net Periodic SERP Cos $ 21 $ 29

Valuation assumptions used to determine net periodibenefit cost for the year:

Discount rate 4.4(% 5.54%
Rate of increase in compensat N/A N/A%
At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, unnéxed) net loss of $46,000 and $30,000, respectivedy included, net of deferred income tax, in audated other
comprehensive income in accordance with ASC 718DASC 715-30. None of the unrecognized net bsgpected to be recognized in net periodic SERPfopthe year
ended December 31, 2012.

The Company expects to contribute, based upon raiteatimates, approximately $62,000 to the SERR jm 2013.

Benefit payments are expected to be paid for tlaesyended December 31 as follows (In thousands):

2013 $ 62
2014 62
2015 62
2016 62
2017 62
201¢-2022 21¢€
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Stock Options

The Company has three stock-related compensatans pthe 2002 Stock Option Plan, 2003 Stock O#ilam, and the 2011 Stock Option Plan (the “Planall)stock
options granted have a ten year term. For the 330& Option Plan and the 2003 Stock Option Plashares granted have vested and all but 5,468reptuthorized und
the Plans have been granted as of December 31, E6.the 2011 Stock Option Plan, stock option a@samest at a rate of 10% per year, over ten yearsrencing on tt
first anniversary of the grant date. As of Decen8ier2012, 60,000 options had been granted, withO®0 shares authorized under the Plan remainibg granted. Durir
the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the&@gnrecorded $24,000 and $12,000, respectivelgtak option compensation expense. During the gede!
December 31, 2010, the Company recorded no shaesltmmpensation expense.

A summary of stock option activity, adjusted taoettively reflect subsequent stock dividends ofol:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Range of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Number of Options  Exercise Price Price Term Value (000's
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 289,61  $5.2¢-$29.2' $ 12.0C
Options forfeitec (3,000) 29.25 29.2¢
Options exercise (28,63Y) 8.26 8.2¢ $ 70
Options grante! 60,00( 8.93 8.9¢
Options expire( — — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 317,97t $5.2¢-$29.2¢ 11.61 4.46 year: 231
Options forfeitec (11,000 8.95-29.25 17.0¢
Options exercise (29,66.) 5.2¢-9.34 6.01 131
Options grante: — — —
Options expirec (3,019 5.2¢-15.11 11.8(
Outstanding at December 31, 201 274,290  $8.9:-$29.2¢ 11.97 2.96years 34
Exercisable at December 31, 201 224,791  $8.9:-$29.2¢ 12.64 1.71years 6
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The key valuation assumptions and fair value aflstiptions granted during the year ended Decenmhe2@®L1 were:

Expected life 7.25 year
Risk-free interest rat 1.44%
Volatility 29.80¥%
Dividend yield 4.71%
Fair value $1.4¢

It is Company policy to issue new shares upon sbat®n exercise. Expected future compensation rs@eelating to the 49,500 unexercisable optiortstanding as «
December 31, 2012 is $54,000 over a weighted aegragod of 8.75 years.
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Note 13 - Dividend Restrictions

Payment of cash dividends on common stock is ciomdit on earnings, financial condition, cash needgital considerations, the discretion of the Boaf Directors, an
compliance with regulatory requirements. State fadéral law and regulations impose substantialtditiins on the Bank’ability to pay dividends to the Company. Undew
Jersey law, the Bank is permitted to declare divitdeon its common stock only if, after paymenthaf tividend, the capital stock of the Bank willlmémpaired and either t
Bank will have a surplus of not less than 50% tapital stock or the payment of the dividend nalt reduce the Ban&'surplus. During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Ban &
Company total dividends of $15,745,000, $9,611,G0@ $5,334,000 respectively. The Compangbility to declare dividends is dependent upan damount of dividenc
declared by the Bank.
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Note 14 - Income Taxes
The components of income tax (benefit) expense@aremarized as follows:
Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(In Thousands)

Current income tax expense (bene

Federa $ (2,366 $ 438. $ 1,982
State 263 83€ (13€)
(2,109 5,21¢ 1,84¢

Deferred income tax expense (bene
Federa 802 (1,5972) 5
State (959 (259) (34¢6)
(149 (1,84%) (341
Total Income Tax (Benefit) Expense $ (2,252 $ 337 $ 1,50¢
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Note 14 - Income Taxes (Continued)
The tax effects of existing temporary differendest give rise to significant portions of the deéefrincome tax assets and deferred income taxitiabibre as follows:

December 31

2012 2011
Deferred income tax asse
Allowance for loan loss¢ $ 5537 $ 4,82:
Other real estate owned exper 43t —
Depreciatiol 137 19¢
Other than temporary impairment on sect 1,191 1,191
Nor-accrual interes 45k 397
Benefit Plan 424 1,53(
Benefit Pla-accumulated other comprehensive I« 91z 86¢
Valuation adjustment on loans receivable aed 812 1,677
Valuation adjustment on securit 371 —
Valuation adjustment on time deposits acql 13¢ 347
Valuation adjustment on borrowings acqu — 57t
Net operating loss carry forwards (net ofredibn allowances 1,06¢ 34t
Unrealized loss on securities available &de — 21
Othel 134 31€&
11,61¢ 12,29(
Deferred income tax liabilitie:
Unrealized gain on securities available e 59 —
Valuation adjustment on securit — 74¢
Valuation adjustment on premises and equipmenquired 1,50: 1,60z
1,562 2,35(
Net Deferred Tax Asse! $ 10,05¢ $ 9,94(

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax @sseanagement considers whether it is more litey not that some portion or all of the defer@ddssets will not be realiz:
In making this assessment, management has corsitter@rofitability of current core operations,utg market growth, forecasted earnings, futureltiexencome, and ongoir
feasible and permissible tax planning strategiethel Company was to determine that it would notbke to realize a portion of its net deferredadaset in the future for whi
there is currently no valuation allowance, an adjesit to the net deferred tax asset would be cha@earnings in the period such determination made. Conversely, if tl
Company was to make a determination that it is niikety than not that the deferred tax assets fbictv there is a valuation allowance would be realjzhe related valuati
allowance would be reduced and a benefit to easnivauld be recorded. The ultimate realization déded tax assets is dependent upon the genettioture taxable incon
during the periods in which temporary differencesdeductible and carry forwards are available.

At December 31, 2012, gross deferred tax assedteteto net operating loss carry forwards totaled 8,000, consisting of $345,000 of federal asaetgired in the 20:
acquisition of Allegiance, $724,000 in state asseled to the Bank, and $59,000 in state assktted to the stanadlone Company. Comparable amounts at Decembei031,
were gross deferred tax assets of $432,000 cargisti$345,000 of federal assets acquired in theghdnce acquisition, $37,000 in state assetselat the Bank, and $50,C
in state assets related to the stand-alone Company.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the stalmie Company had $1.0 million and $863,000, respdy, of state net operating loss carry forwandih related gross deferred
assets of $59,000 and $50,000, respectively. Dubetaincertainty regarding the ability to realinege carry forwards within the statutory time Isnithe related deferred -
asset has been fully offset by valuation allowarafek59,000 and $50,000, respectively, at Decerbe012 and 2011.

In conjunction with the Compang’acquisition of Allegiance in 2011, the Companguaed a federal net operating loss carry forwaréX?2 million. This carry forward
available for use through 2030; however, in acaocdawith Internal Revenue Code Section 382, usageecarry forward is limited to $235,000 annuadly a cumulative bas
(portions of the $235,000 not used in a particyésar may be added to subsequent usage). At Dec&hp2012 and 2011, the Company had approxima@3y $00 remainir
of this federal net operation loss carry forwardimble to offset future taxable income for feddsad reporting purposes; Based on the currenttaiwfity or core operations a
expectations that such profitability will continuee Companys expects to fully utilize this federal net opesatloss carry forward by 2016 ($470,000 in 201355200 in bot
2014 and 2015, and $87,000 in 2016).
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Note 14 - Income Taxes (Continued)

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Bank had $1#liébmand $635,000, respectively, of state netrapirg loss carry forwards; the $635,000 at Decertie 2011, which

also included in the December 31, 2012 balancete®lto 2010 and is expected to be recoverabldlini& carry forward to a to-bemended 2011 state tax return. The addit
$11.7 million at December 31, 2012, was generate2Dil2 and will expire, to the extent not utilizéd2032. The Banls 2012 state net operating loss was the largelyetha
of two planned transactions designed to enhanctutbee operations of the Company and the Banklismussed in Note 6, the Bank engaged in two halikssof impaired loal
at a realized loss of $10.8 million. Similar tractsans in future periods are not contemplated dicgrated. The Bank, when consolidated with itseistment company subsidie
has generated consistently strong core earningpimeicts similarly strong results going forwardeTBank currently employs a state tax planningegsadesigned to redu
state taxes by taking advantage of the lower catpdax rates applicable to investment companiesolingly, most of the state taxable income ofdbiesolidated Bank resic
in its investment company subsidiary. In ordertitize the 2012 net operating loss of the stafahe Bank, a portion of the existing strategy Wélreversed to increase the I
of Bank-consolidated taxable income that will resid the stan@lone Bank. The expected continuance of the pliéitaore operations of the consolidated Bank alwitiy the
available, feasible and currently in use tax plagrstrategy will allow full utilization of this netperating loss carry forward.

The following table presents a reconciliation bedwehe reported income tax expense and the incamexpense which would be computed by applyingnitrenal feder:
income tax rate of 35% in 2012 and 2011 and 342010 to income before income tax expense:

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010
(In Thousands)

Federal income tax (benefit) expense at statutatg $ 2,510 $ 329¢ % 5,38z
Increases (reductions) in income taxes resultiogf
State income tax (benefit), net of fed@rabme tax effec (451) 38C (31¢)
Merger related iten — (219 (4,06€)
Other items, n (291) (86) 507
Effective Income Tax $ (2,259 $ 337 $ 1,50¢
Effective Income Tax Rate (52.2)% 35.8% 9.5%
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Note 15- Commitments and Contingencies

The Bank is a party to financial instruments wiffilmlancesheet risk in the normal course of business to tineetinancing needs of its customers. These filahircstrument
primarily include commitments to extend credit. TBenk’s exposure to credit loss, in the event of nonperémce by the other party to the financial instratrfer commitment
to extend credit, is represented by the contractmaunt of those instruments. The Bank uses the saetlit policies in making commitments and coodéil obligations as
does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Outstanding loan related commitments were as falow

December 31
2012 2011
(In Thousands)

Loan originatior $ 39,09¢ $ 39,13¢
Standby letters of crec 2,414 1,53¢
Construction loans in proce 13,77« 3,58¢
Unused lines of credit 41,82« 29,26

$ 97,10¢ $ 73,52(

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totleadcustomer as long as there is no violatioanyf condition established in the contract. Commitimgenerally have fixe
expiration dates or other termination clauses ary nequire payment of a fee. Since many of the cihmemts are expected to expire without being drayon, tote
commitment amounts do not necessarily representeutash requirements. The Bank evaluates eacbneess creditworthiness on a casedase basis. The amount
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by th&kBg@on extension of credit, is based on managementdit evaluation of the counterparty. Collatéd varies but primari
includes residential real estate properties.

The Company and its subsidiaries also have, imtreal course of business, commitments for servaees supplies. Management does not anticipatedamseany of the:
transactions.

The Company and its subsidiaries, from time to fimay be party to litigation which arises primarily the ordinary course of business. In the opirddmanagement, ti
ultimate disposition of such litigation should tatve a material effect on the consolidated findrat&tements. As of December 31, 2012, the Companyits subsidiaries we
not parties to any material litigation.
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Valuesfd-inancial Instruments

Management uses its best judgment in estimatindainevalue of the Compang’financial instruments; however, there are inhevegaknesses in any estimation techni
Therefore, for substantially all financial instruntg, the fair value estimates herein are not nac@ssndicative of the amounts the Company couitvén realized in a sal
transaction on the dates indicated. The estimaieddlue amounts have been measured as of tispiectve year-ends and have not beeeviauated or updated for purpose
these consolidated financial statements subseguéindse respective dates. As such, the estimateddues of these financial instruments subseifethe respective reporti
dates may be different than the amounts reporteddit year-end.

ASC Topic 820/Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuresstablishes a fair value hierarchy that pricgizhe inputs to valuation methods used to medairrgalue. Thi
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjustieted prices in active markets for identical assetliabilities (Level 1 measurements) and thedstpriority to unobservat
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levelseofair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets thahecessible at the measurement date for identinegstricted assets or liabilitie

Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active, puts that are observable either directly or indiyedor substantially the full term of the asse
liability.

Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that require inpluds are both significant to the fair value measwet and unobservable (i.e., supported with ldt

no market activity).

An asset’s or liability’s level within the fair va hierarchy is based on the lowest level of inpat is significant to the fair value measurement.
For assets and liabilities measured at fair valua cecurring basis, the fair value measurementsug} within the fair value hierarchy are as folk
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Valuesfd-inancial Instruments (Continued)

(Level 1) (Level 2)
Quoted Prices Significant (Level 3)
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable  Unobservabl

Description Total Assets Inputs Inputs
As of December 31, 201z
Securities available for sale— Equity Securities $ 1,24C  $ 1,24C  $ — —
As of December 31, 201
Securities available for se— Equity Securitie: $ 1,048 $ 1,048 $ — % o

For assets and liabilities measured at fair valua aonrecurring basis, the fair value measurenignisvel within the fair value hierarchy are aidws:

(Level 1) (Level 2)
Quoted Prices Significant (Level 3)
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable  Unobservabl

Description Total Assets Inputs Inputs
As of December 31, 201z
Impaired loans $ 20,967 $ — % — $ 20,96°
Other Real estate ownec $ 2,21t $ —  $ — % 2,21t
As of December 31, 201
Impaired Loan: $ 23,000 $ — % — % 23,007
Other Real estate own $ 30C $ — 3 — 8 30C

The following table presents additional quantitatieformation about assets measured at fair vaiue monrecurring basis and for which the Comparsyutiéized adjusted Lev
3 inputs to determine fair value, (Dollars in thands):

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Valueadsurement

Fair Value Valuation Unobservable Range
Estimate Technique: Input
December 31, 201.
Impaired Loan: $ 20,967 Appraisal of collateral (1 Appraisal adjustments (. 0%-10%
Liguidation expenses (. 0%-10%
Other Real Estate Own $ 2,215 Appraisal of collateral (1 Appraisal adjustments (. 0%-20%

(1) Fair value is generally determined through indepebdppraisals of the underlying collateral, whaelmerally include various level 3 inputs which ao¢ identifiable.

(2) Appraisals may be adjusted by management for atiaktfactors such as economic conditions and estidnliquidation expenses. The range of liquidagrpenses ai
other appraisal adjustments are presented as empertthe appraises

(3) Includes qualitative adjustments by managementatithated liquidation expensi
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Valuesfd-inancial Instruments (Continued)
The following information should not be interpretesian estimate of the fair value of the entire @amy since a fair value calculation is only prodder a limited portion of tr
Company’s assets and liabilities. Due to a widegyeaof valuation techniques and the degree of stibiggcused in making the estimates, comparisortsvéen the Company’
disclosures and those of other companies may naohdmningful. The following methods and assumptisese used to estimate the fair values of the Coryigafinancia
instruments at December 31, 2012 and 2011:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Carried at Cost)
The carrying amounts reported in the consolidataments of financial condition for cash and shemn instruments approximate those assets’ fdirega
Securities
The fair value of securities available for salerifea at fair value) and held to maturity (carri@damortized cost) are determined by obtaining egioharket prices ¢
nationally recognized securities exchanges (Lejebf matrix pricing (Level 2), which is a matheimnat technique used widely in the industry to vatlebt securitie
without relying exclusively on quoted market pridesthe specific securities but rather by relyorgthe securities’ relationship to other benchneprtited prices.

Loans Held for Sale (Carried at Lower of Cost or F& Value)

The fair value of loans held for sale is determjnellen possible, using quoted secondaprket prices. If no such quoted prices exist féirevalue of a loan is determin
using quoted prices for a similar loan or loangustéd for specific attributes of that loan. Lo&edd for sale are carried at their cost.

Loans Receivable (Carried at Cost)
The fair values of loans, except for certain impdiloans, are estimated using discounted cashdimlyses, using market rates at the balance shtsethat reflect the cre
and interest rateisk inherent in the loans. Projected future cdsivg are calculated based upon contractual mataritall dates, projected repayments and prepay
principal. Generally, for variable rate loans tregirice frequently and with no significant changertedit risk, fair values are based on carryinges

Impaired Loans (Generally Carried at Fair Value)
Impaired loans are those for which the Companyrheasured and recorded an impairment generally basélde fair value of the loasi'collateral. Fair value is gener:
determined based upon independent thiady appraisals of the properties, or discounteshdlows based upon the expected proceeds. Thests are included as Levt
fair values, based upon the lowest level of inpat is significant to the fair value measuremenie fair value at December 31, 2012 and 2011 ctnsfghe loan balanc
of $23,087,000 and $26,398,000, net of a valuatltmwance of $2,120,000 and $3,391,000, respegtivel

FHLB of New York Stock (Carried at Cost)
The carrying amount of restricted investment inkbstock approximates fair value, and considerdithiged marketability of such securities.

Interest Receivable and Payable (Carried at Cost)
The carrying amount of interest receivable andr@siepayable approximates its fair value.

Deposits (Carried at Cost)
The fair values disclosed for demand deposits,(Bntgrest and nomterest checking, passbook savings and money madceunts) are, by definition, equal to the am
payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e.; taerying amounts). Fair values for fixeate certificates of deposit are estimated usidgeounted cash flow calculati
that applies interest rates currently being offeneithe market on certificates to a schedule ofeggted expected monthly maturities on time deposit

Long-Term Debt (Carried at Cost)
Fair values of long-term debt are estimated usiagadinted cash flow analysis, based on quoted pfarenew longterm debt with similar credit risk characteristiterm:
and remaining maturity. These prices obtained ftioisiactive market represent a market value theeéned to represent the transfer price if thélifglwere assumed by
third party.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments (Disclosedt Cost)
Fair values for the Bank’s offalance sheet financial instruments (lending comeritts and unused lines of credit) are based onciegesntly charged in the market to e

into similar agreements, taking into account, gr@aining terms of the agreements and the countegaredit standing. The fair value of these commitraemas deeme
immaterial and is not presented in the accompanigbig.
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Valuesfd-inancial Instruments (Continued)

The carrying values and estimated fair valuesrafritial instruments were as follows at DecembefB12 and 2011:

Financial asset:

Cash and cash equivale
Securities available for sa
Securities held to maturit
Loans held for sal

Loans receivabl

FHLB of New York stock
Interest receivabl

Financial liabilities:
Deposits

FHLB Borrowings
Interest payabl

Financial asset:

Cash and cash equivale
Securities available for sa
Securities held to maturit
Loans held for sal

Loans receivabl

FHLB of New York stock
Interest receivabl

Financial liabilities:
Deposits
Long-term debr
Interest payabl
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Quoted Prices

in Active Significant Significant
Carrying Markets for Other Unobservable
Value Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(In Thousands)
$ 3513: $ 3513: $ 3513: $ — % —
1,24( 1,24( 1,24( — —
164,64¢ 171,60: — 171,60: —
1,60z 1,63 — 1,63 —
922,30: 975,83! — — 975,83!
7,69¢ 7,69¢ — 7,69¢ —
4,06: 4,06: — 4,06: —
940, 78¢ 944,96( 527,31¢ 417,64 —
131,12 144,21 — 144,21 —
78¢ 78¢ — 78¢ —

December 31

2011

Carrying
Value Fair Value

117,08° % 117,08
1,04¢ 1,04¢
206,96! 213,90¢
5,85¢ 6,02(
840,76: 890,21!
7,49¢ 7,49¢
4,997 4,997
977,62: 982,50(
129,53: 141,10¢
81z 81z
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Note 17- Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The components of accumulated other comprehenssgeimcluded in stockholders' equity are as follows

At December 31,

2012 2011
(In Thousands)

Net unrealized gain (loss) on securities availétiesale $ 14z $ (52)
Tax effec (59 21

Net of tax amount 84 31
Benefit plan adjustmen (2,23)) (2,129
Tax effec 917 86€

Net of tax amount (1,319 (1,25€)
Accumualted other comprehensive | $ (1,239 $ (1,287
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Note 18- Parent Only Condensed Financial Informatio

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

Assets
Cash and due from ban
Investment in subsidiarie
Restricted common sto«
Other asset
Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities
Long-term debr
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Stockholder's Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
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Years Ended December 31

2012

2011

(In Thousands)

$ 1,052 $ =
95,03" 104,08t

124 124

58 36

96,27 104,24t

$ 412 $ 4,124
56€ 76

4,69( 4,20(

91,58 100,04

$ 96,27.  $ 104,24t
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Note 18- Parent Only Condensed Financial Informatio (Continued)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Dividends from Bank subsidial
Total Income

Interest expense, borrowed mor
Other
Total Expense

Income before Income Tax Expense (Benefit) and Edtyiin
Undistributed Earnings (Losses) of Subsidiaries
Income tax expense (bene

Income before Equity in Undistributed (Losses) Earings of Subsidiaries
Equity in undistributed (losses) earnings of Sulasiels

Net (Loss) Income
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Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(In Thousands)

$ 15,74t  $ 9,611 $ 5,33¢
15,74¢ 9,611 5,33¢
12¢ 12¢C 122
37 (17) 60
165 10< 182
15,58( 9,50¢ 5,152
(55) 97 12C
15,63t 9,411 5,032
(17,69) (3,360 9,29¢
$ (2,069 $ 6,051 $ 14,32¢
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Note 18 - Parent Only Condensed Financial Informatin (Continued)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net (Loss) Incom:

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to mshgrovided by operating activits
Equity in undistributed losses (earnings) of suibsies
Decrease (increase) in other as
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash acquired in acquisiti
Additional investment in subsidie

Net Cash (Used In) Provided By Investing Activitie:

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of preferred s
Proceeds from issuance of common s
Cash dividends pa
Purchase of treasury stock
Net Cash (Used in) Financing Activities
Net Increase (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalsi
Cash and Cash Equivalent- Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalent- Ending

Non-Cash Items:
Transfer of securities available for saléréasury stocl
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Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(In Thousands)

(2,067 $ 6,051 $ 14,32¢
17,697 3,36( (9,299
(22 95 171
49C 18 (129)
16,10: 9,52¢ 5,07
— — 31
(8,570 — —
(8,570 $ —  $ 31
8,57( — —
10¢ 237 73
(4,310 (4,549 (3,419
(10,85() (5,567 (1,806
(6,489 (9,879 (5,145
1,052 (355 (40)
— % 358 $ 39t
1,052 $ — $ 35¢E
— 3 — 3 23t
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Note 19 — Acquisitions

On October 14, 2011, the Company acquired all ef dhtstanding common shares of Allegiance CommuBépk (“Allegiance”)and thereby acquired all of Allegiar
Community Banks two branch locations. Under the terms of the ereagreement, Allegiance stockholders received 6f35share of BCB Bancorp, Inc. common stock
price of $9.57 per share in exchange for each stfafdlegiance common stock, resulting in BCB Bamzdnc. issuing 644,434 common shares of BCB Bgndac. commo
stock with an acquisition date fair value of $6.@ion.

The results of Allegiance’operations are included in our Consolidated Btatés of Operations from the date of acquisitioncénnection with the merger, the consider:
paid and the net assets acquired were recordée astimated fair value on the date of acquisi@@snsummarized in the following table (In thousands

Consideration pai

BCB Community Bancorp, Inc. common stock iss $ 6,167
Cash paid on fractional shares 1
$ 6,16¢

Estimated amounts of identifiable assets acwquaretlliabilities assumed, at fair val

Cash and cash equivale $ 5,902
Investment securitie 34,96¢
Loans receivabl 88,91
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stc 81¢
Premises and equipme 1,61¢
Interest Receivabl 44z
Deferred income taxe 1,41¢
Other asset 1,057
Deposits (111,369
Borrowings (15,459
Other liabilities (989
Total identifiable net asse 7,33(
Gain on bargain purchase recognized in non-inténestne $ 1,162

ASC 805 “Business Combinationgérmits the use of provisional amounts for the tasaequired and liabilities assumed when the in&tion at acquisition date is incompl
During the measurement period, which is one yean fihe acquisition date, amounts provisionallygrssil to the acquisition may be adjusted based wrinfermation obtaine
during the measurement period. Under no circumstan@y the measurement period exceed one yeatlimacquisition date. No adjustments were madexg@012.

The securities portfolio acquired consisted prityasf FHLMC and FNMA mortgage backed securities ethivere valued as of October 14, 2011 based orixmaicing, whick
is a mathematical technique used widely in the strguo value debt securities without relying esbhely on quoted market prices for the specificusities but rather by relyir
on the securities’ relationship to other benchnpréited prices.

We estimated the fair value for most loans acquifrech Allegiance by utilizing a methodology wherdmans with comparable characteristics were aggeeghy type c
collateral, remaining maturity and repricing tern@ash flows for each pool were estimated using siimate of future credit losses and an estimatézl oh prepayment
Projected monthly cash flows were then discountedreésent value using a riskljusted market rate for similar loans. To estintatefair value of the remaining loans,
analyzed the value of the underlying collaterathef loans, assuming the fair values of the loaeslarived from the eventual sale of the collaterhé value of the collateral w
based on recently completed appraisals adjustdtktoaluation date based on recognized industrigiggl We discounted these values using marketetbrates of return wi
consideration given to the period of time and castsociated with the foreclosure and dispositiothefcollateral. There was no carryover of Allegieia allowance for crec
losses associated with the loans we acquired iordance with applicable accounting guidance. Infiifom about the acquired Allegiance loan portfalgoof October 14, 2011
as follows (in thousands):

Contractually required principal and interest ajlasition $ 107,76(
Contractual cash flows not expected to be colle@tedaccretabale discout (1,539
Expected cash flows at acquisiti 106,22¢
Interest component of expected cash flows (acdestiibcount) 17,31¢
Fair value of acquired loai $ 88,91

61




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 19 — Acquisitions (Continued)
The fair value of the office buildings and land&sed upon independent third-party appraisalseopthperties.

The fair value of savings and transaction depasibants acquired from Allegiance was assumed tooappate the carrying value as these accounts hawsated maturity ai
are payable on demand. Certificates of deposituatsavere valued by calculating the discounted €ash The discounted cash flows, at an individaetount level, were th
aggregated together by category type to deterntigentarket value of each time deposit category. Miaeket values of all time deposit categories wetded together

determine the total market value of the time depawitfolio. The discount rate utilized for the clisinted cash flow of each time deposit category eaéculated based upon

median interest rate for market time deposits retdine weighted average remaining maturity for timaé deposit category.

The fair value of borrowings assumed was determinedstimating projected future cash outflows aisgalinting them at the current market rate of ggefor similar type ¢
borrowings.

Direct costs related to the acquisition were expéres incurred. During the year ended DecembeP@®1L1, we incurred $538,000 in merger related exgenslated to tt
transaction, including $533,000 in professionaVieess and $5,000 in other non-interest expenses.

On July 6, 2010, the Company acquired all of thistanding common shares of Pamrapo Bancorp, IRanftapo”)the parent company of Pamrapo Savings Bank, amdl
acquired all of Pamrapo Savings Banl0 branch locations. Under the terms of the nmeageeement, Pamrapo stockholders received 1.@ sti@CB Bancorp, Inc. comm
stock in exchange for each share of Pamrapo consteak, resulting in us issuing 4.9 million commdraes of BCB Bancorp, Inc. common stock with arugition date fai
value of $38.6 million. Also under the terms of therger agreement, Pamrapo stock options were dedvi® BCB Bancorp, Inc. stock options. There w2800 Pamray
options outstanding that had a fair value of $@0@he date of acquisition. The strike price of tlpions acquired ranged from $18.41-$29.25.

The merger with Pamrapo presents a unique opptyttmimerge with a leading community financial ington that will strengthen the earning power @B Bancorp, as well .
the added scale to undertake and solidify leadeysbsitions in key business lines.

The results of Pamrapooperations are included in our Consolidated Btates of Operations from the date of acquisitioncdnnection with the merger, the consideratiomnl
and the net assets acquired were recorded at éstirffzér value on the date of acquisition, as sunzed in the following table, (in thousands).

Consideration pai
BCB Community Bancorp, Inc. common stock iss $ 38,64¢

Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acqainediabilities assumed, at fair val

Cash and cash equivale $ 22,97¢
Investment securitie 86,77(
Loans receivabl 412,14.
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stc 2,87¢
Property held for sal 1,017
Premises and equipme 5,93¢
Other real estate ownt 78¢
Interest receivabl 1,90¢
Deferred income taxe 1,82(
Other asset 1,26¢
Deposits (435,81()
Borrowings (43,81%)
Other liabilities (6,650
Total identifiable net asse 51,22%
Gain on bargain purchase recognized in-interest incomu $ 12,58

The securities portfolio acquired consisted pritgasf FHLMC and FNMA mortgage backed securities ethivere valued as of July 6, 2010 based on mati@ing, which is i
mathematical technique used widely in the indusdryalue debt securities without relying exclusjveh quoted market prices for the specific seasibut rather by relying
the securities’ relationship to other benchmarktgdgrices.
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Note 19 — Acquisitions (Continued)

We estimated the fair value for most loans acquireeh Pamrapo by utilizing a methodology whereiaris with comparable characteristics were aggredstégpe of collaters
remaining maturity and repricing terms. Cash fldarseach pool were estimated using an estimatatafé credit losses and an estimated rate of preeats. Projected montt
cash flows were then discounted to present valingusriskadjusted market rate for similar loans. To estintla¢efair value of the remaining loans, we analytedvalue of th
underlying collateral of the loans, assuming the Values of the loans are derived from the evdngéafe of the collateral. The value of the collatevas based on recer
completed appraisals adjusted to the valuation lzged on recognized industry indicies. We disalittiese values using market derived rates ofiretith consideration give
to the period of time and costs associated wittfdheclosure and disposition of the collateral. fEheas no carryover of Pamrapdalllowance for credit losses associated wit
loans we acquired in accordance with applicablewatiing guidance. Information about the acquireshipo loan portfolio as of July 6, 2010 is as fata(in thousands):

Contractually required principal and interest ajusition $ 649,87
Contractual cash flows not expected to be colle@tedaccretabale discout (7,929
Expected cash flows at acquisiti 641,94
Interest component of expected cash flows (acdeetiibcount) 229,80!
Fair value of acquired loal $ 412,14

Fair value of acquired loans
The fair value of the office buildings and land&sed upon independent third-party appraisalseoptbperties.
The fair value of other real estate owned is bagenh independent third-party appraisals of the @rtigs.

The fair value of savings and transaction depasibants acquired from Pamrapo was assumed to d@pmtexthe carrying value as these accounts hastated maturity ar
are payable on demand. Certificates of deposituatsavere valued by calculating the discounted &ash The discounted cash flows, at an individaetount level, were th
aggregated together by category type to deternfinentarket value of each time deposit category. Maeket values of all time deposit categories wetded together -
determine the total market value of the time depmsitfolio. The discount rate utilized for the clisinted cash flow of each time deposit category eméculated based upon
median interest rate for market time deposits rstdine weighted average remaining maturity for timaé deposit category.

The fair value of borrowings assumed was determinedstimating projected future cash outflows aisg¢alinting them at the current market rate of ggefor similar type ¢
borrowings.

Direct costs related to the acquisition were expéres incurred. During the twelve months ended Dbee 31, 2010, we incurred $644,000 in merger edlaikpenses relatec
the transaction, including $622,000 in professi@ealices and $22,000 in other non-interest expgense

The following table presents unaudited pro formfarimation, (in thousands), as if the acquisitionAdiegiance had occurred on January 1, 2010. Thosferma informatio
gives effect to certain adjustments, including pase accounting fair value adjustments, amortizadiofair value adjustments and related incomeeffgcts. The pro forn
information does not necessarily reflect the rasaoft operations that would have occurred had thengamy merged with Allegiance at the beginning o1 2@r 2010. |
particular, potential cost savings are not refi@dtethe unaudited pro forma amounts.

Pro forma
Twelve months ende
December 31, 201 December 31, 20:

Net interest incom $ 41,73 $ 28,36:
Noninterest incom 2,452 15,48(
Noninterest expens 30,86¢ 25,201
Net income 6,237 14,47¢

The amounts of revenue and earnings attributabfdlégiance since the acquisition date includethim consolidated statement of income for the yadeé December 31, 2C
are not disclosed due to the fact that the infoionas impracticable to provide.
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Note 20 - Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Year Ended December 201.

First Quarter

Second Quarte Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Interest income $ 13,54¢ $ 13,32: $ 13,10¢ $ 13,66¢
Interest expense 3,252 3,07¢ 2,85: 2,76¢
Net Interest Income 10,29° 10,24¢ 10,25¢ 10,90(
Provision for loan losses 60C 1,20(C 1,60( 1,50(
Net Interest Income after Provision for lan losses 9,697 9,04¢ 8,65¢ 9,40(
Non-interest income (loss 1,282 (6,31]) (2,739 54%
Non-interest expense 8,38z 7,99¢ 9,001 8,507
Income (loss) before Income Taxt 2,591 (5,267) (3,08 1,43¢
Income taxes (benefit 1,00¢ (1,900 (1,740 37¢
Net Income (Loss $ 1,58t $ (3,362 $ (1,345 $ 1,057
Net income (loss) per common shar¢
Basic $ 0.17 $ 0.3) $ (0.1 $ 0.12
Diluted $ 017 $ 0.3) $ 0.15) $ 0.12
Dividends per common share $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.12

Year Ended December 201

First Quarter

Second Quarte Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Interest incom $ 13,05: $ 13,25( $ 12,72¢ $ 13,84°
Interest expens 3,38 3,36¢ 3,33¢ 3,218
Net Interest Income 9,67 9,882 9,39/ 10,63¢
Provision for loan losse 35( 45(C 80( 2,50(
Net Interest Income after Provision for lan losses 9,32: 9,43z 8,59/ 8,13¢
Non-interest incom« 53¢ 50¢ 30: 1,10:
Non-interest expens 6,70¢ 6,637 6,86¢ 8,291
Income before Income Taxe 3,14¢ 3,30¢ 2,02¢ 94¢€
Income taxe: 1,22¢ 1,352 84( (44)
Net Income (Loss $ 1,921 $ 1,952 $ 1,18¢ $ 99C
Net income per common sha
Basic $ 0.2 $ 021 $ 0.1 $ 0.1C
Diluted $ 0.2 $ 021 $ 0.1 $ 0.1C
Dividends per common sha $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.17
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY




The following is a list of the Subsidiaries of B&&ncorp, Inc.

Name

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

State of Incorporatio

Bayonne Community Bar
BCB Holding Company Investment Co
Pamrapo Service Cor

BCB New York Management, In

New Jerse!
New Jerse!
New Jerse!

New York
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referénde Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N@-BB7502) Forms S-8 (Nos. 333-112201, 333-165133; 3
169337, 333-174639, and 333-175545) of BCB Banctrp, of our reports dated March 18, 2013, relatiogthe Company’s consolidated financial statememtd the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdireancial reporting , which appear in this ForfiH for the year ended December 31, 2012.

/sl ParenteBeard LLC
ParenteBeard LLC

Clark, New Jersey
March 18, 2013




EXHIBITS 31.1 AND 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002




Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the SarbaBetey Act of 2002

I, Donald Mindiak, certify that:

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of BCB Bancorp, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omittie a material fact necessary to make the statsnmade,
light of the circumstances under which such statesnere made, not misleading with respect to #r@g covered by this annual repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafinial conditior
results of operations and cash flows of the regigtas of, and for, the periods presented in &psnt;

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsible déstablishing and maintaining disclosure contewld procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule-
15(e) and 15-15(e)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

c)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduttes tiesigned under our supervision, to ensureniaégria
information relating to the registrant, includirig consolidated subsidiaries, is made known toyustiieers within those entities, particularly duriig period i
which this report is being prepare

designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahaporting to be designed under our supervisiorprovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaihicial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeiterall
accepted accounting principle

evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtéds report our conclusions about the effecteganof th
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the étitegeriod covered by this report based on swuekuation; anc

disclosed in this report any change in the tei¢'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registranthost recent fiscal quarter (
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case famnual report) that has materially affected,sareasonably likely to materially affect, the régist's internzs
control over financial reporting; at

The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdhon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmtver financial reporting, to the registr's auditor
and the audit committee of registr's board of directors (or persons performing thevedent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which are reasonably likedyadversel
affect the registra’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; an
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrargt’internal control over financ
reporting.
March 18, 2013 /s/ Donald Mindiak

Date

Donald Mindiak
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31 . 2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the SarbaBetey Act of 2002

I, Kenneth Walter, certify tha

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of BCB Bancorp, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omstede a material fact necessary to make the statsnmade,
light of the circumstances under which such stateswere made, not misleading with respect to #reg covered by this annual repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafinial conditior
results of operations and cash flows of the regigtas of, and for, the periods presented in &psnt;

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsible déstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule-
15(e) and 15-15(e)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

c)

d)

The reg
and the

a)

b)

March 18, 201!
Date

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduttes tiesigned under our supervision, to ensureniaégria
information relating to the registrant, including consolidated subsidiaries, is made known toyusthoers within those entities, particularly durithg period i
which this report is being prepare

designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finaha@gorting to be designed under our supervisiorprovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynahttial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeiterall
accepted accounting principle

evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtéds report our conclusions about the effectesmnof th
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the etitegeriod covered by this report based on sueluation; anc

disclosed in this report any change in the regit’s internal control over financial reporting thatomed during the registre’s most recent fiscal quarter (
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case wfamnual report) that has materially affected soreasonably likely to materially affect, the réxgiat’s interna
control over financial reporting; at

istrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @brver financial reporting, to the registr’s auditor
audit committee of registr's board of directors (or persons performing thevedent functions)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which are reasonably likedyadversel
affect the registra’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmncial information; ant

any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significéatin the registra’s internal control over financ
reporting.

/s/ Kenneth Walte
Kenneth Walte
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002




Exhibit 32
Certification pursuant to

18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Donald Mindiak, President, Chief Executive Offi@ard Kenneth D. Walter, Chief Financial Officer oEB Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company8ach certify in his capacity as
officer of the Company that he has reviewed thaiahreport of the Company on Form 10-K for thedisgear ended December 31, 2012 and that to theobbs knowledge:

Q) the report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of18&d

2) the information contained in the report fairly prats, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of the Compz
The purpose of this statement is solely to comphy Witle 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the Uthitates Code, as amended by Section 906 of thmS=sOxley Act of
2002.

March 18, 2013 /s/ Donald Mindiak
Date Donald Mindiak
President and Chief Executive Offic

March 18, 201! /s/ Kenneth Walte
Date Kenneth Walte
Chief Financial Office




